Public Document Pack

A )
U\ J

ABERDEEN
CITY COUNCIL
To: Councillor Boulton, Convener; and Councillors Cameron and Copland.

Town House,
ABERDEEN 8 December 2017

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

The Members of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
are requested to meet for a site visit on FRIDAY, 15 DECEMBER 2017 at 9.00 am.
Would members please meet at the new extension at the Town House for departure at
9am. Members will then meet in Committee Room 5 following the site visit to determine
the review.

FRASER BELL
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

BUSINESS

1 Procedure Notice (Pages 5 - 6)

COPIES OF THE RELEVANT PLANS / DRAWINGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR
INSPECTION IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING AND WILL BE DISPLAYED AT
THE MEETING

MEMBERS PLEASE NOTE THAT THE FOLLOWING LINK WILL TAKE YOU TO
THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

Local Development Plan

TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE APPOINTED OFFICER TO REFUSE THE
FOLLOWING APPLICATIONS



http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/pla_local_development_plan.asp

PLANNING ADVISER - ANDREW MILLER

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Aberdeen, AB21 OTL - Proposed Erection of

Two Detached Dwellings, Formation of Associated Private Garden Ground and Car

Parking - P170395

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Delegated Report, Plans, Decision Notice and Letters of Representation
(Pages 7 - 48)

Members, please note that the relevant plans can be viewed online:-

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=006RQ
4BZK2000

Planning Policies Referred to in Documents Submitted

Members, the following planning policies are referred to:-
National Policy and Guidance

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) expresses a presumption in favour of
development which contributes to sustainable development. It acknowledges
that green belt has a significant role in pressurised housing market areas.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan

D1: Quality Placemaking by Design

D2: Landscape

T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development
T3: Sustainable and Active Travel

NEZ2: Green Belt

NES: Trees and Woodlands

NEG6: Flooding, Drainage & Water Quality

NES8: Natural Heritage

R2: Contaminated Land

R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings & Water Efficiency

The policies can be viewed at the following link:-
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning environment/planning/local deve
lopment plan/pla local development plan.asp

Notice of Review with Initial Application and Supporting Information
Submitted by Applicant / Agent (Pages 49 - 368)

Additional Comments from Representations and Response from
Applicant/Agent (Pages 369 - 372)



https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OO6RQ4BZK2000
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OO6RQ4BZK2000
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OO6RQ4BZK2000
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/pla_local_development_plan.asp
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/pla_local_development_plan.asp

2.5 Determination - Reasons for Decision

Members, please note that reasons should be based against Development
Plan policies and any other material considerations.

2.6 Consideration of Conditions to be Attached to the Application - if Members
are Minded to Over-turn the Decision of the Case Officer

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Allison
Swanson on aswanson@aberdeencity.gov.uk / tel 01224 522822


http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PROCEDURE NOTE

GENERAL

1. The Local Review Body of Aberdeen City Council (the LRB) must at all
times comply with (one) the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(Schemes of Delegation and Local Review Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2008 (the regulations), and (two) Aberdeen City Council’s
Standing Orders.

2. In dealing with a request for the review of a decision made by an
appointed officer under the Scheme of Delegation adopted by the Council
for the determination of “local” planning applications, the LRB
acknowledge that the review process as set out in the regulations shall be
carried out in stages.

3. As the first stage and having considered the applicant’s stated preference
(if any) for the procedure to be followed, the LRB must decide how the
case under review is to be determined.

4. Once a notice of review has been submitted interested parties (defined as
statutory consultees or other parties who have made, and have not
withdrawn, representations in connection with the application) will be
consulted on the Notice and will have the right to make further
representations within 14 days.

Any representations:

e made by any party other than the interested parties as defined
above (including those objectors or Community Councils that did
not make timeous representation on the application before its
delegated determination by the appointed officer) or

e made outwith the 14 day period representation period referred to
above

cannot and will not be considered by the Local Review Body in

determining the Review.

5. Where the LRB consider that the review documents (as defined within the
regulations) provide sufficient information to enable them to determine the
review, they may (as the next stage in the process) proceed to do so
without further procedure.

6. Should the LRB, however, consider that they are not in a position to
determine the review without further procedure, they must then decide
which one of (or combination of) the further procedures available to them
in terms of the regulations should be pursued. The further procedures
available are:-

(@)  written submissions;
(b)  the holding of one or more hearing sessions;
(c) an inspection of the site.

Page 5



If the LRB do decide to seek further information or representations prior
to the determination of the review, they will require, in addition to deciding
the manner in which that further information/representations should be
provided, to be specific about the nature of the information/
representations sought and by whom it should be provided.

In adjourning a meeting to such date and time as it may then or later
decide, the LRB shall take into account the procedures outlined within
Part 4 of the regulations, which will require to be fully observed.

DETERMINATION OF REVIEW

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Once in possession of all information and/or representations considered
necessary to the case before them, the LRB will proceed to determine the
review.

The starting point for the determination of the review by the LRB will be
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, which
provides that:-
‘where, in making any determination under the planning Acts,
regard is to be had to the Development Plan, the determination
shall be made in accordance with the Plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.”

In coming to a decision on the review before them, the LRB will require:-

(a) to consider the Development Plan position relating to the
application proposal and reach a view as to whether the proposal
accords with the Development Plan;

(b)  to identify all other material considerations arising (if any) which
may be relevant to the proposal;

(c) to weigh the Development Plan position against the other material
considerations arising before deciding whether the Development
Plan should or should not prevail in the circumstances.

In determining the review, the LRB will:-

(a) uphold the appointed officers determination, with or without
amendments or additions to the reason for refusal; or

(b)  overturn the appointed officer's decision and approve the
application with or without appropriate conditions.

The LRB will give clear reasons for its decision in recognition that these

will require to be intimated and publicised in full accordance with the
regulations.

Page 6



Agenda Item 2.1

Report of Handling
Detailed Planning Permission

170395/DPP: Erection of two detached dwellings, formation of
associated private garden ground and car parking (Resubmission of
previous application ref: 161777/DPP). at Burnside Poultry Units, Little
Clinterty, Aberdeen, AB21 OTL

For: Mr Graham Buchan

Application Date: 18 April 2017

Officer: Robert Forbes

Ward: Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone
Community Council: | Dyce And Stoneywood
Advertisement: Development Plan Departure
Advertised Date: 28.4.17

RECOMMENDATION: Refuse
SITE DESCRIPTION

This 1.3 Ha site relates to former agricultural land located in open countryside to the
south of Blackburn. It includes a redundant asbestos roofed poultry shed (10m by
35m), associated slurry tank and other land partly used for grazing of sheep,
horticulture, including the site of a demolished glass house. A residential caravan is
located on the site, although it is unclear what purpose it is used for. A supporting
report states that the redundant poultry shed is currently used for “ad-hoc storage”.
There are a number of sporadic established trees on the site including native ash
and exotic conifer trees and a recently planted tree belt. The application form
certifies that none of the site constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding.

PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought to redevelop the site to erect 2 detached mainstream
housing units. The existing farm access track from the public road would be used.
Two plots are proposed at the western and eastern ends of the site. Garden ground
would be defined by post and wire fencing. Plot 1 (to the east) would consist of a 4
bedroomed house with attached garage. It would be of 2 storeys, with the upper floor
contained with the roofspace. Plot 2 would consist of a similar 4 bedroomed unit ( in
contrast with the 6 bedroomed house previously proposed). Roofs would be pitched
at 45 degrees and clad with corrugated metal with Velux rooflights. Walls would be
finished with a mix of smooth render and larch cladding. Ancillary surface car parking
within the plots. Drainage would be via a private system (septic tanks).

Page 7



APPLICATION REF: 170395/DPP

The proposal differs from the previous refusal (161777) in that one of the houses
would be smaller and would not include a detached garage.

RELEVANT HISTORY

Application Number Proposal Decision Date
161777/DPP Erection of 2 houses Refused
31.01.17

A2/2173 (022148) Erection of a house adjacent to the site
Refused 10/04/03

There is no record of planning permission having been granted for installation of a
residential caravan at the application site.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s
website at https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=documents&keyVal=O06R0Q4BZK200
0.

Bat Survey, Structural Survey, Sustainability Report, Feasibility Report, Financial
Appraisal, Site Investigation, Asbestos Reports, Design Statement, Drainage Impact
Assessment and Planning Statement.

CONSULTATIONS

Consultee Date of Comments Summary of Comments

ACC - Roads 03.05.17 No objection on public / road safety

Development grounds (e.g. regarding the

Management Team access). Note that the site is not
readily accessible by walking or
cycling.

ACC - Flooding And 25.4.17 No objection. Recommend use of

Coastal Protection water butts and permeable paving
on site.

ACC - Environmental 21.4.17 Recommend conditions to address

Health possible site contamination.
Request that the applicant
demonstrate that a mains water
supply is to be provided.

ACC - Environmental 13.06.17 Note that a tree survey has not

Policy Team been provided and is required. No
concern regarding bat impact.
Recommend further ecological
survey work. Consider that the
landscape impact of the proposal
would be adverse.

ACC - Waste Strategy 25.4.17 Advise that the property would

Team have wheelie bin refuse storage.

Page 8


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OO6RQ4BZK2000
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OO6RQ4BZK2000
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OO6RQ4BZK2000

APPLICATION REF: 170395/DPP

Community Council 24.4.17 Object on grounds of contravention
of green belt policy (NE2), and
precedent. No evidence of
“enabling development” to justify
approval, in contrast with Clinterty
Mill. Consider that the houses are
high quality design. Policy R2 does
not support the development.

REPRESENTATIONS
3 letters of objection have been received. The matters raised can be summarised as
follows:-

Contravention of green belt policy (NE2),

Precedent for future development,

History of refusal of housing nearby,

Public/ road safety impact,

The poor sustainable transport connections to Blackburn,

Visual prominence / landscape impact,

Concern that existing trees offer little screening,

Lack of justification for 2 houses on the site,

Consider that the level of site contamination is unlikely to be severe and that the site
has potential for agricultural use as evident by recent use as vegetable plot / market
garden / grazing),

Concern regarding negative impact on adjacent residential amenity due to screening,
Consider that previous building design concerns have been addressed by the
revised proposal.

PLANNING POLICY

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) expresses a presumption in favour of development
which contributes to sustainable development. It acknowledges that green belt has a
significant role in pressurised housing market areas.

The Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 2014 (SDP) directs
housing development to existing settlements and planned growth areas to be set out
in Local Plans. It identifies the need for a green belt for Aberdeen, to protect the
character and landscape setting of the city. Its boundaries are to be identified by
Local Plans. It has an objective to ensure that all new development contributes
towards reducing the need to travel.

2017 Adopted Local Development Plan

D1: Quality Placemaking by Design

D2: Landscape

T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development
T3: Sustainable and Active Travel

NE2: Green Belt

NE5: Trees and Woodlands

NE6: Flooding, Drainage & Water Quality

NE8: Natural Heritage

Page 9



APPLICATION REF: 170395/DPP

R2: Contaminated Land
R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings & Water Efficiency

OTHER RELEVANT MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
Planning guidance regarding landscape and transport / accessibility is relevant

Local Transport Strategy

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
require that where, in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to
be had to the provisions of the Development Plan and that determination shall be
made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the application unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Development Principle

The supporting planning statement indicates that the existing shed on the site
(formerly used for agricultural purposes as a poultry unit) is used for general storage
purposes (i.e. class 6 use). However, no evidence exists that such use is authorised.
Therefore, the application requires to be assessed on the basis of the authorised use
of the site as agricultural land. No planning permission has been granted for change
of use of that building or for other development at the site. There has been no
material change in the physical appearance / context of the site or in relation to
relevant planning policies / guidance referred to above since refusal of the previous
planning application for erection of 2 houses on the site in January 2017.

The site is not identified as an opportunity site for development or a site identified for
housing development within with the adopted Local Development Plan. It lies in
open countryside within the green belt and outwith any established settlement. The
proposal therefore conflicts with the SDP which directs development to identified
housing sites or existing settlements and identifies the need for a green belt in order
to direct housing pressure elsewhere.

Erection of mainstream housing at the site would conflict with NE2 (green belt)
policy. It is clear that the proposed development is not essential in the interests of
agriculture, forestry or any other type of rural development which is itself appropriate
in the Green Belt. No attempt has been made to suggest otherwise. Given the limited
extent of the land holding, the redundant nature of the poultry unit, and the low
intensity of any existing agricultural use at the site, there would be no justification for
housing on essential need grounds. Moreover the remaining sheds on the site are
not of historic or architectural interest that would justify potential conversion to
residential use and, in any event, the proposal is for demolition of such building and
redevelopment of the site. No evidence has been provided that other uses which
may comply with green belt policy have been considered. Although it is accepted
that the remaining building on the site is in a poor structural condition and that the
site has remediation constraints, the supporting feasibility report and planning
statement are not considered to have sufficient weight to justify approval of the
development contrary to green belt policy.

Page 10



APPLICATION REF: 170395/DPP

Contamination

The site investigation states that “The asbestos present on site (in-situ or ground
contamination) presents negligible risk to human health....There is no evidence of
other potential contamination on site.” The majority of the site appears to remain in
active agricultural use and is not visually degraded in nature (e.g. compared to larger
farm complexes / industrial / mineral workings) elsewhere in the green belt. There is
no evidence of previous industrial use / landfilling that is likely to have caused
contamination. It is accepted that the remaining building on the site is in a poor
structural condition and that the site has remediation constraints. It is considered that
the costs associated with maintenance / replacement of the shed roof are not so
exceptional to justify approval of housing on the site. Notwithstanding the objective of
policy R2, given that the site is not significantly visually degraded, does not pose a
significant environmental hazard and is in part used for appropriate countryside
purposes, there is considered to be no strong justification for allowing its
redevelopment for other purposes not currently allowed for by green belt policy.

Sustainability
Whilst the submitted sustainability report claims that “the site.... provides a basis

from which to achieve a highly sustainable development” this conclusion can be
guestioned on various grounds.

Although the site is located close to Blackburn, it lies in open countryside and is
poorly connected to urban areas by sustainable transport means. Occupants would
be required to walk about 1km along an unlit country road with no footways to
access facilities at Blackburn. There is no bus service on the adjacent public road
and no convenient / safe pedestrian crossing on the A96. Public transport would not
be available within 400m of the site, in conflict with the Council’s guidance regarding
transport. Although alternative access is available via a farm track, outwith the site,
this is unsurfaced and unlit and is not under the applicant’s control. Although the site
is claimed to be located within cycling distance of Dyce, Westhill and Kingswells, the
intervening topography and high level / speed of vehicle traffic is likely to discourage
cycling. Accordingly it is considered that the development would be unduly car
dependent, and would therefore conflict with the objectives of policies T2 and T3 and
with the SDP objective of reducing the need to travel.

Notwithstanding the potential for low energy design, the significant size of the
proposed housing units is considered to sit uneasily with the resource minimisation
objective of sustainable development. No re-use of building material within the site is
proposed. No details of renewable energy equipment or demonstration of
compliance with local plan policy R7 have been provided, although it is accepted that
technical solutions are available.

The applicant claims that the development would help to ensure the survival of local
services such as the shop and school in Blackburn. However, no evidence has been
provided that such facilities are at risk of closure. Given that Blackburn has
experienced significant residential growth in recent decades and Aberdeenshire
Council has previously advised that a new school is to be constructed there, this is
unlikely. In any case, given that the application is for two houses within the Aberdeen
housing market area, it can be concluded that there would be no significant social,
economic or community benefits resulting from the proposal.

Page 11



APPLICATION REF: 170395/DPP

The proposal would result in the loss of established trees within the site. No tree
survey or details of replacement planting have been provided. It is accepted that
existing trees are not protected and their loss could potentially be mitigated by
replacement planting, although the scope for that would be constrained by the
proximity of the proposed houses and existing features (e.g. an overhead power
line). It is possible that, in the long term, the proposed development would conflict
with retention of the existing recently planted tree belt along the northern site edge.
There would be no adverse impact on bats. Notwithstanding the limited ecological
information submitted, it is considered that there would be no substantive/
unresolvable conflict with policies NE5 and NES8. Overall it is considered that the
proposal offers no significant ecological benefits that would warrant approval.

The supporting planning statement claims that the proposal would accord with the
policy objective of redevelopment of brownfield sites. However, the majority of the
site is undeveloped and is currently considered compatible with the rural character of
the area, so that this does not outweigh the conflict with green belt policy or justify
approval of housing at the site. The site contains no historically or architecturally
significant buildings or granite structures which could potentially justify approval on
the basis of green belt policy for conversion of buildings and policy relating to re-use
of granite. The absence of potential connection to the public sewer and proposed
private sewerage arrangements are considered to be an inherently less sustainable
solution than directing housing to existing settlements where such infrastructure and
other facilities are available.

Overall, there would be no evident social, economic or environmental benefits
resulting from the proposal that would justify setting aside green belt policy in the
interest of the wider objective of sustainable development set out in SPP, particularly
given that the proposal for mainstream housing targeted at the upper end of the
private housing market.

Design
The site is partially visible from the A96 approaching Blackburn and more evidently

from various points along the adjacent rural access road, as the surrounding
farmland is relatively open and level. Other than the former poultry shed, a caravan,
and a smaller shed of domestic scale, it is currently largely undeveloped and
contains a recently planted tree belt. It is considered that the proposed house
designs are in themselves of high quality and contain features of rural character. It is
considered that the finishing materials and appearance of the houses would be of an
acceptable design quality in terms of the expectations of policy D1. However, the
open / rural landscape context of the site is such that there would be a degree of
conflict with the landscape protection objectives of policies D2 and NE2 due to the
suburbanisation of the countryside resulting from the development, in contrast with
the wooded setting of the housing development approved nearby at “The Mill”,
Clinterty.

Road / Public Safety

It is noted that the unsurfaced access track to the houses is of a substandard nature
and has no passing places and that there is no speed restriction at the junction with
the adjacent public road. However, the Council’'s Roads officers have no objection to

Page 12



APPLICATION REF: 170395/DPP

the proposal on road safety grounds and consider the access arrangements to be
satisfactory. They consider that the proposal would not result in the creation /
intensification of a public road safety hazard due to conflict between traffic exiting /
entering the junction with the public road and existing road users.

Drainage
The submitted drainage impact assessment demonstrates that the site can

potentially be drained and foul / surface water discharged to private systems in
accordance with the expectations of policy NE6, although this would require
provision of soakways located outwith the plot boundaries. No objection has been
received from the Council’'s Flooding team to the proposals.

Precedent

Approval of this application would establish an undesirable precedent for further
sporadic housing developments on farmland within the countryside leading to further
erosion of the function of the green belt area and detraction from its rural character.
Whilst the supporting statement refers to recent approval of housing elsewhere in the
green belt, (e.g. “the Mill”, Clinterty) each application requires to be considered on its
merits. The four houses which were approved at the Mill site were set within a
wooded landscape context which is significantly different from that which exists at
the application site, which is more open and visible from adjacent pubic roads and
therefore potentially more visually intrusive. In any event, it is the long established
practice of this Council to resist mainstream housing development proposals within
the designated green belt, as is evidenced by the Committee refusal of a house
adjacent to the application site in 2003. The recently adopted local development
plan results in no significant change to established green belt policy, other than
allowing for potential replacement of existing houses, which is not relevant in this
case.

Other Matters Raised in Objection

It is considered that the proposed houses would be sufficiently distant from existing
houses that would not be an adverse impact on residential amenity. It is accepted
that there would be an adverse impact on the rural setting of the area. The presence
of a mobile home on the site is matter which is currently being investigated by the
Council’s planning enforcement team.

Procedural Matters

Erection of mainstream housing at the site would conflict with NE2 (green belt)
policy. The application has been advertised as a potential development plan
departure on that basis. Notwithstanding the receipt of objection from the community
council and nearby residents, it is considered that the volume of objection received
does not warrant holding a hearing in this case, falling short of the threshold of 20
objections specified in the report titled “Guidelines: When to hold public hearings in
relation to planning applications” agreed by the Development Management Sub-
committee on 17 June 2010 and particularly as the recommendation is one of
refusal.

RECOMMENDATION: Refuse

Page 13



APPLICATION REF: 170395/DPP

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

01. Green Belt Policy

The site is not identified as an opportunity site for development or a site identified for
housing development within with the Adopted Local Development Plan. It lies in
open countryside within the green belt and outwith any established settlement. The
proposal therefore conflicts with the Strategic Development Plan (SDP) which directs
development to identified housing sites or existing settlements and identifies the
need for a green belt in order to direct housing pressure elsewhere. Erection of
mainstream housing at the site would conflict with NE2 (green belt) policy. No
adequate justification for approval of the development contrary to the development
plan is considered to exist. The development would result in suburban intrusion into
open countryside contrary to the landscape protection objectives of policies D2
(Landscape), and NE2 (Green Belt).

02. Transport / Sustainability

The development would be unduly car dependent, and would therefore conflict with
the objectives of policies T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) and
T3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) and with the SDP objective of reducing the need
to travel. Overall, there would be no significant social, economic or environmental
benefits resulting from the proposal that would justify setting aside green belt policy
in the interest of the wider objective of sustainable development set out in Scottish
Planning Policy.

03. Precedent

Approval of this application would establish an undesirable precedent for further
sporadic housing developments on farmland within the countryside leading to further
erosion of the function of the green belt area, detraction from its rural character and
further encouragement of unsustainable travel patterns.

Page 14



'BON ACCORD

APPLICATION REF NO. 170395/DPP

Planning and Sustainable Development
S Communities, Housing and Infrastructure
DEEN Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street

Aberdeen, AB10 1AB

CITY COUNCIL Tel: 03000 200 292 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

DECISION NOTICE

y
J

The Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Detailed Planning Permission

ANNIE KENYON

Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd.
South Lediken

Insch

UK

AB52 6SH

on behalf of Mr Graham Buchan

With reference to your application validly received on 18 April 2017 for the following
development:-

Erection of two detached dwellings, formation of associated private garden
ground and car parking (Resubmission of previous application ref:
161777/DPP).

at Burnside Poultry Units, Little Clinterty

Aberdeen City Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act
hereby REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the said development in accordance
with the particulars given in the application form and the following plans and
documents:

Drawing Number Drawing Type

PL-01 Location Plan

PL-02 Site Layout (Proposed)
PL-03 Elevations and Floor Plans

REASON FOR DECISION
The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:-

01. Green Belt Policy

The site is not identified as an opportunity site for development or a site identified for
housing development within with the Adopted Local Development Plan. It lies in
open countryside within the green belt and outwith any established settlement. The
proposal therefore conflicts with the Strategic Development Plan (SDP) which directs

Page 15


mailto:pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

development to identified housing sites or existing settlements and identifies the
need for a green belt in order to direct housing pressure elsewhere. Erection of
mainstream housing at the site would conflict with NE2 (green belt) policy. No
adequate justification for approval of the development contrary to the development
plan is considered to exist. The development would result in suburban intrusion into
open countryside contrary to the landscape protection objectives of policies D2
(Landscape), and NE2 (Green Belt).

02. Transport / Sustainability

The development would be unduly car dependent, and would therefore conflict with
the objectives of policies T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) and
T3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) and with the SDP objective of reducing the need
to travel. Overall, there would be no significant social, economic or environmental
benefits resulting from the proposal that would justify setting aside green belt policy
in the interest of the wider objective of sustainable development set out in Scottish
Planning Policy.

03. Precedent

Approval of this application would establish an undesirable precedent for further
sporadic housing developments on farmland within the countryside leading to further
erosion of the function of the green belt area, detraction from its rural character and
further encouragement of unsustainable travel patterns.

Date of Signing 26 July 2017

Dend Lowo

Daniel Lewis
Development Management Manager

IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS DECISION

DETAILS OF ANY VARIATION MADE TO ORIGINAL PROPOSAL, AS AGREED
WITH APPLICANT (S32A of 1997 Act)

None.

RIGHT OF APPEAL
THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority —

a) to refuse planning permission;

b) to refuse approval, consent or agreement requried by a condition imposed on
a grant of planning permission;

c) to grant planning permission or any approval, consent or agreement subject to
conditions,

Page 16



the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under section
43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months
from the date of this notice. Any requests for a review must be made on a ‘Notice of
Review’ form available from the planning authority or at www.eplanning.scot.

Notices of review submitted by post should be sent to Planning and Sustainable
Development (address at the top of this decision notice).

SERVICE OF PURCHASE NOTICE WHERE INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY A
PLANNING DECISION

If permission to develop land is refused and the owner of the land claims that the
land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in it's existing state and
cannot be rendered capable of reasonably benefical use by the carrying out of any
development that would be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on the
planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of the land’s
interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 17


http://www.eplanning.scot/

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Comments for Planning Application 170395/DPP

Application Summary

Application Number: 170395/DPP

Address: Burnside Poultry Units Little Clinterty Aberdeen AB21 OTL

Proposal: Demolition of redundant poultry buildings and erection of two new dwellings (Previous
application ref: 161777/DPP).

Case Officer: Robert Forbes

Customer Details
Name: Dr Bill Harrison
Address: 16 Summer Place Dyce Aberdeen

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Community Councillor

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Hello, I am writing on behalf of Dyce and Stoneywood Community Council. We object to
this application. Reason: inappropriate proposed land use in terms of Policy NE2 (green belt) of
the Local Plan and the fact that it may set an undesirable precedent (we have no objections to the
design of the houses themselves, which look to be of high quality). We are not convinced that
‘enabling development' applies in this case (demolition of derelict agricultural buildings), compared
to Clinterty Mill, where the historic mill was refurbished. We do not believe that policy R2
(remediation of contaminated land) can be cited in support of this development.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Comments for Planning Application 170395/DPP

Application Summary

Application Number: 170395/DPP

Address: Burnside Poultry Units Little Clinterty Aberdeen AB21 OTL

Proposal: Erection of two detached dwellings, formation of associated private garden ground and
car parking (Resubmission of previous application ref: 161777/DPP).

Case Officer: Robert Forbes

Customer Details
Name: Mr Robert Baxter
Address: Elysium Clinterty Aberdeen

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:l wish to object to this planning application on the grounds that the proposed site is set
in greenbelt land. Giving permission would set a precedent to any future planning applications in
the area. Planning has already been rejected and the only thing that has changed is the size of
one house.

| believe that there was a refusal of a planning application for 3 houses on the plot of land between
Elysium and Chough Cottage a few years ago. | would worry about a precedent then being set on
this application if approved, which would encourage other applications in the area. This planning
application for 2 buildings if approved would be visible from my kitchen window. | believe that
building two dwelling houses deviates from the land not being essential to agriculture, woodland or
forestry LDP Policy NE2 Greenbelt.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Broombank
Kinellar
Aberdeen
AB21 0T L

Planning & Sustainable Development
Business Hub 4

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen AB10 1AB

21 April 2017

Dear Sirs
Planning Application 170395
Burnside Poultry Unit, AB21 OTL

In Section 2.3 of the Supporting Statement of the previous planning application it
says that there are a number of existing trees along the eastern boundary offering a
degree of screening. The trees on this boundary of the property are all dead and
have been for some years, indeed one of them has been uprooted and fallen over.
They have no leaf canopy and provide no screening whatsoever! It now says that
there are some lodge-pole pines on my property that provide screening. These trees
are very poorly rooted and are unstable (as can be seen from their angle of growth).
I have in the past had to have some of them removed or limited in height. They
cannot be guaranteed to remain and due to their location provide only a minimum
of screening to the proposed houses (none from my property).

In Section 5.15 of the Supporting Statement of the previous planning application it
states that there will be no negative impact on the amenity of surrounding property.
[ have said above that the trees are dead and provide no screening effect. Also the
land at Broombank is some two metres above the property in question and as such
will be completely overlooking the house on Plot 1. If new trees are planted on the
eastern boundary to provide a screen then they would need to be some 5 to 7
metres in height in order to be effective. Trees of this size would completely
obviate the wonderful views down the valley to the SW from my property, a
negative impact indeed! In the Supporting Statement of the this planning
application this is completely omitted — a tacit agreement to my concerns!

As stated the Poultry Unit was last in use some 20 years ago and the Glasshouses
were demolished over 30 years ago. However, the iand within the old glasshouse

Page 23



outline has been used recently as a vegetable plot / market garden and the land to
the east of the main shed has had sheep running on it for a number of years. It is
incorrect to say that the property is of no agricultural use.

Great play is made of the fact that the land in contaminated. The land to the west of
the existing poultry shed may be but I do not believe the land to the east of the
shed (which constitutes some 2/3 of the property) is contaminated in any way.

Access to travel and village facilities is also highlighted as a positive for this sight.
It is true the village of Blackburn is only 1 mile away, however, it is the other side
of the A96 dual carriageway and there is no light controlied crossing or over bridge
available. Indeed in the last few years two neighbouring families have moved away
due to the difficuities of children accessing the village school and facilities.

I would also like to comment on the access track and its junction with Clinterty
Road. The track is a very rough and deeply rutted track which is constantly being
used by the farmer to access his fields. The junction is quite close to a very sharp
blind uphill bend and I do not think is a suitable access to housing.

The property is in the greenbelt and has recenty been used for the raising of sheep.
I think it would be inapprporiate for a planning application for houses (especially
with one of them so close to my my land) to be approved.

In the Delegated Report of the previous application the reasons for refusal were —
Green Belt Policy, Transfort/Sustainability, Design, and Precedent. Although the
new application addresses the design issues the other reasons for refusal still
remain. ‘ :

Accordingly I wish to object to the this‘_Plan_n'i'ng Application.

Derek B Pinches

Page 24



MEMO

To R Forbes Date 25/04/2017
Planning & Infrastructure

Your Ref.| 170395
Our Ref.

From | Flooding

Email | pa.flooding@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Dial 01224 53 2387

Fax

Planning application no. 170395

CiTy COUNCIL

Flooding

Communities, Housing and
Infrastructure

Aberdeen City Council
Business Hub 11,

2nd Floor West,

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen AB10 1AB

We would request that the applicant consider Rain water attenuation storage such as water
butts are incorporated in the design. However this does not form a condition to be met prior
to approval. In order to not increase the surface water run off, we would strongly recommend
the adoption of permeable block paving. However this does not form a condition to be
completed prior to approval.

Regards
Katy Joy Goodall - Flooding & Coastal

Pete Leonard

Corporate Director

Page 25


mailto:pa.flooding@aberdeencity.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Comments for Planning Application 170395/DPP

Application Summary

Application Number: 170395/DPP

Address: Burnside Poultry Units Little Clinterty Aberdeen AB21 OTL

Proposal: Erection of two detached dwellings, formation of associated private garden ground and
car parking (Resubmission of previous application ref: 161777/DPP).

Case Officer: Robert Forbes

Customer Details
Name: Mr a e s wilson
Address: The Gables, Little Clinterty, Kinellar ab21 Otl

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:l refer to planning application 170395/DPP and make the following comments and
objections.

We object to the application as it does not comply or fit with existing policy In respect to preferred
uses within the Greenbelt as acknowledged in the application ref para 6.4. The application also
acknowledges in para 5.9 that the proposal does not propose a use which strictly fits with NE2
LDP,

We specifically refer back to the rejected planning permission for a dwelling house on an adjacent
site council ref A2/2173 which was rejected on 10th April 2003.This rejection has we believe set a
precedent for attempts to build in this particular area of rural land at Little Clinterty within the
Aberdeen city council remit. Also approval of this application would reverse this precedent and
lead to further potential undesirable development in the adjacent and surrounding rural area.

In the application continued reference is made to planning application 141627 at the Mill. We
consider this has little in common which this application apart from the demolition of an old
building. The area at Mill is well set back from the road in a recess and the proposed dwellings are
completely compatible with the existing adjacent comparatively new housing.

Of particular concern on the proposal to erect two dwelling houses at Burnside Poultry unit is the
detrimental visual impact on the area, This will be particularly marked when coming from the North
side from the A96. The two new proposed dwelling houses are completely incompatible with the
surrounding area and existing dwellings and will be a sore blot on the landscape. There is
reference in 2.4 to existing mature lodge-pine trees which will offer a degree of screening from
Clinterty road, we consider this screening impact to be virtually non-existent.

Further concern to us is the access proposed from the new dwellings to the Clinterty road.
Currently the road area around the proposed junction is very dangerous and of increasing concern
to existing residents. The Z bend is extremely hazardous and drivers continue to approach it

Page 27



recklessly from both the north and south as the road is used a regular commute and cut through.
The application acknowledges there is limited visibility to the south when using the new proposed
junction. We consider the increased risk associated with the proposed access both during
construction and subsequent dwellings to be unacceptable. Following on from construction there
will be an increased risk due the increased traffic from the new residents (as vehicular use is the
only real means of transport from this remote rural location) and also from post vans, house
deliveries, oil deliveries etc.

We also note that the application makes reference to this being a commercial undertaking and
acknowledges there will be a residual profit from this proposed development.

Page 28



MEMO

ABERDEEN

CiTy COUNCIL

To Planning & Infrastructure Date 03/05/2017 Roads Projects

Your Ref.| DPP 170395 Enterprise, Planning &
Infrastructure

Aberdeen City Council
Our Ref. Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North
Marischal College
Broad Street
Aberdeen AB10 1AB

From | Roads Projects

Email | chmcshane@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Dial 01224 522687
Fax

Planning application No 170395

| have considered the above planning application and have the following
observations:

1 Development Proposal

1.1 | note that the application is for erection of two detached dwellings, formation of
associated private garden ground and car parking at Burnside Poultry Units,
Little Clinterty.

Walking and Cycling

2.1 The site sits in a fairly remote location, therefore is not readily accessible by
walking or cycling. The nearest cycle route, leading into the city centre, is
approximately 5km away from the development site. This would deem the site
to be highly dependent on vehicular access.

Public Transport

3.1 There are no public transport routes in close proximity to the development, with
the nearest bus stop sitting approximately 1km away. In addition to this, there
will be a new Park & Ride station opening approximately 4km away from the
development. This facility will provide public transport into the city centre by
bus. There will also be a waiting room providing toilet and shower facilities for
public use. In addition to public transport, there will also be availability here to
join onto the local cycle routes, and cycle stands & lockers will be available for
use.

4 Parking

4.1 Parking at both properties in the development has been accounted for, with
both garages and driveways providing adequate parking for the size of the
properties.

Pete Leonard
Corporate Director

Page 29



Development Vehicle Access

5.1 The access into both properties in the development will be formed as vehicular
accesses as part of the construction. As the development lies on a country road
with no footway, there will be no requirement for a vehicular footway crossing to
be constructed.

6  Waste Storage and Collection

6.1 No mention has been made of the refuse collection plan. Can the applicant
please advise what plans are in place for this?

Conclusion

7.1 1 have no objection to this application provided that the refuse collection plan is
adequate.

Christine McShane
Technical Officer

Page 30



Consultee Comments for Planning Application 170395/DPP

Application Summary

Application Number: 170395/DPP

Address: Burnside Poultry Units Little Clinterty Aberdeen AB21 OTL

Proposal: Erection of two detached dwellings, formation of associated private garden ground and
car parking (Resubmission of previous application ref: 161777/DPP).

Case Officer: Robert Forbes

Consultee Details

Name: Mr Mark Nicholl

Address: Aberdeen City Council, Marischal College, Broad Street, Aberdeen AB10 1AB
Email: mnicholl@aberdeencity.gov.uk

On Behalf Of: ACC - Environmental Health

Comments
With regard to the above application the following has been assessed;

1. Mains Water Supply

As stated in the planning permission application the applicant proposes to connect to the Scottish
Water mains water supply. Due to the public health risks associated with inadequate private water
supply sources, associated sampling, treatment and system maintenance costs and the risk of

insufficient supply during dry periods, a mains water supply is considered the most appropriate
supply type.

Given the rural location of the proposal and the possibility of an alternative potentially unsuitable
private water supply, | therefore request suitable demonstration by the applicant that a mains
water supply has been established at the property.

| trust this information is of use.

Kind regards

Mark Nicholl
Environmental Health Officer

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Comments for Planning Application 170395/DPP

Application Summary

Application Number: 170395/DPP

Address: Burnside Poultry Units Little Clinterty Aberdeen AB21 OTL

Proposal: Demolition of redundant poultry buildings and erection of two new dwellings (Previous
application ref: 161777/DPP).

Case Officer: Robert Forbes

Customer Details
Name: Ms Clare Horton
Address: Aberdeen City Council, Marischal College, Broad Street, Aberdeen AB10 1AB

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Council Employee

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

Comment:MEMO

Protective Services

Planning and Sustainable Development

Business Hub 15, 3rd Floor South, Marischal College, Aberdeen.

To Robert Forbes

Planning & Sustainable Development

From Clare Horton, Protective Servuces, Environmental Health & Trading Standards

Email

chorton@aberdeencity.gov.uk Date 21.04.17
Tel. 01224 523822

Fax. 01224 523887 Your Ref. 170395

Planning Reference: 170395

Address: Burnside Poultry Units, Little Clinterty, Aberdeen, AB21 OTL

Description: Demolition of redundant poultry buildings and erection of 2No new dwellings.
Applicant: Mr Graham Buchan

We have no objection to the approval of this application. Reports submitted in support of the
Application have identified the presence of significant quantities of asbestos, both in the form of
Asbestos Containing Material (ACM) in the remaining building structure and roof and as ACM and
discrete fibres within the soils and subsoils across the site. In addition, the Stage | Site
Investigation highlights that large amounts of ACM could have been buried on-site when other
former buildings were demolished some time ago. A site investigation to delineate the physical

Page 33



extent, both laterally and horizontally, of asbestos contamination (including fibre counting) is
required to determine risks, to characterise wastes and inform the most cost effective and
environmentally beneficial remedial options for the proposed development. Whilst the main focus
of the site investigation should consider asbestos, if significant Made Ground, or non-natural
material be identified, it may also be necessary to undertake analysis for a wider range of
contaminants. We would therefore recommend that the following conditions are attached to any
approval:

Condition 1A

No development shall take place unless it is carried out in full accordance with a scheme to
address any significant risks from contamination on the site that has been approved in writing by
the planning authority.

The scheme shall follow the procedures outlined in "Planning Advice Note 33 Development of
Contaminated Land" and shall be conducted by a suitably qualified person in accordance with best
practice as detailed in "BS10175 Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of
Practice" and other best practice guidance and shall include:

1. an investigation to determine the nature and extent of contamination

2. a site-specific risk assessment

3. a remediation plan to address any significant risks and ensure the site is fit for the use proposed
4. verification protocols to demonstrate compliance with the remediation plan

Condition 1B

No building(s) on the development site shall be occupied unless

1. any long term monitoring and reporting that may be required by the approved scheme of
contamination or remediation plan or that otherwise has been required in writing by the planning
authority is being undertaken

and

2. a report specifically relating to the building(s) has been submitted and approved in writing by the
planning authority that verifies that remedial works to fully address contamination issues related to
the building(s) have been carried out,

unless the planning authority has given written consent for a variation.

The final building on the application site shall not be occupied unless a report has been submitted
and approved in writing by the planning authority that verifies that the remedial works have been
carried out in full accordance with the remediation plan,

unless the planning authority has given written consent for a variation.

- reason: to ensure that the site is suitable for use and fit for human occupation

Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Detailed Planning Permission

170395/DPP: Demolition of agricultural buildings and erection of 2No new
dwelling houses and detached garage with associated car parking at Burnside
Poultry Units

Little Clinterty

Kinellar

Aberdeen

AB21 0TL

All plans and supporting documentation available at the following link:

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applicaiton/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OIHD9ZBZ16400

Please select one of the following

No observations/comments.

Would make the following comments (please specify below). Y

Would recommend the following conditions are included with any grant of
consent.

<

Would recommend the following comments are taken into consideration in the Y
determination of the application.

Object to the application (please specify reasons below).

COMMENTS

Page 37



COMMENTS

Waste Services response regarding application 161777, Burnside poultry units
As | understand, it is the development of 2 houses.

Each new property will be provided with:
e 1 x 180 litre wheeled bin for general waste
e 1 x 240 litre wheeled bin for mixed recycling
e 1 x 240litre wheeled bin for food and garden waste (kitchen caddy,
bioliners and associated information will be provided as well)

It is pertinent to note that these services will be provided taking account of the
following:

Specific points
e All the waste containers must be presented on the main road (B979) only on
the collection day and must be removed from the kerbside as soon as
possible. No containers should be permanently stored on the kerbside.

General points

e No excess should be stored out with the containment provided. Information
for extra waste uplift is available to residents at either
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/wasteaware or by phoning 03000 200 292.

e A path should be provided to the vehicle collection point which is level with
bin stores. Pathways to the collection vehicles should be free of obstacles
with provision of a slope should there be any gradient; so that any
containment can be easily moved to the kerbside on collection days.
Pathways should be suitably paved to allow bins to be moved safely.

Developers must contact Aberdeen City Council using the above details a
minimum of two months before properties will be occupied. Bins MUST be on
site prior to residents moving into properties.

In the final stages of completion, a representative from Aberdeen City Council’s
Waste team will assess the site to ensure that all of our considerations have been
implemented.

Should you have any further queries or wish to discuss these comments further,
please do not hesitate to contact me.

Responding Officer: Hannah Lynch
Date: 21.04.2017

Email: halynch@aberdeencity.co.uk
Ext: 89256

Please note: Unless agreed with the Case Officer, should no response be received
by the expiry date specified above it will be assumed your Service has no comments
to make.

Should further information be required, please let the Case Officer know as soon as
possible in order for the information to be requested to allow timeous determination
of the application.

Page 38


http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/wasteaware

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



T obed

Environmental Policy team response - planning application, masterplan, and development framework

consultations

PROPOSAL DETAILS

Enter details in this column

Application / plan name

Erection of two detached dwellings, formation of associated private garden ground and car parking (Resubmission of
previous application ref: 161777/DPP). at Burnside Poultry Units, Little Clinterty, Aberdeen

Application reference number /
reference

170395/DPP

Planning case officer

Robert Forbes

Date of request 24/05/17
Date response required 15/05/17
Date of response 15/05/17

EP team (name of responder)

Lina-Elvira Back

Other EP team members

Anne-Marie Gauld
Deb Munro

Other Services consulted by EP

Choose an item.
Specify:

POLICY AND GUIDANCE

Relevant policy and legislation

Enter text in this column

Relevant LDP policies

NE8 - Natural Heritage

D2 - Landscape

D1 - Quality of Placemaking by Design
NES - Trees and Woodlands




2t obed

Relevant Supplementary
Guidance/Technical Advice Note

SG/TAN;

Townscape and Landscape Supplementary Guidance

Natural Environment Supplementary Guidance
Natural Heritage: Section 4 - Protected Species; Section 5 — Non-designated Sites; Section 6 — Principles for
Protecting and Enhancing Natural Heritage
Trees and Woodlands: Section 7

Other key references, e.g. ACC
strategies, Local Biodiversity
Action Plan, Scottish Planning
Policy, National Planning
Framework, TPO/Cons area/GSN
GIS tool

Other Key References
British Standard 5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction. Recommendations

COMMENTS
Topic Comments (including compliance, non-compliance and reasoning)
Natural Heritage The site does not fall within an area highlighted as having habitat suitable for bats, however, the ecology and biodiversity section of
(Anne-Marie the Sustainability Report states that it will be considering a number of measures including bird and bats boxes. If it is suspected that
Gauld) bats are using the buildings or trees within the site, then a bat survey must be conducted and reference must be made to section 7 of
the Natural Heritage SG for Bats and Development.
This is bird breeding season and a survey of the buildings and trees for breeding birds must be carried out. Old farm buildings can be
suitable for bird species such as swallows, house martins and barn owls and, therefore, should be included in the survey as well as any
trees affected by the proposed development.
We welcome the consideration of measures to support the diversity wildlife that has been noted at the site and would request an
ecological survey to support this and establish what is within and around the site. This will help to establish what mitigation measures
and enhancement features would be best suited for the site.
Landscape 1. Thessite is located within a relatively flat, open, predominantly rural landscape characterised by sparsely scattered, small
(Deb Munro) nucleated groups of dwellings and farm buildings, and with very infrequent, small groups of trees or shelter belts. It is highly




¢ obed

visible from public roads around the area, including the A96 which is a gateway to the city. The open character of this
landscape provides a setting and foreground for views to Tyrebagger Hill.

2. There appears to be little significant difference to the previous refused proposal. The dwellings are of about the same size and
the garden areas reduced. The two dwelling are spaced apart along the track, and one in particular is detached from the
existing cluster of properties to the south east.

3. Referto policy D2. No reference has been made to the Aberdeen Landscape Character Assessment, and the character and
sensitivities of the surrounding landscape. The reference to landscape proposals is inadequate to demonstrate how
landscape impacts will be addressed. In the design statement it states briefly that ‘the boundaries will be landscaped and
planted to age gracefully while screening neighbouring properties without the need for tall timber fences’. More detail is
required on how this would be achieved in reality. It would not be possible to prevent future timber fences being erected
around the plots, thereby urbanising the character of the landscape.

4. In conjunction with recent development in this area, the cumulative effects of increasing the size and number of groups of
houses/buildings in this landscape needs to be considered.

5. If the area of stone and rubble is unsuitable for cultivation (area 1, page 7 of the Design Statement), and cannot be used for
agriculture, how can this be converted to garden, which would also need cultivated ground?

Trees
(Lina-Elvira Back)

As trees are present on site and within 15m of the development boundary, as per our SG, all trees within the site boundary and within
15 m of the proposed development should be surveyed; the tree survey should be undertaken to BS5837:2012 and
must include a:

= Survey schedule;

=  Tree Constraints Plan;

= Arboricultural Impact Assessment;

=  Tree Protection Plan;

= Tree Planting/Landscaping Plan and, where necessary,

=  Arboricultural Method Statements
As a tree survey has not be submitted, we cannot assess the impact this development will have on trees, especially those within 15 m
but outwith the site boundary.




17 ebed

CONCLUSION

Summary of environmental effects of concern and further information required

Natural Heritage
More surveys are required to be able to assess the impact of the proposals;
1. Request an ecological survey to establish what diversity of species is there and should include surveys of bats, breeding birds (including barn owl,
house martins and swallows), amphibians and invertebrates.
2. Mitigation and enhancement plans should reflect the results of the ecological survey.

Landscape
Summary

1. Aside from other policy issues, e.g. Greenbelt, the current layout is not significantly different from previous refused proposals, and presents a new
residential development extending, rather than clustered around, the current group of properties.

2. The development is in a relatively flat, open, predominantly rural landscape characterised by scattered, small groups of dwellings and houses. It is
highly visible from public roads including the A96.

3. Thereis no evidence of consideration of landscape character, or an indication as to how the urbanisation of the plots through introduction of
fences can be avoided in future. There is no information provided on structural landscape proposals to help integrate the development with the
character of the surrounding landscape.

4. There is a potential issue of cumulative effects with other recent development in the area.

5. We query how the poor ground to the west can be cultivated as a garden when it cannot be cultivated for agriculture.

Trees
Further survey is required to be able to assess the impact of the development on trees;
1. Atree survey should be undertaken to BS5837:2012 and must include a:
o Survey schedule;
Tree Constraints Plan;
Arboricultural Impact Assessment;
Tree Protection Plan;
Tree Planting/Landscaping Plan and, where necessary,
Arboricultural Method Statements

O O O O O




Gy abed

EP TEAM ADMIN

Environmental Policy Team
monitoring

Enter text in this column

Site visited?

No




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



MEMO ABERDEN

CitTy COUNCIL

To Robert Forbes Date Date 13/06/2017 Planning & Sustainable

Senior Planner Development

Development Management | Your Ref.| x/DPP Communities, Housing
CHI and Infrastructure

our Ref. | x/DPP Aberdeen City Council

01224 Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North
Marischal College
Broad Street
Aberdeen AB10 1AB

From | Anne-Marie Gauld/Lina-Elvira Back
CHI Environmental Policy

Email | 2 mgauld@aberdeencity.gov.uk/liback@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Dial | 91224 522768 / 522003 Tel 01224 523470

Fax 01224523180
Minicom 01224 522381
DX 529452, Aberdeen 9
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

PLANNING APPLICATION 170395/DPP
ERECTION OF TWO DETACHED DWELLINGS, FORMATION OF ASSOCIATED
PRIVATE GARDEN GROUND AND CAR PARKING

COMMENTS FROM ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY TEAM

Dear Robert,
Bat survey report

The bat survey report has just made available for our team to review. The survey, which
was conducted last August/September, and associated report would appear to be fair and
we are satisfied that no bats were found during the survey.

Comments from agents

With regards to the comments from the agent, these would appear to contradict the detail in
the Sustainability Report which stated “The site at Burnside boasts a diversity of wildlife
which varies with the seasons, including numerous species of birds, insects and flora.” It
goes on to say that “The development aspires to protect and enhance the rich natural
heritage of the land by creating a wildlife habitat which provides a haven for existing species
and encourages other native species to become established and thrive in a bio-diverse
environment.”

There was no ecological report to support these statements, hence why it was asked for in
our previous comments. The ecological report is required to show exactly what species are
present so that it is clear what species could be impacted by the development, and to ensure
that the mitigation suggested is appropriate for the potential impacts.

Page 47



Whether or not we had been on site ourselves, we would not have conducted a survey and
our previous response would have been the same. We have yet to see an ecological survey
to support these statements and so are unable to assess this aspect of the application.

Yours sincerely

Anne-Marie Gauld
Environmental Planner

Page 48



Agenda Iltem 2.3

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

100070835-001

SERDEEN

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting

on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)

X]

Applicant

Agent

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title:

Other Title:

First Name: *

Last Name: *

Company/Organisation

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Mr

Graham

Buchan

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1

(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

89

School Drive

Aberdeen

Scotland

AB24 1TH

Page 49

Page 1 of 4



Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Aberdeen City Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar Aberdeen, AB21 OTL

811899

Northing

Easting

383317

Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your propesal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the

application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *

{Max 500 characters}

Demolition of redundant poultry buildings and erection of twoe new dwellings (Previous application ref: 161777/DPP}).

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning autherity? *

Application for planning permission {including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).

D Application for planning permission in principle.

D Further applicaticn.

D Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

Page 50

Page 2 of 4




What does your review relate to? *

Refusal Notice.

D Grant of permissicn with Conditicns imposed.

D No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning autherity’'s decision {or failure tc make a decision}. Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require tc be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters}

Note: you are unlikely to have a further cpportunity to add to vour statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the infermation you want the decision-maker to take inte account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application {or at
the time expiry of the period of determination}, unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

In this Submission to the Local Review Body, the Applicant seeks a review of the decision to refuse planning permission. All
matters which | require to be taken inte account in determining the review are to be provided in a separate Suppoerting Statement

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the D Yes No
Determination cn your applicaticn was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the bex below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appcinted officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters}

Submission to the Local Review Body of Aberdeen City Council dated 18th October 2017, SG Cladding Price Quote for Roofing
Remediation Costs, Morris Senior Demolition Contractors -Demolition Price Quote, WSD Scotland - Financial Costings Appraisal
, W. Michie Poultry Consultant -Feasibilty Study.Ethos Envirenmental Report - Condition of Asbestes Recof 2007. The Applicant
alse wishes to rely on all the supporting decumentation, plans and drawings orginally submitted with the Planning Application

Application Details

Please provide details of the application and decision.

What is the application reference number? * 170395/DPP
What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 18/04/2017
What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 26/07/2017

Page 3 of 4

Page 51




Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the helding of che or mere hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

D Yes No

Please indicate what precedure {or combinaticn of procedures} yvou think is most appropriate for the handling of vour review. You may
select more than cne option if you wish the review to be a combination of procedures.

Please select a further procedure *

Helding one or more hearing sessions on specific matters

Please explain in detail in your own words why this further procedure is required and the matters set cut in your statement of appeal it
will deal with? {Max 500 characters)

The applicant believes that due to the complexity of some of the issues arising out of the submission for review, that an
opportunity to present details to the Review Panel would be beneficial. Please note that a more detailed explanation for seeking a
hearing is contained in the attached Written Submission

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * Yes D No
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers o entry? * Yes D No

Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may resultin your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this Yes D No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name D Yes D No N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what Yes D No
procedure {or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set cut all matters you consider
reguire to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all doecuments, material and evidence which you intend tc rely on Yes D No
{e.g. plans and Drawings} which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further applicaticn e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning conditicn or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Declare — Notice of Review
I1"Me the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.
Declaraticn Name: Mr Graham Buchan

Declaraticn Date: 19/10/2017

Page 4 of 4

Page 52




SUBMISSION TO THE LOCAL REVIEW
BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

BURNSIDE POULTRY UNIT
LITTLE CLINTERTY
KINELLAR

REF. No: 170395/DPP

GRAHAM BUCHAN

18th OCTOBER 2017

Page 53



CONTENTS

Page

2 Introduction

3 History of the Site / Initial Enquires Regarding Planning Permission

4 Delegated Officer’s Reasons for Refusal

7 Comparisons - The Mill and Burnside Poultry Unit

8 Inconsistencies in Site Evaluations and Outcomes

12 Contamination Issues

13 Sustainability/ Re- Use of Brownfield Sites in the Mill Application -
Relevance to Burnside

16 Precedent - Refusal of Planning Permission at Adjacent Site 2003

17 Sustainable Transport

20 Sustainability and Re-use of Materials / Trees

21 Connection to Public Sewer v Septic Tank

22 Other Matters Raised - Impact on Nearby Houses
Community Council

22 Roads / Public Safety

Conclusions

Page 54



SUBMISSION TO THE LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF REDUNDANT POULTRY BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED
STRUCTURES AND ERECTION OF TWO DWELLING - HOUSES AT BURNSIDE POULTRY
UNIT, LITTLE CLINTERTY, KINELLAR
REF. No: 170395/DPP

Introduction

An Application for detailed planning permission was submitted under Ref No
61777/DPP and was refused under delegated powers by the appointed officer Mr
Robert Forbes.

In a subsequent Application, REF No: 170395/DPP, being the subject of this
Submission to the Local Review Body, detailed planning permission was submitted for
the demolition of a redundant poultry building, the demolition of the substantial remains
of a previous poultry building and the removal of various slurry tanks and for the
erection of two dwelling houses.

The second application was made under the “free go” procedure and was broadly
similar to the original application. Some changes were made in the second application,
mainly in regard to the size, design and siting of one of the proposed houses in order to
address issues raised by the Delegated Officer in the Report of Handling of the first
application.

In this Submission to the Local Review Body, the Applicant seeks a review of the
decision to refuse planning permission.

A number of issues, including transport and sustainability were cited in the reasons for
refusal however the Applicant feels that the central issue to be focussed upon before
any others need be examined, is the principle of development at the Burnside site.

It is evident that the main reason for refusal was the Delegated Officer's view that,
notwithstanding a recent precedent in the approval of much larger development of four
houses at the nearby Clinterty Mill, that the principle of development at Burnside should
not be supported at Burnside.

The Applicant seeks to show the similarities between the Mill and Burnside sites in
terms of location, setting, redundant nature of structures and remediation requirements.
In considering these remarkable similarities, it is difficult, in the opinion of the Applicant
and his planning advisors to reconcile how the Mill application met with approval but the

Page 55



Burnside application was refused and now respectfully requests that the Local Review
Body review the Application having regard to the reasons set out below.

History of the Site

The Applicant Mr Graham Buchan, operated Burnside Poultry Unit as a commercial
poultry farm, producing hatching eggs and replacement layer chickens. At the time of
the Applicant’s entry to the Holding in 1984, only one of the original three poultry
buildings remained, the other two having been partially demolished.

Due to the relatively small scale nature of the poultry rearing enterprise at Burnside
coupled with the need for extensive repairs and refurbishment to the Poultry Building,
poultry production ceased around 1996. The internal equipment necessary for the
production of poultry was coming to the end of its useful life and as such, replacement
could not be economically justified. The most significant expense would have been the
replacement of the asbestos cement covered roof which even by then was in a very
poor condition. The extent of water penetration through the cracked and delayered roof
sheets made the use of electrical equipment dangerous. The Poultry Building has been
redundant since that time.

In the intervening period, the asbestos covered roof of the remaining poultry building
has deteriorated significantly and the roof structure itself is now visibly sagging in places
due to water ingress to the structural timbers.

In addition to the existing redundant poultry building there is also located at the north
east corner of the site, the remains of the concrete block walls of a partially demolished
second poultry building.

At the north-west corner of the site are remains of the concrete floor and footings of a
third poultry building. A hard standing area comprised of rubble and stones interspaced
with concrete built slurry tanks makes up a large area of land to the west of the existing
poultry building.

Initial Enquires Regarding Planning Permission

The Applicant initially sought advice from Mr Kristian Smith of the Council’s planning
department when he became aware of a grant of planning permission for four dwelling
houses at the nearby site at the Mill, Clinterty. ( Ref P141627 )

Subsequent communications took place between the Applicant’s agents Annie Kenyon
Architects (AKA) and Mr Smith, where it was established that the Applicant proposed to

Page 56



seek planning approval for the Burnside site on the basis of enabling development of
the derelict parts of the site, similar to that at Clinterty Mill.

The Applicant was familiar with the Clinterty Mill site as it was used for poultry
production around the same time as the Burnside poultry enterprise was in operation
and indeed, there were significant similarities between the two sites.

Both sites were in the Green Belt, both were in a dilapidated state of repair and
redundant of their former use.

Although located in the Green Belt and the Green Space Network, the site at Clinterty
Mill had been approved, the justification for a departure from NE 2 ( Green Belt ) Policy
given in the Report of Handling being using the principle of “enabling development” to
cross - fund the remediation of that site. The Applicant considered that the Council
would be favourably disposed to a granting similar approval for the Burnside site given
the marked similarities to the Mill and precedent for departing from Green Belt Policy
(NE2).

Delegated Officer’s Reasons for Refusal

“Green Belt Policy: The site is not identified as an opportunity site for development or a
site identified for housing development within with the Adopted Local Development
Plan. It lies in open countryside within the green belt and outwith any established
settlement. The proposal therefore conflicts with the Strategic Development Plan (SDP)
which directs development to identified housing sites or existing settlements and
identifies the need for a green belt in order to direct housing pressure elsewhere.
Erection of mainstream housing at the site would conflict with NE2 (green belt) policy.
No adequate justification for approval of the development contrary to the development
plan is considered to exist. The development would result in suburban intrusion into
open countryside contrary to the landscape protection objectives of policies D2
(Landscape), and NE2 (Green Belt).”

“The four houses which were approved at the Mill site were set within a wooded
landscape context which is significantly different from that which exists at the application
site, which is more open and visible from adjacent public roads and therefore potentially
more visually intrusive.”

It is accepted the proposal does not comply with Policy NE2, however there are strong

reasons which would support departing from the policy in relation to the two proposed
house plots and to apply the principle of “enabling development” and to grant approval

Page 57



for the remediation of the brownfield areas within the site. This is particularly significant
in light of the precedent set by the approval of the similar development at Clinterty Mill
( Ref 141627 )

The Burnside Report of Handling states under the heading, Development Principle,
¢ . It is accepted that the remaining building on the site is in a poor structural
condition and the site has remediation constraints”.

The Officer then expresses the view that the supporting feasibility report and planning
statement do not have sufficient weight to justify approval contrary to green belt policy.

The Applicant feels that the array of Reports submitted had not been properly
considered nor given sufficient weight by the Delegated Officer nor is it apparent that
the roof refurbishment costs given in the SG Cladding Quote were given any meaningful
consideration.

Asbestos Report 2007 (Ethos Environmental)
Quotation for Re-roofing Existing Shed 2017 (SG Cladding)
Feasibility Study (Walter Michie Poultry Consultant)

The Ethos Report (2007) highlights that in 2007, 50% of the asbestos cement roofing
sheets of the existing poultry building were cracked and de-layering. The Report also
identified that the remainder of the asbestos sheets were in a poor condition.

In the intervening ten years, it is reasonable to assume that further deterioration in the
condition of the roofing sheets has continued, allowing water ingress to the structural
timbers.

Mr Robert Forbes, the Delegated Officer expressed the opinion in a meeting with the
Applicant and his Agents on 13th February 2017 that the Poultry Building could be

“ easily repaired “ and indeed Mr Forbes appeared to hold the view that the structure
could be economically refurbished.

At the same meeting, Mr Forbes also expressed the opinion that there was a difference
between the Clinterty Mill site and the Burnside site in that Clinterty Mill was comprised
of “ hard standing” and redundant buildings, inferring that the Burnside site was not.

The Planning Officer’s views, both in regard to the economics of repairing the roof and
to the nature of the proposed house sites at Burnside are strongly contested.

Page 58



Quotation for Re-roofing Existing Shed 2017 (SG Cladding)

After the meeting with Mr Forbes and in order to determine the costs of removing and
disposing of the existing degraded asbestos roofing sheets and to re- roof the building,
the Applicant approached a local specialist roofing company SG Cladding, to seek a
price quote for the work.

The Company subsequently tendered a quote of £50,733 for a single skin roof covering
or alternatively, if “composite roof” panels was used, the price would be £59,296.

This quote was lodged along with other supporting documentation which was submitted
to the Council as part of the revised second Planning Application.

It is the clearly stated view of the Delegated Officer in the Report of Handling that, not
only the poultry building, but the whole site is too small to be viable as an agricultural
unit.

Even if it was accepted that it would make economic sense to spend nearly £60,000 on
the refurbishment the poultry building roof, the Applicant contends that a far greater sum
would need to be expended in fitting out the interior with equipment such as poultry
feeders, watering systems, ventilation and a propane gas brooder system for raising
day old chicks.

There is no dispute that the site is not economically viable for agriculture, and it is also
entirely reasonable to question the Officer's bare assumption that the poultry building
could be easily repaired taking into consideration the costs quoted. It is submitted that
this redundant and derelict site, the main building of which continues to decay will fall
into a greater degree of ruin.

The Applicant also disagrees with the distinction made by Mr Forbes between the
nature of the land surfaces of the two proposed house sites.

It is agreed that the Mill site for which four houses have been approved consists mainly
of “ hard standing”, however the plans submitted by the agents for the Applicant clearly
show that at Burnside, there would be no loss areas of land currently used for grazing.
Both of the proposed house plots at Burnside would be located on brownfield land, the
houses being built directly over the footprint of redundant poultry buildings.

As at the Mill development, the house plots would be reclaimed from previously used
brownfield land.

Page 59



Feasibility Report (Walter Michie Poultry Consultant)

This report concludes that Burnside Poultry Unit is not commercially viable due to it's
small size and owing to disproportionate refurbishment costs required to the poultry
building. It is the Applicant’s view that the Officer did not give sufficient or adequate
weight to this Report.

Notwithstanding the Planning Officer's verbally stated view that the Poultry Building
could be easily repaired, it has been demonstrated by the Michie Report, the Ethos
Report of 2007 and the Price Quote from SG Cladding that there exists no economic or
sustainable grounds which would justify the costs of remediation of a Poultry Building
which is not capable of modern poultry production.

The Applicant would respectfully contend that the Delegated Officer’s dismissal of the
well reasoned Reports and apparent failure to give any weight to the Roofing Price
Quote appear to be remiss.

Comparison - Clinterty Mill and Burnside Poultry Unit

Location, Topography and Surrounding Houses, Burnside

The Officer contends that, in contrast to the Clinterty Mill application, the Burnside site
sits in open countryside, however although the Burnside site is visible from a small
section of Clinterty Road from the North, it would be clear to anyone visiting Burnside,
that this site sits in a sheltered valley.

Burnside is not visible to car drivers or pedestrians from the A96, whether approaching
from the roundabout to the west of Blackburn or approaching from the east from the
brow of the hill at Kirkhill Forest, the site being almost completely screened by trees,
bunds and by the topography of the area.

The Burnside site is low lying and the profile of the proposed dwellings will not be seen
on the skyline from any vantage point.

The chosen roofing materials will reproduce the effect of the agricultural roofing
materials of the current and the two previous poultry buildings

Additionally, native trees were planted by the Applicant five years ago and are now at a
height of approximately fifteen feet and these will continue to grow to maturity and will
provide an effective visual screen for Plot One. Two large mature trees are located on
the eastern boundary near Plot Two and in addition there is an established row of native
hedges located on the farm track to the north of the site and, taken together form a
screen which effectively breaks up the outline of the proposed house at Plot 2. The
plans submitted with the Application show that the existing native tree belt at Plot One

Page 60



would be extended along the whole north boundary of the site, screening both proposed
dwellings.

A further objection from the Delegated Officer states that the site is out with any
settlement, however no mention is made of the fact that there is a cluster of four
dwellings adjacent to Burnside and a further two dwellings located a short distance from
the site.

Location, Topography and Surrounding Houses, The Mill

In stark contrast, the Mill application having strikingly similar characteristics to Burnside
in regard to setting in the landscape was approved.

The Burnside Delegated Report states:

“The four houses which were approved at the Mill site were set within a wooded
landscape context which is significantly different from that which exists at the
application site, which is more open and visible from adjacent public roads and
therefore potentially more visually intrusive.”

It is agreed that the four approved houses at the Mill will be partially screened from the
B979 by existing trees, however at the time of approval of the Mill development, any
member of the public walking or driving along that stretch of public road could have
viewed large segments of the existing Mill buildings and parts of the site. The wooded
setting referred to consists of, at the very most two or three rows of well spaced trees
through which the existing Mill buildings are clearly visible.

On 17th October 2017 a few days leading up to the lodging of this Submission, the
Applicant observed that a number of the trees located on the adjoining land to the south
of the Mill site had been removed. The Mill site is considerably more open and almost
the whole site can now be viewed from the B979.

It is clear that even with the existing screening afforded by the remaining trees that the
increased massing of the new housing development will be largely visible from the
public road.

Inconsistencies in Site Evaluations and Outcomes

The Delegated Report for the Mill states under the heading of Proposal-

Page 61



“The site is relatively flat and largely enclosed by a post and wire fence or drystane
dyke, with mature trees providing an effective screen from immediate and longer
viewpoints , although there is a relatively open outlook to the north. To the east is
Millfield House, the applicant’'s home and Cressbrook, with a number of other properties
beyond.To the west there are other residences, largely accessed off and a short
distance from the B976”

In the Delegated Report for Burnside, one of the justifications for refusal states, the site:

. “ lies in open countryside within the green belt and out with any established
settlement. The proposal therefore conflicts with the Strategic Development Plan (SDP)”

Yet The Mill Delegated Report describes that site thus:
“‘there is a relatively open outlook to the” north”

The Mill proposals for four very large dwellings on a site with an open outlook to the
north and also partially visible from the public road found approval but inexplicably, the
Burnside proposals for only two houses with a similarly open outlook to the north and
only partially visible from the public road was refused.

Notwithstanding the comments of the Delegated Officer in the Burnside Delegated
Report in seeking to ascribe an altogether distinctive woodland setting for the Mill when
compared to Burnside, the literal facts on the ground demonstrate that, in reality there is
very little in the way of woodland setting at the Mill, and even less now that trees on
adjacent land have been removed. Furthermore, the openness of the Mill site to the
north is remarkably similar to that at Burnside.

In the context of the Mill site, there could not be nor can there be in the future the
possibility of the imposition of planning conditions to protect existing trees owing to the
fact that none of the “woodland setting” relied upon as a justification by the Delegated
Officer for approving is under the control of the owners of the Mill site.

It is suggested that it would relatively simple and straightforward for the Council in
relation to approving the Burnside proposals to attach conditions regarding the retention
and protection of existing trees and any other trees that are to be planted when the
proposed development is completed, as the relevant land is in the ownership of the
Applicant.

Page 62



10

It is also notable there is one less policy to have to depart from in that, whilst the Mill
site is located within the Green Space Network the Burnside site is not.

Much weight was put by the Delegated Officer on the opinion that, at the Burnside site,
the proposed two houses would not be connected to any existing settlement and
therefore refusal should follow. There is no acknowledgement of the fact that a hamlet
consisting of six dwelling-houses is sited close to Burnside.

To the eastern boundary of Burnside, two houses, Broombank Cottage and Elysium are
immediately adjacent, whilst on the east side of Clinterty Road are a further two houses,
Viewfield and the Gables. Slightly further along Clinterty Road are Chough Cottage and
Woodside. Services such as water and electricity are already available at Burnside.

On any reading of the Mill Delegated Report, one cannot help but be struck by the
extensive justification given for approval, citing as a supporting element, the existence
of established housing nearby:

“The existing context must be considered in the round, and it is for the Planning
Authority to determine whether it would be appropriate to direct development to this
location, as being ‘the right place’. In this respect, although it is not within or adjacent to
an identified existing settlement, there are a number of residential properties within
close proximity, and services to these properties are already in place.”

When comparing the two sites, The Mill and Burnside, it is difficult to comprehend how,
on the one hand the Council, whilst acknowledging the competing planning policies
including Green Belt and the sustainable re-use of brownfield, have decided that in
relation to the Mill, the Green Belt Policy and the Green Space Network can be
departed from, but Burnside, given strikingly similar considerations, the decision was
one of refusal.

Mr Forbes at the meeting on 13th February 2017 expressed the opinion to the
Applicant that there was a difference between the Clinterty Mill site and the Burnside
site, saying that Clinterty Mill was comprised of “hard standing” and redundant buildings,
inferring that the Burnside site was not.

The Delegated Officer’s view is strongly contested. Although both proposed house plots

at Burnside are surrounded by grazing land, the proposed house plots themselves are
to be located on brownfield land and directly over the footprint of redundant structures.

Page 63



11

Plot One would be located on the footprint of a very large former poultry building, of
which the concrete walls form a visible and degraded part of the site. A small area of
land to the south of Plot One would be used for a garden area, however, a similar sized
area of land to the west of Plot One which contains the concrete wall of the former
poultry house would be remediated and returned to grazing land, therefore there would
be no net loss of grazing land overall.

In regard to Plot Two, the proposed dwelling house would be located over the footprint
of the existing redundant and degraded Poultry Building. Any related garden ground
would be reclaimed from the areas containing hard standing to the East of and to the
West sides of the proposed house, an area which is currently comprised of rubble and
an assortment of slurry tanks and soakaways which are remnants of the previous use
as a poultry farm.

Financial Costings Appraisal ( WSD Scotland ) - Burnside

The Applicant’s architects, Annie Kenyon, having also been agents for the Clinterty Mill
project, submitted a fully costed Financial Costings Appraisal in support of the Mill
application.

It is recorded in the Report of Handling for the Mill that the Financial Appraisal was

“ scrutinised by ACC’s Land and Property Assets Team, who are satisfied with the case
made”.

Significantly, although AKA submitted a similar Financial Costings Appraisal prepared
by WSD Scotland in support of the Burnside application, there is no evidence that this
was in turn submitted to the Land and Property Assets Team for their scrutiny. Indeed
there is no indication the WSD Appraisal was even studied or given any weight,
certainly it's appraisal was not referred to in the Report of Handling.

The Mill application was afforded the scrutiny and evaluation of a Financial Costings
Appraisal and this quite correctly bolstered the case for approval, however when it came
to the Burnside process, there is no evidence of such scrutiny and evaluation being
afforded to the Applicant.

This is but one a number of stark differences in which the Mill application and the
Burnside application was viewed and processed.

Page 64



12

Contamination Issues

The aspect of the degree of contamination and, whether such contamination
immediately presents a risk to human health can be said to be a very narrow view of the
redundant and derelict nature of the site and desirability of re-using a brownfield site.

The existing poultry building continues to deteriorate to the extent that the roof structure
is visibly sagging.

It is argued that the Applicant wished to be pro-active and not simply delay and wait for
the roof structure of the poultry building to collapse and thereby incur greater costs in
cleaning up the site.

The Delegated Officer focused on his view that “ the costs associated with the
maintenance/repair of the shed roof are not so exceptional to justify approval of
housing.”

The Michie Report, the Ethos Asbestos Report of 2007 and the SG Cladding Report,
taken together support the Applicant’s view that there is no realistic possibility of the
site being returned to poultry production and clearly shows that it is neither a
sustainable or economic option.

The Applicant believes that overall, a particularly restricted view has been taken by the
Delegated Officer in weighing the facts of the Burnside application when compared to

the justifications given by the Council when approving the Mill application.

Appraisal of Extent of Structural Damage/Redundancy - The Mill

Nowhere in the Mill application are there independent documented reports which would
confirm the redundant nature of the buildings in terms of agricultural use or indeed any
report or qualified survey which details the extent of dereliction or structural damage on
that site. Nor had the Council sought confirmation, instead, there appears an
uncorroborated statement in the Description of the Report of Handling:

“Currently it contains a number of large and dilapidated former agricultural and mill
buildings, of utilitarian form and no particular architectural merit. It is indicated, although
largely self evident, that these buildings are no longer structurally stable and in relatively
urgent need of demolition.”

Page 65



13

Sustainability/ Re- Use of Brownfield Sites in the Mill Application - Relevance to
Burnside

The Mill ( under ) Planning Policy

“The spatial strategy of the LDP recognises the benefit of redeveloping previously
used sites and that these make a huge contribution to the overall sustainability aims
and recognises that the city needs to expand beyond its existing edges to address the
various drivers to support growth (para. 2.3).

Burnside

The proposed house plots at Burnside are previously used sites and redevelopment
of such redundant and deteriorating structures can readily be described as
sustainable.

In the Section titled Reasons for Recommendation in the Mill Report of Handling it
states:

“With particular reference to ‘Brownfield Sites’ it notes that redevelopment is important
in regeneration, removing local eyesores, bringing land back into effective use. There
can be difficulties in site preparation, but generally such development is inherently
sustainable — such as recycling land and helping to maintain local services (para.
2.13). Although it is noted that there is no discussion of brownfield sites within the
greenbelt.”

Burnside
There is no doubt that the proposed house sites at Burnside falls into the category of

an eyesore in their current state and the Applicant’s proposal to bring the land back
into effective use resonates with the spirit of the above clause.

Page 66



14

The Mill

“The site lies within both the identified green belt and green space network, as
designated in the LDP. In this regard site specific policies NE1 (Green Space
Network) and NE2 (Green Belt) relate.”

Burnside

The Burnside site is located within the Green Belt but is out with the Green Space
Network therefore there is less of a tension between different policies.

The Mill ( under ) Other Relevant Material Considerations

“It is important to consider the current site context and its negative impact on the
value of the Green Belt. It is also appropriate to give considerations to options which
would see viable alternative sustainable development facilitate/ enable addressing the
impacts of the current site characteristics.”

Burnside

The already derelict nature of the proposed house at Plot 1, the continuing structural
deterioration of the Poultry Building along with the array of concrete footings and
slurry tanks to the west of the site certainly have a negative impact on the Green Belt.
It is contended that the proposal to replace these structures is indeed a viable
alternative which is not only sustainable in the long term, but puts to good use
previously used land that could not otherwise be economically brought back into a
state befitting the locality.

The Mill ( under ) Evaluation

Page 67




15

“In relation to the green belt location it is considered that, although the LDP policy
context does not directly permit such development, that directing economically viable
and sustainable development to this degraded site, which has a negative impact on
amenity and the overall value of this part of the green belt, is appropriate and would
enable and support its positive regeneration (Para 49).”

Burnside

Just as in the Mill application, approving the proposed Burnside development would
enable and support its positive regeneration. The alternative is to allow the existing
poultry building to degenerate further and fall into a greater state of structural decay
and to simply abandon the other parts of the site which are blighted with large areas
of derelict concrete walls and slurry tanks. Without the enabling of redevelopment and
the cross funding generated thereby, the affected areas of the site cannot be
effectively and appropriately utilised.

Mill ( under ) Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan

“The city of Aberdeen has ambitious growth plans and the delivery of housing is a
core tenet of the strategy. The main route of delivering housing numbers is via
significant land releases, much of which is on formerly undeveloped green belt land.
However, the value of ‘windfall’ brownfield sites cannot be discounted and subject to
such sites being considered appropriate places, and not degrading or reducing the
protection of high value locations, should be supported.”

Burnside

The two proposed houses would undoubtedly be regarded as “ windfall” sites through
re-use of degraded and unused land.

Page 68




16

The Delegated Officer in the Report of Handling states that in terms of Design of the
proposed houses at Burnside:

“It is considered that the proposed house designs are in themselves of high quality and
contain features of rural character. It is considered that the finishing materials and
appearance of the houses would be of an acceptable design quality in terms of the
expectations of policy D1”

It is the Applicant’s view that, given the support afforded by the Council to the Mill
application and, considering the almost identical factors in the history and current state
of Burnside that the Council should support the remediation and redevelopment
proposals submitted.

The high quality of the proposed houses which has been recognised by the Delegated
Officer would transform and enhance what are redundant and derelict brownfield sites
within the Greenbelt.

Precedent - Refusal of Planning Permission 2003

The Delegated Officer cites precedent as a contributory factor to refuse planning
permission at Burnside. Planning Permission for a dwelling house at Little Clinterty
Farm was refused in 2003. The context in which that decision was arrived at however
was manifestly unlike the Burnside application in that the proposed site comprised of
prime agricultural land which was at the time of application in active agricultural use,
being part of a working farm. That site is located immediately adjacent to the public
Clinterty Road whilst the Burnside site is accessed by the privately owned farm road
which itself is set well back from the public road.

No part of the proposed site could have been described as brownfield nor did it contain
redundant, dilapidated or decaying structures as is evident at the two proposed house
sites at Burnside, indeed the two sites are entirely dissimilar.

It is therefore submitted that the 2003 application for a house at Little Clinterty Farm,
not being faintly comparable should not be regarded as a suitable point of reference in
the determination of the Burnside application.

Page 69



17

Sustainable Transport

Among issues raised by the Delegated Officer in justifying his recommendation for
refusal were matters related to transport and sustainability. Although the principle of
allowing enabling development at Burnside is at the heart of this Submission, where
subsidiary competing policies such as sustainable transport do arise in the evaluation of
the proposed development, the requirements of such competing policies can be
justifiably relaxed or departed from in the context of encouraging the re-use of
brownfield sites. Long term sustainability can also be demonstrated by the re-use of
existing private road accesses and services, something that is unquestionably evident in
Burnside proposal.

It is accepted by the Applicant that the transport provision in relation to the two
proposed dwellings at Burnside will be largely car dependant. Given the previous use of
the site as a working poultry farm which generated daily vehicular traffic of staff and the
arrival and departure of large bulk feed and gas delivery lorries to the site to three very
large poultry buildings, it is clear that any vehicular traffic will not see an increase and
would consist largely of traffic on a domestic scale.

The opening of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route will have a significant effect in
curtailing the use of Clinterty Road as a “rat-run” and it is anticipated that the volume of
traffic will reduce dramatically making that road much more suitable for walking and
cycling.

Comparisons can be made between the Clinterty Mill application which, although had
transport issues to be reconciled, nevertheless found favour when taken in the round.
The Mill development consisting of four houses is situated approximately 1.5 km from
the junction of the A96 but interestingly, Burnside is only approximately 1 km away from
the A96.

The B979 connecting the Mill development to the A96 is a tortuous winding road with at
least five sharp bends. In many places the road has no verge having been worn away,
leaving quite steep drops to the low lying areas of the forest floor. There are no
footpaths anywhere along this road from the Mill site leading to the A96.

It cannot be said that, in terms of walking and cycling the B979 lends itself to the aims of
connectivity and sustainable transport such as walking and cycling.

Page 70



18

Pedestrians seeking to access bus services would need to walk from the Mill along a
winding unlit road to reach the A96 in order to catch a bus travelling in the direction of
Blackburn/Inverurie.

In order to catch a bus into Aberdeen, pedestrians walking from Clinterty Mill would
need to negotiate crossing four lanes of the busy A96 where there are no pedestrian
crossings or traffic islands.

Although the Mill development does not lend itself to readily safe and accessible public
transport, the Council decided to approach the determination of the application “in the
round” and reasoned that, despite these drawbacks that the regeneration of the Mill site
was desirable and inherently sustainable and that these difficulties were not a barrier to
approving the development.

Having considered the Council’s rationale in approving the Clinterty Mill proposals, the
Applicant and his agents were surprised and somewhat astonished at Delegated
Officer's assessment in the Burnside Report of Handling in regard to sustainable
transport:

“Although the site is located close to Blackburn, it lies in open countryside and is poorly
connected to urban areas by sustainable transport means. Occupants would be
required to walk about 1km along an unlit country and with no footways to access
facilities at Blackburn. There is no bus service on the adjacent public road and no
convenient / safe pedestrian crossing on the A96. Public transport would not be
available within 400m of the site, in conflict with the Council’s guidance regarding
transport. Although alternative access is available via a farm track, outwith the site, this
is unsurfaced and unlit and is not under the applicant’s control. Although the site is
claimed to be located within cycling distance of Dyce, Westhill and Kingswells, the
intervening topography and high level / speed of vehicle traffic is likely to discourage
cycling. Accordingly it is considered that the development would be unduly car
dependent, and would therefore conflict with the objectives of policies T2 and T3 and
with the SDP objective of reducing the need to travel.”

At mentioned above the Applicant accepts some limitations in regard to pedestrian
access at Burnside, however it is clear that the Delegated Officer appears to have been
distinctly selective in compiling the facts in regard to this. Some parts of the above
statement on any reading, fail to highlight fully the sustainable transport options which
are in fact available from Burnside.

Page 71



19

It is agreed that there would be a total walk of about 1 km from Burnside in order to
access a bus service on the A96, however the Clinterty Road is very straight right up to
the junction at Roadside Steadings.

Compared to a 1.5 km walk from the Mill along the B979 which is tortuous and contains
a number of blind bends, the Burnside route is in any analysis much safer. As
mentioned above, the opening of the AWPR will certainly see a huge reduction of
vehicular traffic on Cinterty Road.

In order to catch a bus, a pedestrian need only walk 50 meters from where the
Roadside Steading junction meets the old A96 to join a paved and lit walkway which
runs from Roadside Cottage to the Clinterty Roundabout. There is a pedestrian traffic
island at the Roundabout and from there a lit walkway into the village of Blackburn
where a number of bus services run to Inverurie to the west and into Aberdeen.

For pedestrians or cyclists, access can also be taken along the 90 meter west arm of
the farm road at Burnside leading to Little Clinterty Farm where there is a signed public
footpath which also leads to the Clinterty Roundabout traffic island.The public footpath
through Little Clinterty Farm is regularly used by the applicant and his family and also by
local people and was constructed and is maintained by the landowner through public
funding.

It is also noteworthy that the existence of this public footpath allowing pedestrian and
cycle connectivity from Blackburn to Westhill will enable wider recreational opportunities
in the countryside for residents of the proposed houses at Burnside.

Completely absent from the Officer's assessment of sustainable transport options were
references to the underpass located at Bishopton Farm just under 1km from Burnside.

Not only is the underpass only a short walk away from the proposed dwellings at
Burnside, it is also lit and has a separate footpath which leads to an official Inverurie to
Aberdeen bus stop on the A96.

Pedestrians wishing to travel in the direction of Blackburn and Inverurie may access the
official bus stop by way of a lit pedestrian pathway also at Bishopton Farm.

Users of bus services, whether travelling into Aberdeen or to Blackburn / Inverurie,
would have no need to venture onto the A96 unlike the situation which prevails at the
Mill Development where pedestrians will need to venture onto and cross four lanes of
traffic in order to reach a bus stop to travel into Aberdeen.

Page 72



20

The approval of the Mill application, notwithstanding a greater distance from the A96, a
considerably tortuous B979 as the main access road and a complete absence of
footpaths and underpass, demonstrates a precedent to depart from some policies when
there is justification to do so.

The Applicant believes that the transport issues which have been partly relied upon by
the Delegated Officer to justify refusal of the Burnside application do not present
insurmountable difficulties.

This is particularly so when contrasting the even greater latitude shown by the Council
in allowing the Mill to be approved.

It is submitted that any negative aspects of sustainable transport can be reconciled in
the wider context of the regeneration and sustainability in bringing a redundant and
brownfield site back into use as exemplified in the determination of the Mill application.

Sustainability and Re-use of Materials

The Applicant disagrees with the comments in the Burnside Report of Handling that the
re-use of materials was not addressed in the Application as this was referred to in the
demolition price quote provided by Morris Senior, Demolition Contractors. The
specification includes for the crushing of all inert materials such as stone, concrete
walling and floor pads and for them to be stored on site for use on the development.
Similarly, all wood waste was to be transported for chipping and subsequent re-use
off-site. It is suggested that sustainable re-use of materials could easily be covered by
planning conditions imposed by the Council.

Trees

The comments regarding the lack of references to the treatment of existing trees can, it
is suggested be addressed by planning conditions, although it is drawn to the attention
of the Local Review Body that extensive reference is made to the removal of a small
number of Lleylandii and one self-seeded tree at Plot 1 in the detailed site plans
submitted prepared by AKA on behalf of the Applicant. The preservation of the newly
planted native tree belt and its extension along the entire north boundary of the site is
also shown on the plans.

Page 73



21

The Delegated Officer put great emphasis on his view the Burnside site should not be
seen in the same light as the Mill because the Mill was located in a “wooded setting”.

No doubt there are existing stands of trees adjacent to the Mill site, however all of those
trees are located on land out with the Mill owner’s ownership or control.

The Mill Delegated Report quite clearly states that there “ are no notable trees” on the
site.

Whilst the Applicant indicated in the detailed plans submitted for Burnside that the
majority of trees would be retained and new tree lines planted, it is clear that planning
conditions could realistically be attached to protect those trees

Conversely there never could be any assurance that, in the Mill setting existing trees
could be protected. Indeed it would have been impossible for the Council to attach
conditions which would ensure the visual screening of the four houses at the Mill given
that the majority, if not all the trees are on the property of adjacent owners.

The fact that a number of trees located on adjacent land to the south of the Mill site
have very recently been cut down as highlighted elsewhere in this Submission
illustrates this point.

Connection to Public Sewer v Septic Tank

In the section of the Burnside Delegated Report under the heading “ Sustainability”, it
states:

“The absence of potential connection to the public sewer and proposed private
sewerage arrangements are considered to be an inherently less sustainable solution
than directing housing to existing settlements where such infrastructure and other
facilities are available.”

The position taken by the Delegated Officer is surprising given that the proposals for
sewage disposal is on “all fours” when compared to the identical private sewerage
arrangements that will be necessary for the four houses approved for the Mill
development.

The Applicant is very familiar with the area of housing around the Mill and there exists
no public sewerage system serving the settlement of houses in its vicinity.

Page 74



22

Although the Delegate Report for the Mill states:

‘that the development would provide additional housing numbers and choice within
Aberdeen City; and that it is not in itself isolated with suitable public services (water,
sewerage, power, etc.) available to which the development could connect.”

There in fact exists no such public sewerage system in the area around the Mill site, all
houses having septic tank systems and related soakaways.

It is argued that the required drainage reports submitted with the Burnside application
show that there would be satisfactory ground conditions for the installation of a private
septic tank arrangement for each of the proposed houses and indeed there were no
objections raised on that point.

In light of the foregoing and having regard to the approval of the much larger
development of four houses at the Mill, where similar private septic tank arrangements
will need to be used, it is suggested that the proposals for the use of private sewerage
treatment is an acceptable and practical option for the proposed houses at Burnside.

Other Matters Raised - Impact on Nearby Houses

The Delegated Report concluded that notwithstanding objections from neighbouring
occupiers “ that the proposed houses would be sufficiently distant from existing houses
that would not be impact on residential amenity.”

Community Council

The objection received from the Community Council appears to have been made on
erroneous grounds where they proceed on the belief that the precedent of the Clinterty
Mill approval should not relied upon . The Community Council appear to believe that the
Clinterty Mill development consists of the restoration of an historic mill, however this is
not the case. The Clinterty Mill development was approved on the basis of the
demolition of the existing buildings and the construction of four large houses.

Page 75



23

Roads/Public Safety

The farm road access to the proposed house sites at Burnside is quite straight with little
in the way undulations and only requires bringing up to a suitable standard by
resurfacing with granite metaling or “chuckies” as is common for such private ways in
the locality.

It is stated in the Report of Handling that :

“the Council’s Road Officers have no objection to the proposal on road safety grounds
and consider the access arrangements to be satisfactory.They consider that the
proposal will not result in the creation / intensification of a public road safety hazard due
to the conflict between traffic exiting / entering the junction with the public road and
existing road users”

Conclusions

The Delegated Officer responsible for the Clinterty Mill application, throughout the
Report of Handling provided extensive reasons and justifications for the approval of
that proposed development.The tenor of the comments appear to be entirely supportive
of the applicants desire to bring about a transformation of a redundant site.

The Applicant and his agents were to say the very least, taken aback at the response to
the Burnside application. Notwithstanding exceptionally similar characteristics,
completely opposite and inconsistent reasons were given as to why the the proposals
should not benefit from a similar approach in assessment and determination against
almost identical planning issues to those of the Mill.

Included in Reasons for Recommendation, the Delegated Report for the Mill states:

“Additionally there are material considerations which further allow the development to
be regarded as being acceptable. These are that: there is no reasonable prospect that
development compliant with the provisions of Policy NE2 would be sufficiently
economically viable such that the regeneration of this degraded and derelict brown field
site could be financed, without significant financial losses; that the development would
provide additional housing numbers and choice within Aberdeen City; and that it is not
in itself isolated with suitable public services (water, sewerage, power, etc.) available to
which the development could connect.”

Page 76



24

The above justification given in support of the Mill development, could on any fair and
equitable examination be objectively applied to the Applicant’s development proposals
for Burnside.

There is indeed no reasonable prospect that a development which would comply with
the provisions of Green Belt Policy NE2 would be sufficiently economically viable so as
to provide funding for the remediation of the Burnside site.

Although the Delegated Officer states in the Burnside Report of Handling that no other
type of development was suggested by the Applicant which would be acceptable in the
countryside, it is evident, based on the supporting reports submitted with the application
that no such options exist and that the regeneration of this degraded and derelict
brownfield site can only realistically be financed by the development of housing.

It is argued that, given the Council having readily accepted that no alternative
development fully compliant with Policy NE2 which could deliver regeneration was
available in the context of the Mill application, that it would therefore be unequitable to
set the bar at a higher standard for the Burnside proposals.

The Council accepted the case for the redevelopment of the Mill site based largely it
appears on visual evidence and informal concession of the appointed officer in regard to
the derelict and contaminated nature of that site.

By contrast, with Burnside, it is contended that the vast array of professionally prepared
reports reinforce the common - sense view that there exists no other economically
viable option by which the site can be remediated except by cross -funding by the
development of the two houses.

The predominant aspect of this application and central to its determination is the
principle of development at this particular location.

The Delegated Officer sought to differentiate the Burnside site from the approved Mill
site by reference to the Mill site’s “wooded setting” and the claim that the Mill was quite
removed from open view on the landscape.

From the foregoing observations in this document, the Applicant believes he has shown

quite clearly that fundamentally, there are no substantial differences in the setting of the
two sites and, as the Council have granted approval for a much larger development of

Page 77



25

four houses at the Mill, it would be equitable in all the circumstances to follow this
precedent and approve the application for two houses at Burnside.

The Applicant submits that, in the foregoing material, he has shown that, in respect of
tensions between conflicting/competing planning policies which were raised by the
Delegated Officer, such policies can be justifiably departed from as exemplified in the
grant of planning permission in the Clinterty Mill application.

The high quality of the proposed houses, confirmed in the opinion of the Delegated
Officer and the windfall nature of an additional two dwellings whereby additional housing
may be added to the area can, it is suggested be regarded as an infinitely sustainable
option and bring back into use manifestly redundant and degraded brownfield sites.

It is respectfully submitted that the Local Review Body set aside the decision to refuse
planning permission and to grant planning permission subject to any planning conditions

as they may think suitable.

In view of the complexity of many of the issues and the amount of related supporting
materials submitted, the Applicant requests a Hearing.

Page 78



=,
-

ol
ABERDEEN

P IR
¥ COUNCIL

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100033386-002

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application

What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface mineral working).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
|:| Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

|:| Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal

Please describe the proposal including any change of use: * (Max 500 characters)

Demolition of redundant poultry buildings and erection of two new dwellings (Previous application ref: 161777/DPP).

Is this a temporary permission? * |:| Yes No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place? D Yes No
(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

No D Yes — Started D Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) |:| Applicant Agent

Page 1 0of 9

Page 79




Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd.

Ref. Number:

First Name: *

ANNIE

Last Name: *

KENYON

Telephone Number: *

01464 851621

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1
(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

South Lediken

Insch

Insch

UK

AB52 6SH

Email Address: *

annie@akenyonarchitects.com

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual |:| Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr
Other Title:

First Name: * Graham
Last Name: * Buchan

Company/Organisation

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1
(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

59

School Drive

Aberdeen

Scotland

AB25 1TP

Email Address: *

Page 80

Page 2 of 9




Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Aberdeen City Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

811899 383317

Northing Easting

Pre-Application Discussion

Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? * Yes D No

Pre-Application Discussion Details Cont.

In what format was the feedback given? *
D Meeting Telephone D Letter Email

Please provide a description of the feedback you were given and the name of the officer who provided this feedback. If a processing
agreement [note 1] is currently in place or if you are currently discussing a processing agreement with the planning authority, please
provide details of this. (This will help the authority to deal with this application more efficiently.) * (max 500 characters)

Mr Smith acknowledged the principle in determination of such an application would fall to the weight which could be attached to to
material considerations associated to dealing with the extant situation on site". It also acknowledged the potential for enabling
development to fund an "environmental improvement" of something which is causing a blight in the Greenbelt. Comparisons were
drawn from a consent granted under Ref:141627 at the nearby Mill, Clinterty.

Title: Mr Other title:

First Name: Kristian Last Name: Smith
Correspondence Reference Date (dd/mm/yyyy):

Number: 12/08/2016

Note 1. A Processing agreement involves setting out the key stages involved in determining a planning application, identifying what
information is required and from whom and setting timescales for the delivery of various stages of the process.

Page 3 of 9

Page 81




Site Area

Please state the site area: 6385.50

Please state the measurement type used: D Hectares (ha) Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use

Please describe the current or most recent use: * (Max 500 characters)

Redundant Poultry Farm

Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? * |:| Yes No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? * |:| Yes No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently exist on the application 0
Site?

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you propose on the site (i.e. the 6
Total of existing and any new spaces or a reduced number of spaces)? *

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the use of particular
types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, cycles spaces).

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements

Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? * Yes D No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *
|:| Yes — connecting to public drainage network
No — proposing to make private drainage arrangements

|:| Not Applicable — only arrangements for water supply required

As you have indicated that you are proposing to make private drainage arrangements, please provide further details.
What private arrangements are you proposing? *
New/Altered septic tank.

|:| Treatment/Additional treatment (relates to package sewage treatment plants, or passive sewage treatment such as a reed bed).

D Other private drainage arrangement (such as chemical toilets or composting toilets).

What private arrangements are you proposing for the New/Altered septic tank? *

Discharge to land via soakaway.
D Discharge to watercourse(s) (including partial soakaway).

|:| Discharge to coastal waters.

Page 4 of 9

Page 82




Please explain your private drainage arrangements briefly here and show more details on your plans and supporting information: *

Please refer to Sarah McGregor drainage report.

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? * D Yes No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:-
Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

Yes
D No, using a private water supply
|:| No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk

Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? * |:| Yes No |:| Don’t Know

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? * |:| Yes No |:| Don’t Know
Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? * Yes D No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if
any are to be cut back or felled.

Waste Storage and Collection

Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection of waste (including recycling)? * Yes D No

If Yes or No, please provide further details: * (Max 500 characters)

Areas allocated within garages incorporate provision for the storage of waste and recycling.

Residential Units Including Conversion

Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? * Yes D No

Page 5 of 9

Page 83




How many units do you propose in total? * 2

Please provide full details of the number and types of units on the plans. Additional information may be provided in a supporting
statement.

All Types of Non Housing Development — Proposed New Floorspace

Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? * D Yes No

Schedule 3 Development

Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country D Yes No D Don’t Know
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an D Yes No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices

CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 — TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? * Yes D No
Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? * Yes D No
Do you have any agricultural tenants? * D Yes No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate E

Page 6 of 9

Page 84




Land Ownership Certificate

Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

Certificate E
| hereby certify that —

(1) — No person other than myself/the applicant was the owner of any part of the land to which the application relates at the beginning of
the period 21 days ending with the date of the application.

(2) - The land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding and there are no agricultural tenants
Or

(1) — No person other than myself/the applicant was the owner of any part of the land to which the application relates at the beginning of
the period 21 days ending with the date of the application.

(2) - The land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding and there are agricultural tenants.

Name:

Address:

Date of Service of Notice: *

(4) — I have/The applicant has taken reasonable steps, as listed below, to ascertain the names and addresses of the other owners or
agricultural tenants and *have/has been unable to do so —

Signed: ANNIE KENYON
On behalf of: Mr Graham Buchan
Date: 10/04/2017

Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 7 of 9

Page 85




Checklist — Application for Planning Permission

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to
that effect? *

|:| Yes D No Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have
you provided a statement to that effect? *

|:| Yes D No Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for

development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *

D Yes D No Not applicable to this application

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *

|:| Yes D No Not applicable to this application
e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject

to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design
Statement? *

D Yes D No Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an
ICNIRP Declaration? *

D Yes D No Not applicable to this application

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

Site Layout Plan or Block plan.
Elevations.

Floor plans.

Cross sections.

Roof plan.

Master Plan/Framework Plan.
Landscape plan.

Photographs and/or photomontages.
Other.

OX OO0 X X X X X

If Other, please specify: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 8 of 9

Page 86




Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. *
A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *

A Flood Risk Assessment. *

A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *

Drainage/SUDS layout. *

A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan
Contaminated Land Assessment. *
Habitat Survey. *

A Processing Agreement. *

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

|:| Yes
Yes
|:| Yes
D Yes
Yes
D Yes
Yes
Yes
|:| Yes

N/A
L A
N/A
N/A
Ll nia
N/A
Ll na
L A
N/A

Cost Report and SG-Cladding Quote to be emailed once application is validated and assigned a case officer (Confidential).

Declare — For Application to Planning Authority

1, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying

Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.

Declaration Name: Ms ANNIE KENYON

Declaration Date: 10/04/2017

Page 87

Page 9 of 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



Proposal Details

Proposal Name 100033386

Proposal Description Erection of 2 number dwelling houses and a
separate double garage. Demolition of existing Poultry Shed.

Address

Local Authority

Application Online Reference

Aberdeen City Council
100033386-002

Application Status

Location Plan complete
Form complete
Main Details complete
Certificate of Ownership complete
Checklist complete
Declaration complete
Supporting Documentation complete
Email Notification complete
Fee complete 0.00
Payment Method complete
Attachment Details

Planning Permission System
Location Plan Attached
PL-03 Attached
Asbestos Management Report Attached
Bat Survey Attached
DIA Report Attached
Sustainability Report Attached
Planning Supporting Statement Attached
Site Investigation Report Part 1 of 2 Attached
Site Investigation Report Part 2 of 2 Attached
Structural Survey Attached
P-02 Attached
Design Statement Attached
Planning_Permission-2.pdf Attached
Application_Summary.pdf Attached
Planning Permission-002.xml Attached

Page 89

A4
A3
A2
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A2
A4
AO
AO
AO



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



INSPECTION

177

eZ

TECHNICAL REPORT P6799

MANAGEMENT-LEVEL ASBESTOS
SURVEY FOR THE PRESENCE OF
ASBESTOS-CONTAINING
MATERIALS (HSG 264):

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little
Clinterty, Kinellar,
Aberdeenshire AB21 OTL

Prepared for:
Mr Graham Buchan
59 School Drive, Aberdeen, AB24 1TH

Prepared by:

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Riverside House
Riverside Drive

Aberdeen AB11 7LH

Tel: 01224-898189

E-mail: brian@ethosenvironmental.co.uk

Web site: www.ethosenvironmental.co.uk

OCTOBER 2016

P6799.01

Burnside Poultry Unit

Mr Graham Buchan

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Page 1 of 35

Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

October 2016

Form No

30-014

Date of Issue | 27/04/2016

Issue no.

5.0

Page 91


http://www.ethosenvironmental.co.uk/

PROJECT QUALITY SHEET

Please note that the UKAS Accreditation Symbols on the front cover of this report refer only to services for
building surveying and sampling of the suspected asbestos bulk materials. This includes the recommendations
detailed herein. It should be noted that the Risk Assessment Algorithm used in this survey is out with the scope
of Ethos Environmental Ltd’s inspection body accreditation.

Project Title Burnside Poultry Unit Project Number
P6799
Document Title Technical Report — Survey Date Issue Date
Management-Level Asbestos
Survey For The Presence of
Asbestos Containing Materials 29 September 2016 11th NOVember 2016
(HSG 264)
Revision | Date Filename Report
Written
1.0 8 November | Description Initial Version
2016 Item Prepared By Checked By
Name B Gardner Scott Carlin
Signature

= = ////////////////

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 2 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 92



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Survey Type
Management-Level Asbestos Building Survey

Scope of Survey
Poultry Unit agricultural building (internal and external fabric). Note that a separate report
addresses the ground contamination issues

Locations of Asbestos

External corrugated roof sheeting (~450 sq m) and associated elements (apex, flashings, roof
vents etc)

Internal sheeting to underside of roof (~400 sq m)

Internal wall cladding (~170 sq m)

Some limited debris from internal asbestos fabric located on floor of concrete slab

Areas not Accessed
None

Recommended Actions
No immediate actions required while premises is not occupied. Remedial actions required if
premises is to be used or occupied (see section 4).

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 3 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 93



CONTENTS

PROJECT QUALITY SHEET ...ooiiiiiieieie ettt 2
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .ottt sttt st te s naenee e s 3
1.0 INTRODUCTION ..ottt sttt st steanaeneeneeeens 5
1.2 Details Of PrOPEITY ....ccveiiicie ettt ra e ae e sne s 6
1.4 Use of Report and Client ReSpONnSIDIIILIES ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiieeec e 6
2.0 GENERAL SITE & SURVEY INFORMATION ......cocoiiiiiiiiieieiesese et 8
3.0 SURVEY FINDINGS ......ciitiiiiiieieie sttt sttt st bbb 9
3.1 INACCESSIDIE ATBAS .....ecueiieieieieie et 9
3.2 SUIVEY FINGINGS. ..ttt bbbttt bbb bbbt e e 9
4.0 ASBESTOS REGISTER AND MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN ......ccccovviviininnnn, 14
APPENDIX 1:  CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS. ..ot 16
APPENDIX 2:  SITE SCHEMATIC.......o ittt 19
APPENDIX 3: CATEGORIES OF WORK WITH ASBESTOS.......cccoiiiiieneiiiieeeieen 20
APPENDIX 4:  METHODOLOGY ....ooiiiiiiiieiteieieitese ettt 24
AB. L SUINVEYING ..ttt bbbttt b bbbt et 24
AB.2  SAMPIING ..ot et e e re e nre s 25
AB.3  ANGIYSIS ..o a et e e areenreeaenres 25
AD5. 4 RISK ASSESSMENT ... .eeiieiiiiiieiieie et ee st e e ste e et e teeneesreesteeneesneenseeneenreas 26
A54.1 Material Risk Assessment SCOriNg SYStEM..........cccvvvvevvevieiieieece e 26
A5.4.2 Condition ClasSITICAIONS .........cciviieiiieie e 27
APPENDIX 5: SURVEY SCOPE, QUALIFICATIONS AND SERVICE CONSTRAINTS
28
AB.1  Management SUIVEY SCOPE .......ciuveriirririeeitearesiee sttt nnees 28
AB.2  SUIVEY TYPES ..ottt ettt b et b e et b e nne s 29
AAB.3 CAVEALS ...ttt et r e e ne e e 30
AB6.4  General SErvice CONSLIAINTS ......ccveiveieiiereeie e re e ste e see e enee e e nee e nnees 33
P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 4 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Mr Graham Buchan Octobe?uzrc\)lfg
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 94



1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

The client owns a former Poultry Shed at Little Clinterty, near Blackburn, Aberdeenshire. The
structure location is shown on satellite image in Figure 1.

Poultry Unit Shed

Figure 1. Poultry Unit Shed, Little Clinterty

The structure is currently not used for poultry and it is understood that it is unlikely to be
suitable for such uses in future for reasons relating to size and economics of such activities.
The structure is currently used for ad-hoc storage.

A management-level (former “Type 2”) survey was undertaken of the premises for asbestos
in 2008. This identified that the asbestos cement sheeting forming the roof of the structure
was in poor condition in places, and recommended that - were the structure to be occupied -
it would require some remedial works in the short-term to minimise the risk of further
deterioration and consequent potential health risk to users arising.

In September 2016 the client requested an updated survey to assist in establishing options
for future use of the structure.

The survey was carried out by B Gardner (lead surveyor) on 29t September 2016.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 5 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No | 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. | 5.0

Page 95



1.2 Details of Property

The property is assumed to have been constructed between the 1950s and 1970s. It occupies
a footprint of approximately 10 x 35 m and consists of timber frame and external wall
cladding. Internal walls are predominantly asbestos cement-based flat sheets (see later in
report) with some plasterboard sections recently added to the front entrance areas and
forming adjoining office/stores area. The external roof comprises corrugated asbestos
cement sheeting (see later in report). The floor is a concrete slab

1.3 Purpose, Aims and Objectives of Survey

The purpose of the survey is to identify all surface, visible and accessible asbestos containing
materials (ACMs), and to evaluate the current risk presented by these. This will enable the
client make decisions regarding future usage of the site and to maintain an Asbestos Register
and Asbestos Management Plan as required under the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012.

1.4 Use of Report and Client Responsibilities

This report should be read in its entirety, including all sections, appendices, certification, plans
and photographs (where applicable).

There are a significant number of report caveats, qualifications and service constraints
relating to:

Client instructions/brief

Client information provided

Scope of the survey

The method of work for management asbestos building surveying
Representative surveying and sampling strategies

Client intentions for the building

OoOoOooOooao

These are necessarily associated with asbestos building surveying, and are required under our
professional indemnity insurance cover.

The client should satisfy themselves as to the adequacy of this survey report within any
caveats and exemptions detailed.

The client should satisfy themselves that they have provided - in advance of the survey - the
surveying organisation with all information available in terms of previous surveys, history of
the building, previous asbestos removal details, site and layout plans and details of hidden
voids, solums, hidden access hatches/points etc.

The client’'s attention is drawn specifically to the distinctions between
Refurbishment/Demolition and Management Surveys. Specifically, it is stressed that a
Management survey should not be relied upon to confirm the presence/absence of asbestos
in buildings prior to refurbishment, demolition or any works liable to disturb non-surface

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 6 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 96



elements of the building fabric as these may not have been included within the scope of a
Management Survey. Where such work is proposed, a Refurbishment/Demolition survey is
required.

It should not be assumed that Ethos Environmental Ltd is party to full information relating to
the client’s intentions for the building at the time of the survey commission or completion.
Ethos Environmental Ltd understands that the client’s requirements/project intentions are as
follows:

To understand the risk presented by surface-level asbestos-containing material in order to
manage the current risk and inform decision-making regarding future useage.

Where an asbestos-containing material (ACM) has been identified, the client should review
the material risk assessment prepared for each ACM in light of their understanding of the
nature of the building and its use by occupants and satisfy themselves that the consultant
assumptions used and the risks presented by ACMs on-site are adequately risk-assessed.

Note that this report does not address issues relating to contamination of soils around this
structure or elsewhere in the vicinity, with asbestos-containing materials. These are discussed
in a Stage 1 contaminated land investigation report (P6799.02).

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 7 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 97



2.0 GENERAL SITE & SURVEY INFORMATION

The following information pertains to the client, site and scope of survey.

Table 1: Survey Information

The name and address of the person
who commissioned the survey;

Mr Graham Buchan
59 School Drive, Aberdeen, AB24 1TH

The names of the surveyors;

Brian Gardner CCP [Asbestos]

The name and address of the premises
surveyed;

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar,
Aberdeenshire AB21 OTL

Survey date

29/09/2016

Report issue date

08/11/2016

A description of the areas included in
the survey

Agricultural shed only

A description of any areas excluded in
the survey

All areas were accessed

The survey method used (this
publication and/or other documented
procedures)

Procedure 30 based upon HSG264

The type of survey undertaken
(management, refurbishment or
demolition) and, if more than one type
is used, where they apply within the
premises;

Management Survey

Any variations or deviations from the
method

N/A

Agreed exclusions and inaccessible
areas (with reasons) which should be
specific to the survey and not generic.

Management-level asbestos surveys do not normally
access behind surface fabric. Locations behind the
internal plasterboarding erected in recent years at the
front entrance could not be accessed. However the
client has advised that suspect asbestos debris may be
present in these areas as a result of the refurbishment
works.

Scope of the survey reported here does not extend to
contamination of ground around the structure.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 8 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 98




3.0 SURVEY FINDINGS

3.1 Inaccessible Areas

No areas were deemed inaccessible within the scope of a management-level asbestos
building survey.

3.2 Survey Findings

3.2.1 External Fabric

The external structure comprises blockwork to 0.6m height with timber cladding external
walls above this. Rainwater goods are plastic. The roof, apex and flashings etc are formed
from corrugated asbestos cement sheeting (Ref: Samples 67443, Certificate A20653,
Appendix 1). In places these have been patched with non-asbestos panelling. The roof apex
has asbestos cement vents.

Samples were tested for water sorption capacity, to establish the category of material under
the Control of Asbestos Regulations2012, and the external asbestos materials were confirmed
as being classed as “asbestos cement”. Figures 2 & 3 illustrate the asbestos cement roofing
elements. Figure 5a at appendix 2 shows a schematic of the extent of the roofing asbestos

Figure 2. View of barn structure from north
P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 9 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No | 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. | 5.0

Page 99



Figure 3. North (front) end of barn, east elevation

3.2.2 Internal Fabric

Internally the roof is supported by timber struts, forming 12 internal sections running the
width of the structure. Internally the rear (ie southern) ten sections of the barn structure are
clad in flat thin asbestos cement panelling to a height of 2.0m. This material has a slight yellow
colouring (Ref: Sample 67445, Certificate A20653, Appendix 1). Figure 5c at appendix 2 shows
a schematic of the extent of the vertical asbestos wall cladding.

The same material clads the underside of the ceiling throughout the structure, approximately
12m x 40m in area (Ref: Sample 67446, Certificate A20653, Appendix 1). Figure 4 illustrates
the wall cladding and roof underside panelling. Figure 5b at appendix 2 shows a schematic of
the extent of the asbestos sheeting forming the underside of the roof.

The front (north) two sections of the barn structure are clad internally with plasterboard,
forming new walling and office/store areas. Access could not be gained behind this without
disturbance works (outwith survey scope). The client advised that the asbestos panelling

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi

urnside Poultry Unit Page 10 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 100




present throughout the rest of the barn should be expected to be present here also along
with some debris associated with the installation of the plasterboard walling, though this
could not be confirmed within the scope of the survey.

The internal asbestos cladding is typically in 2m x 3m sections and nailed in place to timber
structure behind. The asbestos internal panelling is unpainted but in relatively good condition,
with limited damaged locations, such as light fittings, penetrations in ceiling panelling etc.

Asbestos cement
panelling to roof
underside

Asbestos cement
panelling forming
walls throughout

Figure 4. Internal view of barn looking south from entrance

Roof vents have been installed/refurbished at various locations; some debris from the
asbestos panelling is evident internally on floor surfaces, and is presumed to have resulted
from installation of roof vents.

Samples were tested for water sorption capacity, to establish the category of material under
the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012, and the internal wall cladding and roofing
underside sheeting asbestos materials were confirmed as being classed as “asbestos cement”.

The black damp-proof course running above the block work wall and immediately below the
asbestos cement cladding was sampled (Ref: Samples 67440, 67449, Certificate A20653,

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit page 11 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 101



Appendix 1) and found to not be an asbestos-based product itself, though there was evidence
of trace potential surface contamination from the internal cladding.

Table 2 below details the location of all of the asbestos containing materials found during the
Management Survey.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 12 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 102



€0T abed

Table 2: Survey Findings — Asbestos-Containing Materials Identified

Sample Certificate | A20653 (part of) Analysed By Keith Garland Samples Taken 4
Location Description of | Extent! | Accessibility Condition Surface Identification Material Comments

Material Treatment Criteria? Assessment

Score?

External roofing
and assoua.ted Asbestos cement 4509 Low Fair-Poor None Sampled 5 None
vents, flashings, m
apex etc
Internal sheeting 400 sq Sampled None
to underside of Asbestos cement Low Fair None 4
roof m
Interr?al wall Asbestos cement 180sq High Fair None Sampled 4 None
cladding m

1 The extent is an approximate measurement for management purposes only. Do not use for removal purposes.
2 Sampled/Strongly Presumed/Presumed.

3 See Appendix 4.
P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit page 13 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No | 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. | 5.0




4.0 ASBESTOS REGISTER AND MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN

4.1 Survey conclusions are summarised in Table 3 below. This table should be considered
as a Register and Asbestos Management Plan for the duty holder with regards to the
management of their ACMs. While the premises remain unoccupied there is no immediate
action required.

Table 3: Location of ACMs and Actions Required

panelling to
roof
underside
cladding

Location/ | Risk Action/Timescale

Item Summary

External roof | Low No action required if premises is to be unused.

sheeting
If premises are to be used, the roof sheeting will require a condition survey/
reinspection on a 3-yearly basis.
Prior to demolition remove the asbestos sroof sheeting

Internal wall | Low If premises to be used/occupied, the internal fabric should be subject to a

cladding priority asbestos risk assessment.
Restricting access of contractors/others behind plasterboard fabric to front of
barn structure is prudent given the likelihood of asbestos cement debris.
An “environmental clean” of all surfaces may be appropriate at this stage,
depending on the nature of the occupancy, and/or encapsulation of all
accessible internal surfaces. A condition survey/ reinspection will require to be
undertaken on a regular basis (typically 6 or 12-monthly) depending on risk
assessment.
Alternatively, consideration may be given to removal outright of this material at
this stage particularly if any internal refurbishment works is proposed, or
activities likely to present risk of damage to wall fabric.
The wall cladding will require to be removed prior to any demolition.

Internal Low If premises to be used/occupied, this fabric should be subject to a priority

asbestos risk assessment.

Given the low accessibility of these surfaces and their orientation, where an
environmental clean is being carried out on the internal wall cladding, an
environmental clean of the roof underside surfaces and/or encapsulation of all
accessible internal surfaces may, or may not, be appropriate, depending on the
nature of the occupancy/risk assessment.

A condition survey/ reinspection will require to be undertaken on a regular
basis (typically 6 or 12-monthly) depending on risk assessment.

Alternatively, consideration may be given to removal outright of this material at
this stage in tandem with the wall cladding, particularly if any internal
refurbishment works is proposed, or activities likely to present risk of damage
to roof underside.

The roof underside will require to be removed prior to any demolition

P6799.01

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit

Management-Level Asbestos Building

P 14 of 35
agelao Survey

Mr Graham Buchan

October 2016

Form No

30-014

Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 104




4.2

Work on these materials will not be licensable. Work on the external asbestos roofing

will almost always constitute non-notifiable/non-licensable work. Work on the internal fabric
will require a risk assessment to establish if this work constitutes non-notifiable/non-
licensable work, or notifiable/non-licensable work.

The thr

ee main categories of “work with asbestos”, are discussed in more detail in appendix

4 but can be summarised as follows:

Licensable work requires a licenced removal contractor. The removal contractor will be required to
notify the HSE 14 days prior to the removal of the material. The removal contractor operatives and
supervisors must be suitably trained and their training refreshed annually. A Plan of Work and Method
Statement must be completed prior to the work commencing and a copy kept at the site with the ASB5
notification form.

Notifiable, non-licensable work does not require a licenced removal contractor, but it requires
notification (same day) to HSE Notifiable Non-licensed Works do not require a licensed asbestos
removal contractor to remove the materials and removal does not require notification to the HSE 14
days prior to commencement of the works. However, the work does need to be notified to the HSE on
the day of the work, prior to commencement of the work activities. The general requirements of the
Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 will still apply.

Personnel undertaking work on these materials must be appropriately trained for the work they are
undertaking (note “asbestos awareness” training is not sufficient). This training should be undertaken
annually. Prior to commencement of any works a suitable and sufficient Plan of Work and Risk
Assessment is required and should be retained on-site. Appropriate controls on the spread of, and
exposure to, asbestos should be used.

Non-notifiable, non-licensable work does not require a licenced removal contractor nor notification to
HSE. However, the general requirements of the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 will still apply.

Personnel undertaking work on these materials must be appropriately trained for the work they are
undertaking (note “asbestos awareness” training is not sufficient). This training should be undertaken
annually. Prior to commencement of any works a suitable and sufficient Plan of Work and Risk
Assessment is required and should be retained on-site. Appropriate controls on the spread of, and
exposure to, asbestos should be used.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 15 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 105



APPENDIX 1: CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS

CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Head Office 2
Unit 13-18 Dumbryden indusiial Esiabe e
Analysis underiaken io Ethos UMAS Acoreditsd Documenisd In-House Procedure 27 based
' " o Dumbryden Foad
upon Appendix 2 of the Analysts” Guide (HESG248) EDNBURGH
EH14 ZAB
2146
Il 131 433 3111
faoc: 0131 4338111
email: infofethosemironmertal Bd
ABBESTOS JOB NUMEER A-200353 DATE OF BAMPLING  Z3/05/2018 Sampling Disclalmer
_— Ethos Ervironmental Lid. operats a UKAS Accrediied documentsd
DATE OF ANALYEIS 12018
CLIENT MR GRAHAM BUCHAN in-houss method for bulk ashesios sampling. Where sampies anes
=9 SCHOOL DRIVE SAMPLED BY Erian Gardner sent in by axtemal clents Ethos Ensvronmantal Lid. can accept no
- responsibiity for samples incorrecily collecied or cross
SITE DETAILS: z::‘;::ﬂ Foultry B ! contaminated. The samping will also be cubwith the soope of our
UHAS Accraditation for sampling. This discaimer should be
ABERDEEN considered when interprebng the results of the analyss below
ABZ41TH
ﬂ EAMFLE ID EAMFLE DETAILE CONTAIMNS COMMENTS
m o7 440 Sampis 1 Chrysolile (white asbesios)
m o743 Sampia 2 Chrysolile [white asbesios) =30%wiw absorption - cemant
m B4 Sampia 3 Chrysobile (white asbesios) >30%wiw absorption - board
o745 Sampis 4 Chrysolile [white asbesios) =30%wiw absorption - cemant
AMALYSED BY: Kelth Garand ANALYSED BY SIGNATURE ARGl D Siairmar
. ) All comemants and opinions, including waber sorption aralysis,
L= Labaratory Analyst A { contained on this cesteficales ans cubwith the scope of our LKAS
Acoreditation for Anahysés of Asbestos in Bulk Malerials. No
responsibiity can be accepied for the Incormect use or
milsrepresantation of the informartion detailed in this certificate
AUTHORESED BY: Ania Srcrepanska AUTHORISED BY SIGHNATURE
DEBIGNATION: Senior Laboratory s This ceriificate |s irvalid withou! an authorised signature
Anakyst - =
, Page 1of3
Farm na 27005
Issue 2.0
Date ks wed Mlary-14)
P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Management-Level Asbestos Building
Page 16 of 35
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No | 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0




/0T abed

CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS

Analtysis underiaken to Ethos UKAS Acoredited Documented in-House Procedure 27 based
upon Appendix 2 of the Analysts” Guide (HSG240)

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Head Office

Unit 13-16 Dumbryden Indusinal Estate
Dumbryden Road

EDINBURGH
EH14 2AB

ted: D131 433 3111
fax: 0131 4336111
emal: infogethosenvironmental Bd

|aseesTos JoB

NUMBER A-20053

| DATE OF SAMPLING

DATE OF ANALYSIS

290972010
1112016

Sampling Disclalmer
Ethos Envwonmental Lid. operate a UKAS Accrediied documented

CLIENT MR GRAHAM BUCHAN In-house method for bulk asbestios sampiing. Where samplies are
59 SCHOOL DRIVE SAMPLED BY Brian Gardner sent In by extemal clents Ethos Environmental Lid. can accept no
SITE z sde Poul responsibiity for samples incorectly collected or cross
AR :::::m try F contaminated. The sampiing will aiso be outwith the scope of our
UKAS Accreditation for samping. This dsciaimer should be
ABERDEEN considersd when interpreting the resuits of the anafysis befow.
AB24 1TH
07440 Sampie 5 Chrysotile (white asbesios) <30%w'w absorption - cement
07447 Sample 6 Chrysotile (white asbesios) <30%ww absorption - cement
07440 Sampte 7 Chrysolile (white asbestos) <30%ww absorption - cermnent
07449 Sampée 0 Chrysctie (white asbestos)

ANALYSED BY:

DESIGNATION:

Keith Garfand

Laboratory Analyst

ANALYSED BY SIGNATURE

K GHarlwd

Analysis Disclaimer

All comments and opinions, Inciuding water sorption analysis,
contained on this cestificate are outwith the scope of cur UKAS
Accreditation for Analysis of Asbestos In Buk Maleriads. No
responsibiity can be accepted for the Incorrect use or
misrepresentation of the nformation detalied in this certificate

AUTHORISED BY: Anla Szczepanska AUTHORISED BY SIGNATURE
DESIGNATION: Senior L fory - 7 This certificate s invalid without an authorised signature
Analyst — ‘ir-ﬂ(”/— s
’ Page 20of 3

Form no 27-005
Issue 2.0
Date May-13]

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 17 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No | 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. | 5.0




80T abed

CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS

Analtysis underiaken to Ethos UKAS Acoredited Documented in-House Procedure 27 based
upon Appendix 2 of the Analysts” Guide (HSG240)

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Head Office

Unit 13-16 Dumbryden Indusiral Estate
Dumbryden Road

EDINBURGH
EH14 2AB

ted: 0131 433 3111
fanc 0131 4536111
emal: infofdethosenvironmental #d

IASBESTOS JOB NUMBER A-200353 I DATE OF SAMPLING 29092010

DATE OF ANALYSIS 111owao1e

Sampling Disclalmer
Ethos Enwronmental Lid. operate a UKAS Accrediied documented

CLIENT MR GRAHAM BUCHAN In-house method for bulk asbestios samping. Where sampies are
59 SCHOOL DRIVE SAMPLED BY Brian Gardner sent In by exiemal cllents Ethos Environmental Lid. can accept no
aTE : sde Pous responsibiity for samples incorectly collected or cross
S ::::uu ot contaminated. The sampiing will aiso be outwith the scope of our
UKAS Accreditation for samping. This dscialmer should be
ABERDEEN considersd when interpreting the resuits of the anafysis betow
AB241TH
67450 Sample 8 Chrysotile (white asbesios) >30%wiw absorption - board
67451 Sampie 10 Chrysobie (white asbestos) <30%wiw absorption - cement
ANALYSED BY: Keith Gartand ANALYSED BY SIGNATURE Analysis Disclaimer
] All comments and opinions, Inchuding water sorption analysis,
DEBIGNATION: Laborstory Anstyst IMJ contained on this certificate are ocutwith the scope of cur UKAS
M Acoreditation for Analysis of Asbestos In Bulk Maleriaés. No
responsibiity can be accepted for the Incorrect use or
misrepresentation of the information detaied In this certificate
AUTHORISED BY: Anla Szczepanska AUTHORISED BY SIGNATURE
DESIGNATION: Senkr L sory - - This certificate Is invalid without an authorised signature
Analyst ——
p Page 30of3
Form no 27-005|
ssue 2.0
Uatetssued | May-13]
P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Management-Level Asbestos Building
Page 18 of 35
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No | 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no.

5.0




60T abed

North

APPENDIX 2: SITE SCHEMATIC

/\.

I

Fig 5a. Plan view
showing asbestos

cement roof sheeting

Fig 5b. Plan view
showing asbestos
cement sheeting to
roof underside

==

|

P6799.01

Burnside Poultry Unit

Mr Graham Buchan

Page 19 of 35

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey

October 2016

Form No |

30-014

Date of Issue | 27/04/2016

Issue no. | 5.0

Fig 5c. Plan view
showing asbestos
cement cladding to
internal surfaces of
external walls.



APPENDIX 3: CATEGORIES OF WORK WITH ASBESTOS

There are three categories of work with asbestos:

e Licensable (and hence notifiable)
¢ Notifiable, but non-licensable (NNLW)
e Non-notifiable and non-licensable

Whether a type of asbestos work is either licensable, NNLW or non-licensed work has to be
determined in each case and will depend on the type of work you are going to carry out, the
type of material you are going to work on and its condition. The identification of the type of
asbestos-containing material (ACM) to be worked on and an assessment of its condition are
important parts of your risk assessment, which needs to be completed before you start
work.

Firstly, decide if the work is exempt from licensing or not.

If the work is exempt from the need for a licence, you then need to determine if it is
notifiable non-licensed work or non-licensed work. The key factors to consider are:

The type of work you are planning to do:

¢ Maintenance, e.g. drilling holes to attach fittings or pass cables through, painting,
cleaning etc. Maintenance includes some removal where it is incidental to the main
task, e.g. removing an asbestos ceiling tile to allow inspection; or

e Removal, e.g. as part of a refurbishment or redesign project; or

e Encapsulation, e.g. work to enclose or seal asbestos materials in good condition; or
Air monitoring and control, and the collection and analysis of samples.

The asbestos type:

o Isit friable? - the more friable a material is, the more likely it will release asbestos
fibres when worked on and the greater the risk of exposure. Work which disturbs
more friable materials e.g. asbestos insulation will tend to be NNLW and work which
disturbs the least friable materials e.g. asbestos cement can normally be treated as
non-licensed work; and

e How firmly is the asbestos bonded in a matrix? (For removal work only) — Asbestos
containing materials (ACMs) where the asbestos is coated, covered or contained
within another material, such as cement, paint or plastic are considered to be firmly
bonded in a matrix, ACMs of this type in good condition can usually be treated as
non-licensed work but where they are significantly damaged, and so more likely to
release fibres, they will need to be treated as NNLW.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi

urnside Poultry Unit Page 20 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 110




e The material's condition: Has the material been damaged or is it in poor condition?
—removal of ACMs in poor condition e.g. due to flood or fire damage, will normally
need to be treated as NNLW; and

e Will the materials' matrix be destroyed when worked on? — e.g. deteriorating
textured decorative coatings e.g. 'Artex' with gel or steam to remove it, will normally
need to treated as NNLW.

It is the responsibility of the person in charge of the job to assess the ACM to be worked on
and decide if the work is NNLW or non-licensed work. This will be a matter of judgment in
each case, dependent on consideration of the above factors.

A decision flow chart is available in Asbestos Essentials sheet AQ to help you decide how
work with asbestos should be categorized (see Figure A4.1 below).

To help you, examples of NNLW include, (assuming in all cases exposure is sporadic and of
low intensity and will not exceed the control limit):

1 minor, short duration, maintenance work involving asbestos insulation, e.g. repairing
minor damage to a small section of pipe insulation where the exterior coating has been
broken or damaged;

2 minor removal work involving AIB, when short duration and as part of a refurbishment
project, e.g. removing AIB panels fixed with screws following water damage;

3 entryinto the roof space above an AIB tiled ceiling, when no decontamination or
cleaning has taken place;

4 removal work involving textured decorative coatings where the method of removal
requires deterioration of the material, e.g. where the material is treated by steam,
hydrating gel etc. and scraped off the underlying surface, or where it is very badly flood-
damaged;

5 removal of asbestos paper and cardboard products if not firmly bonded in a matrix;

6 removal of asbestos cement (AC) which is substantially degraded e.g. badly fire-
damaged or de-laminated material, or where substantial breakage is unavoidable to
achieve removal.

NNLW will not normally include the following, which will continue to be categorised as non-
licensed work (which is not notifiable), (assuming in all cases exposure is sporadic and of low
intensity and will not exceed the control limit):

1 short, non-continuous maintenance work involving AIB which is in good condition, e.g.
drilling holes in AIB to attach a fitting or pass through a cable or pipe, cleaning light
fittings attached to AIB, removing a door with AIB fire-proofing, or lifting ceiling tiles for
inspection where there is no full-body entry into the roof space;

2 short, non-continuous maintenance work on asbestos cement (AC), e.g. work on
weathered AC roof tiles;

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 21 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 111



http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/guidance/a0.pdf

w

removal of AC, which is kept virtually intact;

short, non-continuous maintenance work on textured decorative coatings, e.g. drilling
holes, inserting screws or painting;

small-scale maintenance work with textured decorative coatings when this can be
achieved without deterioration of the material, e.g. by careful cutting around backing
sheets to achieve removal intact;

removal, for example, of gaskets or asbestos rope cords from heating appliances, which
can be left in situ for disposal or can be lifted out virtually intact, without substantial
breakage;

short, non-continuous maintenance work on clutch discs, brakes, friction products etc.
unless significant damage is required e.g. by power tools;

removal of floor tiles or bitumen felt, when done with the appropriate controls, e.g.
inline with Asbestos Essentials sheets A21 and A23;

work to enclose or seal asbestos materials that are in good condition (and that do not
require a licence);

10 air monitoring and control, and the collection and analysis of samples.

The illustration of asbestos work categories chart (See Figure A4.2) gives some examples of
what work falls into the categories of licensed, NNLW and non-licensed.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit

Management-Level Asbestos Building

Page 22 of 35 Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 112




Decision flow chart

Usze this simple flow chart to help you decide who needs to do the work:

Loose asbeslos, asbasios [AIB) or asbestos insulation Asbesios cament shaet,
coating, lagaing, badly in good condition taxtured decorathve coatings,
damaged Asbestos articles conlaining asbestos,
Insulating Board eQ gaskals, lextiles, floor
(AIB) or insulation lilas elc
Doas work with this material
Inviolve someons working
for maore than ane hour in
a weak?
T
YES NO
| i '
The task naeds an For two or more workers, The task is not licansed
HSE-licansad contractor [+ YES does their total work time HO —

axceed two hours, start 1o
firksh, in a weaek?

Iz the work Motifiabla
non-Boensed work? -

Y

|
Is the work “remowval?

Is the work ‘maintenance’? Is the work ‘encapsulation’
or refated to air
I I I monitordnafcontrol ar
vis NO + "’;5 taking/analysing samples?
Is the matarial highly friable | I the material non friable
thigh fibre release whean (low fibre ralease whan
disturbed) and/or poarly disturbed) and in good
banded in matrix, eg condition? eq ashastos
ashasios insulation, or s it in camarnt, flnor tiles,
poor condition/ikely to biturman felt
dateriorate when worked on?
I |
YES NO YES YES
3 i
Notifiable =3 Non-licensed work =
non-licensed work
Motify the work to the l
enforcing authority, keep a
record of the job and

Use th riate task
ansura all workers have ::;Qgtap,{aﬁqp{r?ﬁ redevarit
had a medical examination | —
aquipment and method
(frerm April 2015) sheetis). Minimize the
rumber of peopla presant
Figure A4.1

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 23 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No | 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. | 5.0

Page 113




lllustration of Ashestos Work Categories
Loose fill Iaggmg insulation

Lagging and sprayed insulation

High
fibre
release
when
disturbed
= higher
risk work

Asbestos insulation — if sugmflcant work that exceeds the control limit
Loose dust & small pieces of debris (gross contamination)
Asbestos msulatmg board (AIB) — if significant work that exceeds the control limit

Asbestos insulation/ AIB - if short duration work below control limit and removal
work not part of maintenance

Textured decorative coatings — using gelsrsteam for large-scale removal

Paper felt and cardboard e.g. electrical equipment insulation, ropes and yarns or
cloth, or gaskets and washers — depending on condition — if poor condition or
degraded during work NNLW, if kept virtually intact non-licensed

AIB - if short duration work below control limit and part of maintenance work

Textured decorative coatings — only when t.:arefullyr cutting around backing sheets to
3 achieve removal intact
Low fibre

release Strmgs kept virtually intact e.g. removed whole

when
disturbed Resin-based materials e.g. friction products!brake lining

= lower
risk work Conveyor belts/ drive belts

Asbestos cement products

Thermoplastlc!wnyl floor tiles, bitumen roof felt shingles, asbestos paper damp proof
coatings, mastics, asbestos paper backed PVC floors, resurfaced PVC panels &
compounds

Figure A4.2
APPENDIX 4: METHODOLOGY

A5.1 Surveying

Ethos Environmental UKAS-accredited in-house Procedure 30 in accordance with HSE
Guidance HSG264 was used. In each instance the conclusion as to asbestos presence/absence
may be based on:

i. Specific sampling: Sampling of the actual item/element in the area indicated,
confirming that asbestos is/is not present. These samples will be detailed on the
certificate of analysis. Specific sampling may include two or more samples of the same
material in one or more locations to assess the homogenous nature of the material
both locally and in other areas.

ii. Strong presumption of asbestos presence: In the absence of sampling, visual
inspection indicating that the surveyor is confident that the item does contain

asbestos
P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 24 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 114

(11111



iii. Presumption of asbestos presence: In the absence of sampling, the surveyor must
make a visual inspection of a material. If the material is of such a type that was found
to contain asbestos in the past, the surveyor cannot assume that the material does
not contain asbestos, i.e. that the item should be assumed to contain asbestos.

iv. Presumption of asbestos absence: In the absence of sampling, the surveyor must
make a visual inspection of a material. Some materials obviously do not contain
asbestos (e.g. brick, glass, wood) and have never been known to contain asbestos. In
these circumstances the surveyor can assume that the material does not contain

asbestos.

A5.2 Sampling

Where sampling has been used, this has been by means of an in-house UKAS-accredited

method in accordance with HSE Guidance HSG265 and HSG248.

A5.3 Analysis

All analysis was undertaken by in-house UKAS-accredited method in accordance with HSE
Guidance Note HSG248

P6799.01

Burnside Poultry Unit

Mr Graham Buchan

Page 25 of 35

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

October 2016

Form No

30-014

Date of Issue | 27/04/2016

Issue no.

5.0

Page 115




A5.4 Risk Assessment

A risk assessment is undertaken on all ACMs identified. This risk assessment is a material risk
assessment only, undertaken in accordance with HSG264. The assessment relates only to the
risk presented by the material in-situ: no allowance is made for other factors which the client
is assumed to have a clearer knowledge of, and which may significantly change the risk, such
as occupancy of room/area where ACM is present (numbers of persons and duration),
likelihood that the ACM will be disturbed, and nature of any such disturbance (this is a Priority
Assessment — See HSE Document HSG227).

The client is therefore advised to review the material risk assessment conclusions in light of
their understanding of the nature of the building and its use by occupants.

A5.4.1 Material Risk Assessment Scoring System
Sample Variable Score Examples of Scores
Product Type (or 1 Asbestos reinforced composites (plastics, resins, mastics, roofing felts, vinyl
debris from product) floor tiles, semi-rigid paints or decorative finishes, asbestos cement, etc.)
2 Asbestos insulating board, mill boards, other low density insulation boards,

asbestos textiles, gaskets, ropes and woven textiles, asbestos paper and felt

3 Thermal insulating products (e.g. pipe and boiler lagging), sprayed coatings,
loose asbestos mattresses and packing

Extent of Damage or 0 Good condition: no visible damage

Deterioration Low damage: a few scratches or surface marks; broken edges on boards, tiles,

etc.

2 Medium damage: significant breakage of materials or several small areas
where material has been damaged revealing loose asbestos fibres

3 High damage or delamination: materials, sprays and thermal insulation. Visible

asbestos debris

Surface Treatment 0 Composite materials containing asbestos: Reinforced plastics or resins, vinyl
floor tiles or painted asbestos cement (with exposed face painted or
encapsulated)

1 Enclosed sprays and lagging, AIB (with exposed face painted or encapsulated),
unsealed asbestos cement sheets, etc.

2 Unsealed AIB or encapsulated lagging and sprays.

Unsealed lagging or sprays

Asbestos Type 1 Chrysotile
2 Amphibole asbestos excluding crocidolite
3 Crocidolite

The risk assessment score for each of the four factors is added up. The lowest score possible
is 2, the highest is 12.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 26 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 116


http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/priced/hsg227.pdf

A5.4.2 Condition Classifications

The conditions of any asbestos-containing materials identified in the survey are classified as
follows:

Good
The asbestos-based material is in sound condition and shows no signs of deterioration.

Fair

The asbestos based material, although sound is (a) sealed but showing slight signs of
surface deterioration such as hairline cracks, water stains and minor blemishes; or (b),
is unsealed but in otherwise good condition.

Poor
The asbestos based material is badly water stained; broken, badly cracked or fibrous
materials are exposed.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi

urnside Poultry Unit Page 27 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 117




APPENDIX 5: SURVEY SCOPE, QUALIFICATIONS AND SERVICE CONSTRAINTS

A6.1 Management Survey Scope

Whilst Ethos attempts to gather as much information pertaining to the building, it’s current
use and any intended use (where refurbishment is planned), it is not uncommon for the
organisation commissioning the survey to be unaware of the planned use of the building.

This information can be essential in ensuring that the correct scope of work for the asbestos
survey is undertaken. Therefore, it should not be assumed that Ethos Environmental Ltd is
party to full information relating to the client’s intentions for the building at the time of the
survey commission or completion.

It is important that the client, should satisfy themselves that they have provided —in advance
of the survey — the surveying organisation with all information available in terms of:

i. previous surveys or sampling exercises undertaken,

ii. history of the building,

iii. previous asbestos removal details,

iv. site and layout plans

v. details of hidden voids, solums or hidden access hatches/points etc.

The client should satisfy themselves that the scope and extent of the survey reported here
meets their requirements. It is also stressed that the responsibility of the surveying
organisation extends to the undertaking (and demonstrating of same) that reasonable steps
have been taken to carry out a full and comprehensive survey.

The client’s attention is drawn specifically to the distinctions between Management and
Refurbishment/Demolition building surveys:

Survey Type | Survey scope Method Requirement Risk
Algorithm
Management Survey of all areas of the | Survey based on Regulation 4 of | Yes
building excluding building | surveyor inspection & Control of
elements, voids etc. hidden | presumptions, and Asbestos
within/behind other building | sampling Regulations
fabric. 2012
Refurbishment/ | Survey of all areas of the | Survey based on | Control of No*
Demolition building including  building | surveyor inspection & | Asbestos
elements, voids etc. hidden | presumptions, Regulations
within/behind other building | intrusions/penetrations 2012
fabric. Appropriate  for | and sampling
buildings due for demolition or
refurbishment or other works
liable to disturb the building
fabric
P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit

Mr Graham Buchan

Page 28 of 35

Management-Level Asbestos Building

Survey

October 2016

Form No

30-014

Date of Issue |

27/04/2016

Issue no.

5.0

Page 118




A6.2 Survey Types

A Management survey involves assessing all visible surfaces of the building fabric and all
readily accessible elements. Specifically, it is stressed that a Management survey should not
be relied upon to confirm the presence/absence of asbestos in buildings prior to
refurbishment, demolition or any works liable to disturb non-surface elements of the building
fabric as these items may not have been included within the scope of a Management survey.
Where such work is proposed, a Refurbishment/Demolition survey is required.

A Management asbestos survey scope does not permit intrusions within elements (e.g.
behind walls, under floorboards) of the building fabric.

Surveys are necessarily representative. Given the ways in which asbestos materials were
utilised in buildings, a full and comprehensive Management survey cannot warrant that all
the locations of asbestos in a building have been identified. As such, it is prudent where
major building disturbance works are proposed, a Refurbishment/Demolition survey is
commissioned, and that site health and safety management arrangements includes for
emergency procedures in the event of suspect asbestos materials being uncovered during
demolition.

Whilst great care has been taken to ensure that all ACMs have been located and identified,
no survey can guarantee that all asbestos present in an area has been uncovered.

The following (Table A6.3) specific caveats and qualifications are required under the
company’s professional indemnity cover and should be taken into consideration when
interpreting the findings of this report:

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 29 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 119



A6.3 Caveats

1

Access

The asbestos survey requires access to be gained to all lofts, sub-floor areas, solums, crawl spaces,
roofs etc. to allow close inspection, penetration and sampling where necessary. This quotation
assumes that the client has made Ethos aware of all of such spaces and either provided access to these
areas or made Ethos aware of the access which will be required. Should Ethos discover an area which
has not been brought to Ethos’ attention, an additional charge may require to be made to gain access.

Work at height

Survey work at heights above 2.0m (i.e. fabric above height of 4.0m) will require provision of a safe
working platform. This quotation will only include for this item if the client has made Ethos aware of
access restrictions. The client should either satisfy themselves that this will not be required, ensure
provision of such an item(s) where necessary, or should advise the surveyor accordingly to enable
review of this proposal so that we can incorporate this item into our costings.

Occupancy

The client is advised as to the nature of a Refurbishment/Demolition survey, specifically that it involves
penetrative, intrusive investigation of surface fabric in order to access and inspect underlying surfaces
of the building structure.

This necessarily may involve significant disturbance and damage to the building fabric. It is assumed
that the client is aware that normal occupancy of the building is not usually possible during a
Refurbishment/Demolition asbestos survey for reasons of health & safety primarily, but also occupant
convenience and nuisance.

This proposal assumes access for the purposes of surveying can be gained during normal working
hours, and the surveying exercise will not be disrupted by other contractors/building occupants. The
client should satisfy themselves with this restriction, or should advise the surveyor such that we can
incorporate night-time/weekend working into the costing.

Damage and Disturbance

Refurbishment/Demolition surveys necessarily involve damage and disturbance to surface building
fabric such as floors, walls, ceilings and roofs. While precautions will be taken to avoid damage to
suspect asbestos-containing materials (and any such damage is the responsibility of Ethos and will be
cleaned up and made safe immediately), it is stressed that for the purposes of this quotation it is
assumed that clean-up and cosmetic repair/ making-good will not normally be required for any other
(non-asbestos) materials disturbed, on the basis that the building (or parts of) within the survey scope
will not be occupied subsequent to the site survey work.

The client should satisfy themselves with this restriction, or should advise the surveyor to the contrary,
such that we can incorporate making-good etc. of penetrations, intrusions etc. into the costing.

It is further assumed for the purposes of this quotation that elements of the building fabric will not be
penetrated where it is considered that this will impact on the weatherproof integrity of the premises
(roof primarily). If the client requires the roof to be penetrated this requires to be specifically indicated
in advance of the survey site work.

P6799.01

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit

Management-Level Asbestos Building

Page 30 of 35 Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 120




Electrical and Other Services

This quotation assumes that the survey team will not be restricted during the survey by concerns
relating to live services in general, and concealed live electrical cabling in particular.

Electrical switchgear, distribution boards, plant and fuse boxes requires to be opened up for a
Refurbishment or Demolition survey. This quotation assumes, therefore, that electrical supply to all
parts of the premises requiring survey will be isolated and certification (or similar) to that effect, by a
competent electrical contractor will be available on-site prior to commencement of the survey. Should
this not be available, all electrical equipment will not be accessed.

Similarly, gas boilers/heaters will not necessarily be intrusively accessed unless the client has
specifically requested this and indicated that the gas supply has been isolated.

Concealed Spaces

Concealed spaces that may exist within the fabric of the premises, where the extent of these is not
evident due to inaccessibility or insufficient knowledge of the structure (e.g. absence of site plans) at
the time of the survey, may not be surveyed or reported on.

In particular, Ethos Environmental Ltd is not responsible for accessing such areas if the location of any
access hatch/door etc. is not reasonably visible, or has not otherwise been specifically indicated to the
surveyor by the client in advance of the survey.

The client must make Ethos aware, prior to commencement of the survey of the location of any such
spaces on site.

Functional Integrity

Sampling and/or intrusive penetrations may affect the functional integrity of the item concerned, e.g.
fuses within electrical distribution switch gear, certain gaskets, fire doors, anti-vibration gaiters, lift
brake shoes etc. The client should indicate items where such activities are not to be undertaken, and
be advised that this exclusion may impact on the scope/extent of the Refurbishment/Demolition
survey. Where these have not been identified as a specific exclusion, they will be surveyed. Ethos will
not be responsible for any damage to items intended for exclusion from the survey but where not
notified to Ethos in advance of the survey.

10

Insulation

Reasonable attempts will be made to inspect pipework which is concealed by overlying non-asbestos
insulation (for the presence of underlying asbestos insulation/paper/debris etc.). However this
inspection is necessarily limited: the absence of underlying asbestos debris (or similar) on pipework,
which is not readily visible or inspection of which would require the removal and replacement of
overlying insulation materials, cannot be assumed.

11

Representative Sampling

Samples will be taken only where deemed necessary. Where a suspected material appears to be
repeatedly used within an area (e.g. insulation boards, sprayed insulation, asbestos cement products),
a representative number of samples only will be collected.

P6799.01

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit

Management-Level Asbestos Building

P 310f 35
ageslo Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 121




12

Fillers

Rawl plugs and similar filler materials which may contain asbestos, the location of which is hidden by
a wall coating, are extremely difficult to identify in asbestos surveys, whether management surveys or
refurbishment/demolition surveys.

13

Textured coatings

Reasonable attempts will be made to survey and sample textured coatings (e.g. Artex or similar)
however the client is advised that these materials may be highly inhomogeneous and can vary
significantly with regard to the asbestos presence/absence.

14

Licensable Asbestos Materials

This quotation assumes that no licensable asbestos materials are present in locations which conceal
other building fabric which may require to be accessed for the purposes of this survey.

The client should satisfy themselves (e.g. by review of existing asbestos register) that this is the case,
and that they have an appropriate understanding of the location of all ACMs at the Management
Survey (formerly Type 2 survey) level. If it is established during the survey, that there are licensable
ACMs which require to be removed in order to complete the survey, the client will be informed and a
report will be issued detailing the limitations to the report. Alternatively the client can commission
the licensed removal works to enable the survey to be completed in this respect, although there may
be an additional charge for returning to site.

15

Underground Services and Ducts

On occasion building and sites can have underground services which are unknown to the current
occupier. Ethos will survey underfloor ducts and solums where safe access can be provided. However,
Ethos will not investigate the site to identify the presence of underground services which have not
been identified by our client or their agents.

P6799.01

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit

Management-Level Asbestos Building

Page 32 of 35 Survey

Mr Graham Buchan October 2016

Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 122




A6.4 General Service Constraints

This report and the survey carried out in connection with the report (together the “Services”) were undertaken
by Ethos Environmental Ltd for the client in accordance with the terms of a contract between Ethos
Environmental Ltd and the client.

The services were performed by Ethos Environmental Ltd with the skill and care ordinarily exercised by a
reasonable environmental consultant authorised under the company’s UKAS-accredited asbestos building
surveying service for asbestos surveying, at the time the services were performed. Further, and in particular,
the services were performed taking into account the limits of the scope of works required by the client, the
timescale involved and the resources - including financial and manpower resources - agreed between Ethos
Environmental Ltd and the client.

Other than that expressly detailed above, Ethos Environmental Ltd provides no other representation or
warranty whether express or implied in relation to the services.

Unless otherwise agreed in advance, the services were performed by Ethos Environmental Ltd exclusively for
the purposes of the client. Ethos Environmental Ltd is not aware of any interest of or any reliance by any party
other than the client in or on the Services.

Unless expressly provided in writing, Ethos Environmental Ltd does not authorise, consent or condone any party
other than the client relying upon the services. Should this report or any part of the report, or otherwise details
of the services, or any part of the services, be made known to any such party, and such party relies thereon,
that party does so wholly at its own and sole risk and Ethos Environmental Ltd disclaims any liability to such
parties. Any such party would be well advised to seek independent advice from a competent UKAS-accredited
asbestos consulting laboratory and/or lawyer.

It is Ethos Environmental Ltd’s understanding that this report is to be used for the purpose described in the
introduction to the report. That purpose was a significant factor in determining the scope and level of the
services. Should the purpose for which the report is used, or the proposed use of the site change, this report
may no longer be valid, and any further use of or reliance upon the report in those circumstances by the client
without Ethos Environmental Ltd’s review and advice shall be at the client’s sole and own risk.

Should Ethos Environmental Ltd be requested to review the report after the date hereof, Ethos Environmental
Ltd shall be entitled to additional payment at the then existing rates or such other such terms as agreed between
Ethos Environmental Ltd and the client.

Under the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012, the duty-holder requires to implement an asbestos
management system, one part of which is the undertaking of an asbestos building survey. HSG264 asbestos
building surveys necessarily involve a significant degree of subjective assumption by the surveyor, as to:

the likelihood of asbestos being present within an element,
an appropriate sampling strategy/frequency;
the representativeness of a sample obtained for a particular element

o000

The extent to which another element in the building can be considered to be the same as one already
addressed.

The client should satisfy themselves as to the suitability of the survey report in terms of its scope, areas accessed
and findings. Where the client has cause to question any aspect of the report, Ethos Environmental Ltd will not

be held liable for any costs (financial or in kind, direct or indirect) incurred by the client or third parties, where:

A. Ethos Environmental Ltd has not been given the opportunity to review the report, and offer a remedial
response within a reasonable timescale subsequent to the client raising concerns; and,

B. These costs were incurred before this response/review by Ethos Environmental Ltd.

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 33 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 123




The passage of time may result in changes in site conditions, regulatory or other legal provisions, technology or
economic conditions which could, render the report inaccurate or unreliable. The information and conclusions
contained in this report should not be relied upon in the future without the written advice of Ethos
Environmental Ltd. In the absence of such advice, reliance on the report in the future shall be at the client’s
own and sole risk. Should Ethos Environmental Ltd be requested to review the report in the future, Ethos
Environmental Ltd shall be entitled to additional payment at the then existing rate or such other terms as may
be agreed in advance between Ethos Environmental Ltd and the client

The observations and conclusions described in this report are based solely upon the services which were
provided pursuant to the agreement between the client and Ethos Environmental Ltd. Ethos Environmental Ltd
has not performed any observations, investigations, studies or testing not specifically set out or required by the
contract between the client and Ethos Environmental Ltd. Ethos Environmental Ltd is not liable for the existence
of any condition, the discovery of which would require performance of services not otherwise contained in the
services.

For the avoidance of doubt, the scope of this survey type and the specific buildings/areas accessed should be
reviewed by the client in conjunction with the specific caveats relating to normal access expectations for each
survey type.

Whilst our site lead surveyor will usually indicate to the client (while on-site) what areas (which could normally
be expected to be accessed) could in fact not be accessed due to physical restrictions (e.g. locked door,
significant heavy plant/equipment preventing inspection), or safety concerns, unless the client can provide a
site escort during the survey, Ethos Environmental Ltd cannot be held responsible for communicating this
information to the client when on-site, or otherwise prior to completion of the report (when it will be reported).
In these circumstances, Ethos Environmental Ltd will also not be responsible for costs associated with returning
to site to survey areas which could not be accessed/safely accessed originally, where it would be reasonable to
expect that the client would have ensured access/safe access and a safe working environment and/or a site
contact to liaise with whilst on-site.

Ethos Environmental Ltd reserves the right to not undertake sampling in specific areas which are occupied.
While the site surveyor will endeavour to inform the client (while on-site) of this, unless the client can provide a
site escort at all times during the survey, Ethos Environmental Ltd cannot be held responsible for communicating
this information to the client when on-site, or otherwise prior to completion of the report.

In these circumstances, Ethos Environmental Ltd will also not be responsible for returning to site to obtain
samples from areas where this could not - in the opinion of the surveyor - be safely done originally, where it
would be reasonable to expect that the client could have arranged to remove occupants prior to the survey or
would provide a site contact to liaise with whilst on-site.

The services are based upon Ethos Environmental Ltd’s observations of the building(s), and as detailed in any
site plan/building diagram or other documentation provided by the client. The services are clearly limited by the
accuracy of the documentation provided by the client. Ethos Environmental Ltd was not authorised and did not
attempt to independently verify the accuracy or completeness of information, documentation or materials
received from the client or third parties during the performance of the services.

Unless agreed in writing with the client prior to commencement of the survey, site plans, building drawings or
schematics of any description will not necessarily be included in the report. Ethos Environmental Ltd retains the
right to use such materials in the report in specific situations where (in the opinion of the surveyor) their
inclusion will assist the client in identifying the location of an ACM. Any site drawings provided in this report are
not meant to be accurate plans, but are used to assist the client in establishing the general locations of ACMs.

Unless agreed in writing with the client prior to commencement of the survey, photographs will not necessarily
be included in the report. Ethos Environmental Ltd retains the right to use photographs in the report for specific
situations where (in the opinion of the surveyor) their inclusion will assist with reporting to the client either the
nature of the element itself (e.g. extent, condition), or its actual location

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 34 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 124



This report provides information on all materials which have been found to - or are assumed to - contain

asbestos. The report does not necessarily discuss elements of the building fabric which have been found to - or
are assumed to - not contain asbestos

P6799.01 Ethos Environmental Ltd
B i i -L Buildi
urnside Poultry Unit Page 35 of 35 Management-Level Asbestos Building
Survey
Mr Graham Buchan October 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue | 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



Keepers
Lickleyhead

. Premnay, Insch
Black Hill Ecology
Tel:07557852369

Email: info@blackhillecology.co.uk
Specialist Ecological Consultants Web: www.blackhillecology.co.uk

Bat Survey Report: Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

CLIENT

G Buchan
School Drive
Aberdeen
AB24 1TP

© Black Hill Ecology 2016

Page 127



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

Control Sheet

Report title Bat Survey Report
Client G Buchan
Location Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

Lead ecologist

|. Mackie

Report author

Dr. I. Mackie

Black Hill Ecology has prepared this report in accordance with the instructions of their client, G Buchan, for his sole and specific
use. No liability is accepted for any costs claims or losses arising from the use of this report or any part thereof for any purpose
other than that for which it was specifically prepared or by any party other than G Buchan. This report was prepared by an
environmental specialist and does not purport to constitute legal advice.

Black Hill Ecology

Page 128



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

Contents
F S L o o I 4
N T - 7ol (- T L1 4
F N - ¥ Ut o T 4
- S I L . o 4
B  SURVEY AND SITE ASSESSMENT L .uuotoiiin i ee e e ees e oo aa e oo o aa e ceacaaseaosanaaaaananeas 6
B.1 PRE-EXISTING INFORMATION ON THE BAT SPECIES AT THE SURVEY SITE. o ccuuuceeceuneeceennceennnnaannens 6
B.2 STATUS OF SPECIES THAT MAY BE ENCOUNTERED . uucecnceeee s eee s seamnse s sm s mmmmm mmmmm mmmmmmmmmm mmnn 6
B.Z.1 BATS WHICH MAY BE ROOSTING WITHIN THE SITE AND UK STATUS o v vt ieeiteeeireeeireerreerrrassranennans 6
B.3 OBJECTIVE(S) OF SURVEY .. .uucucsceeecacmessams s samammsmaamn s smmm e m s mmammmn e mmm e nnmmmmmn e n 6
B.4 SURVEY AREA DESCRIPTION .ucc s e e s s s ee s s ee s s s mn s s mmn o s mmm o s mm o o s mm o s mm s s mmm s mmm mm mmmmm mmmmm mmmn 6
5 3 T (I o Y - 7
T B oy 1 e e o 7
T A BT N 7
B.5.3 WEATHER CONDITIONS 4 tseesrseesssaesnsasssasessasessassssassssasssessssessssessssessssessssesssensnnans 7
T A = Yo ] ] o O 7
5 30T 4 3 ] I 5 8
BBl DAY SURVEY +rvtees it eee it eeireetrreearae raaessasessassssassssassrassssassssassssassssessssesssenesnans 8
B.B.Z  DUSK/ DAWN SURVEYS + e rreerseerreesnsasssasessasessassssassssesssessssesessessssessssessssesssesesnans 8
B.7 INTERPRETATION AND EVALUATION OF SURVEY RESULTS o ccuuu e ccenaeneeancen e nncansennnnneennnnaannnns 9
B.7. 1 PRESENCE/ ABSENCE vrvenssesssseesnsaesssasssasessasessassssassssasssessssessssessssessssessssesssenssnans 9
B.7.2 SITE STATUS ASSESSMENT {COMBINING QUANTITATIVE, QUALITATIVE, FUNCTIONAL AND CONTEXTUAL FACTORS)
9
B.7.3 CONSTRAINTS (FACTORS INFLUENCING SURVEY RESULTS ). s e ereassaseesssasssnssnssnssssssessessesssssssnsnns 9
O o 0 [ o I ] [ ] 9
O T o T 1L [ L 9
0 S T 9
3

Black Hill Ecology

Page 129



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

A2

A3

Introduction

Background

Black Hill Ecology was commissioned by G Buchan to carry out a bat survey at a proposed
development of the Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty. This report describes the works undertaken
during the assessment of possible effects of the development on bats at the specified site.

Bat Ecology

There are 17 species of bat currently resident in the UK. Nine species are known from Scotland.
All are believed to be in continuing decline as they face many threats to their highly developed
and specialised life cycles. In general, their dependence on insects has left them vulnerable to
habitat destruction, land drainage, habitat fragmentation, agricultural intensification and
increased use of pesticides. Their reliance on buildings and decaying trees has also made them
vulnerable to sanitation felling, repairs and the use of timber treatment chemicals.

In the UK, bats are generally active from late March to mid-October, hibernating from late
October to mid March. In early summer, females gather in “maternity” roosts to give birth,
normally producing a single offspring per year. This slow rate of reproduction inhibits repopulation
in areas of rapid decline. Bats are generally born in June/July and are dependent on their mothers
for about six weeks. In autumn and winter, male and females gather for mating. The females are
able to store sperm until spring when an egg may be fertilised. In winter, bats hibernate in sites
that have a cool, humid and stable climate. Bats generally return to the same roost sites every
year which makes them particularly vulnerable to disturbance or destruction of these sites. Some
species of bat move roost frequently and use a number of different roost sites.

Legislation

The infermation below is intended only as guidance to the legislation relating to these species.
The Acts themselves should be referred to for the correct legal wording and legal advice sought
where required.

All bats are included in Schedule 2 of the Conservation {(Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994
(as amended), which implement the requirements of the Habitats Directive in England, Scotland
and Wales.

It is an offence for anyone without a license to:
Intentionally or recklessly/deliberately injure, take or Kill a bat;
* To possess a bat {(unless obtained legally) whether alive or dead;
* Intentionally or recklessly/deliberately damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place
that bats use for shelter or protection whether bats are present or not;
. Intentionally or recklessly/deliberately disturb a bat while it is occupying a structure or
place that it uses for shelter or protection.
* deliberately disturb bats in such a way as to be likely significantly to affect—
(i) the ability of any significant group of bats te survive, breed, or rear or nurture
their young; or
(ii) the local distribution or abundance of that species;

Prosecution could result in imprisonment, fines per animal affected and confiscation of vehicles
and equipment used.

Exemptions can be granted from the protection afforded to bats under the Habitat Regulations, by
means of an EPS (European Protected Species) Habitats Regulations licence obtained from Scottish
Natural Heritage.

An ‘EPS Habitats Regulations Licence’ could be required for:

Removal of trees known to be used by bats as well as tree pruning
Significant alterations to roof voids known to be used by bats
Road building or widening

Bridge strengthening

Black Hill Ecology

Page 130



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

There are three tests, which must be satisfied, before a licence can be issued to permit otherwise
prohibited acts;

. Regulation 44(2)(e), for the purpose of preserving public health or public safety or other
imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social or economic
nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the environment; or 44 (2)
(f) for the purpose of preventing the spread of disease; or 44(2)(g) for the purpose of
preventing serious damage to livestock, foodstuffs for livestock, crops, vegetables, fruit,
growing timber or any other forms of property or to fisheries; subject to Scottish Natural
Heritage being satisfied that the application additionally meets:

* Regulation 44(3)(a) that there is no satisfactory alternative; and

* Regulation 44(3)(b) that the action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance
of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status in their natural range.

A European Protected Species Licence is required before the commencement of any development
that requires one due to its impact on bats or their roosts.

Black Hill Ecology

Page 131



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

B Survey and site assessment

B.1 Pre-existing information on the bat species at the survey site.

Within ca. Skm of the site there are six records of pipistrelle bats (Pipistrel{us spp.), a single
record of brown long-eared bats (Plecotus auritus) and a single record of Daubenton’s bats (Myotis
daubentonii). Although there are no records of Natterer’s bats (Myotis nattereri) they are known
from the area and may possibly be encountered'.

B.2 Status of species that may be encountered

B.2.1 Bats which may be roosting within the site and UK Status

Common pipistrelle (Pipistrellus pipistrelius): Locally widespread and commaon. Nationally
widespread and common.

Sopranoc pipistrelle (Pipistrellus pygamaeus): Locally widespread and common. Nationally
widespread and common.

Nathusius' pipistrelle (Pipistrefius nathusii): Possibly locally widespread but rare. Possibly
nationally widespread but rare.

Daubenton’s bat (Myotis daubentonii): Locally widespread and common. Nationally widespread
and common.

Natterer’s bat (Myotis nattereri): Locally widespread but not common. Nationally widespread but
not common.

Brown long-eared bat (Plecotus auritus): Locally widespread and common. Nationally widespread
and common.

B.3 Objective(s} of survey

The survey set out to assess:

a) what species of bat were present at the site;

b) what types of bat roosts were found within the site;

c) what population levels of bats (size and importance) were present or used roosts at the
site.

B.4 Survey area description

The site of the proposed development, Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty, is around 80m above sea
level and located in a rural Aberdeenshire setting surrounded by improved and arable farmland, a
considerable distance from the nearest major watercourse and a kilometre from the nearest
woodland block, accessed by a farm track half a kilometre south west of Blackburn (OS LR:
NJ832119). The Burnside Poultry Shed Site consists of a gable ended, single storey, timber clad,
pitched sheet roofed Poultry Shed (Figures 1-4). There are a number of roof vents and the inside is
lined. Plans are to demolish and new build on site.

Black Hill Ecology

Page 132



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

B.5

Figure 1. The Shed from front. Figure 2. The Shed from rear.

Figure 3. The Shed internal view Figure 4. The Shed roof condition

Field Survey

B.5.1 Methods

On the 29th of August 2016 the site at Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty was surveyed for potential
roost sites and signs of use by bats. An evening emergence survey was carried out on the 29th of
August 2016 to observe and record any emerging bats. A dawn return survey took place on the
morning of the 16th of September 2016 in order to observe and record any returning bats.

B.5.2 Timing

On 29th of August 2016 a dusk emergence survey was carried out at Burnside Poultry Shed,
Clinterty. On the 29th of August 2016 an internal and external survey of Burnside Poultry Shed was
carried out. On the 16th of September 2016 a dawn return survey was carried out.

B.5.3 Weather conditions

The temperature at the start of the dusk emergence survey was 15°C and it was 14°C at the time
of the dawn return survey. Cloud cover was 100% on the night of the emergence survey and 100%
for the return survey, there was no rain and wind speed was low during the surveys other than
light rain for ten minutes starting ten minutes before sunrise on the morning of the dawn return.
Bats were active during both survey periods and weather conditions were suitable for carrying out
bat surveys.

B.5.4 Personnel

All work was carried out by licensed bat workers (IM and RMS : Roost Conservation Licence 44706)
with the assistance of an experienced ecological surveyor (AJB) with over two decades of
combined experience surveying bats.

Black Hill Ecology

Page 133



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

B.6

Results

B.6.1 Day Survey

Internal

On the 29th of August 2016 no bats were seen roosting and no signs of use were observed in any of
the internal space or on any internal storage items or fixtures surveyed.

External

All external areas of the Burnside Poultry Shed were surveyed for physical evidence of use by bats
(Figure 4). There was no evidence of bat droppings on or under any of the sheets, ridge or pointing
or any other external structure or in or around any external fixtures surveyed.

B.6.2 Dusk/Dawn Surveys

Dusk Emergence

An emergence survey was carried out to visually observe any bats emerging from roost sites and if
present confirm species identity with the use of a Pettersson D1000x bat detector, D980 Bat
Detector and an Ultrasound Advice U30 bat detector and recorder. Surveyors positioned
themselves so the site remained in the detection envelope of the bat detectors at all times, all
aspects could be observed and maintained contact with two-way radios (Motorola T80s). Thirty
minutes before sunset no social calls from roosting bats could be heard from any part of Burnside
Poultry Shed, Clinterty. The emergence survey began 15 mins before sunset and continued for one
and a half hours after sunset. No bats were observed or recorded emerging from any part of the
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty.

Dawn Return

A dawn return survey was carried out to visually observe bats returning to roost sites and if
present confirm species identity. The dawn return survey began one and a half hours before
sunrise and continued until just after sunrise. No bats were observed or recorded returning to
roost at the site at Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty.

Overall bat activity on site was low with only a few faint bat passes heard during both surveys.

Figure 5. Plan of Burnside Poultry Shed with locations of surveyors as blue circles (original curtesy
of AKA).

Black Hill Ecology

Page 134



Bat Survey
Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty

B.7

c.1

Interpretation and evaluation of survey results

B.7.1 Presence/absence

The survey observed no signs of use by bats and found no bats roosting in any of the physical
structure of the dwelling due for development at Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty. The area has
records of bat roosts and the inspection was carried out in detail and at close order. There was no
indication from a daylight, dusk emergence and dawn return survey that the property is used by
bats.

B.7.2 Site status assessment (combining quantitative, gqualitative, functional and contextual
factors)

There is no evidence to suggest the site is used by roosting bats despite a thorough daylight, dusk
emergence and dawn return summer bat survey.

B.7.3 Constraints (factors influencing survey results)

There were no constraints to close inspection of all parts of the site externally and internally
however, there are no accessible roof voids. Weather conditions were suitable for an appropriate
summer dusk emergence and dawn return bat survey as per BCT guidelines.

Conclusions
Conclusions

* Nosigns were found to indicate bats use the site at Burnside Poultry Shed, Clinterty as a
roost site.

* The results indicate that no mitigation is required.

* The results indicate an EPS licence will not be required to carry out works.
However, as bats change roosts regularly there presence at the site in the future cannot be
completely ruled out. In the event that bats are encountered during works, all works should cease
and Scottish Natural Heritage contacted. If the period of time between this survey and

commencement of development work extends to a further bats’ breeding season another survey to
identify possible use is recommended.

References
Bat Records for Scotland 1970-2007. Scottish Natural Heritage?'.

Harris, S. & Yalden, D. 2008. Mammals of the British Isles. 4™ Edition. The Mammal Society.

Collins, J. (2016). Bat Surveys for Professional Ecologists: Good Practice Guidelines. 3 Edition.
Bat Conservation Trust, London.

Mitchell-Jones, A. J. (2004) Bat Mitigation Guidelines. English Nature, Peterborough.

Black Hill Ecology

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



BURNSIDE POULTRY UNITS, CLINTERTY, ABERDEEN 10/04/2017
DEVELOPMENT OF 2 RESIDENTIAL UNITS
RESIDUAL GROSS PROFIT FEASIBILITY
SYNOPSIS OF FEASIBILITY INDICATORS
% age revenue per PD unit
Total Revenue | 823,400 I 100.00% 411,700
Land and Associated Costs - 0.00% 0
Construction 785,035 95.34% 392,518
Fees 82,008 9.96% 41,004
Sales and Marketing 17,968 2.18% 8,984
Total Costs 885,011 107.48% 442,506
RESIDUAL GROSS PROFIT (inc all Bank & Interest Charges )I— 61,611 I -7.48% -30,806
REVENUE
Ref Description Total Revenue
Area £/m2 £/Plot
1 Sale of Plot 1 179 2300 411,700.00 411,700.00
2 Sale of Plot 2 179 2300 411,700.00 411,700.00
TOTAL REVENUE 823,400.00
COSTS
Land and Associated Costs
Assumed that NIL Land Cost applies -
TOTAL LAND AND ASSOCIATED COSTS - - |
Construction Costs
Works General to Both Sites
Demolition of Buildings as per quote from Morris Senior (copy attached) 65,000
Removal of Existing Trees 1,000
Upgrgade existing Access Road 10,000
Upgrade to Junction with Adopted Road 5,000
House Erection Costs
Plot 1 Construction Costs as per attached Estimate 333,326
Plot 2 Construction Costs as per attached Estimate 333,326
Contingency 5.0% of £ 747,653 37,383
TOTAL OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS 785,035 785,035 |
Professional & Local Authority Fees
Architect 5.0% of 785,035 39,252
Engineer 1.8% of 785,035 14,131
Employers Agent/ QS 1.7% of 785,035 13,346
Planning Applications 1,000
Building Warrant Appl'tions 4,280
Developer Contributions 8,000
Sundry Fees 2 units @ £ 1,000.00 2,000
TOTAL OF PROFESSIONAL FEES 82,008 82,008 |
Sales and Marketing
PD Sales Costs (Marketing) 2.0% of revenue 823,400 16,468
Solicitors Fees 2 Plots @ 750 1,500
17,968 | 17,968 |

TOTAL OF SIBI&@éWRKETING




Burnside Poultry Units, Clinterty, Abe

rdeen

House Construction Cost

Builderwork

Initial General Earthworks

Substructure

External Walls - blockwork and smooth render

Joinerwork

Supply and Deliver Full Timber Kit
Erect Timber Kit

Crainage associated with above
Timber Linings

Supply and Fit Kitchen/ Utility Units
Supply and Fit Vanity Units

Roof Sheeting

Roof Sheeting, inc all accessories

Electrical Work

Allowance per square metre

Plumberwork/ Heating

Water Installation

SVP/ Waste Water
Allowance for Sanitaryware
Hot Water Cylinder

Boiler

Radiators

Gutters and Downpipes

Wood burning Stove, Flue and Hearth

129

85

203

203

163

205

203

203

17

60

Sum

Sum

Nr

Sum

Nr

Nr

Nr

Nr

115.00

90.00

375.00

120.00

80.00

85.00

45.00

15.00

600.00

1,000
1,500
400.00
15.00

5,000

[ 2

5,000.00

14,835.00

7,650.00

76,125.00

24,360.00

2,000.00

13,040.00
15,000.00

4,000.00

17,425.00

9,135.00

3,045.00
1,800.00
7,500.00
1,000.00
1,500.00
6,800.00

900.00

5,000.00

Page 138



Burnside Poultry Units, Clinterty, Aberdeen

House Construction Cost

Taping and Painting

Allowance per square metre

Floor and Wall Finishes

Allowance for Wall Finish to Wet Areas

External Works

Site Works
Driveway and Parking

Paths/ Patio
Landscaping/ Grass
Fencing

Drainage

Surface Water Drains
Soakaway

Foul Water Drains
Septic Tank & Soakaways
Services

Tracking Generally
Electricity Connection

Water Connection

Sub-total

Main Contractors Preliminaries

TOTAL CARRIED TO SUMMARY

203

40

285

75

112

150

120

200

Sum

Sum

Sum

Sum

18%

45.00

85.00

45.00

65.00

15.00

35.00

35.00

25.00

9,135.00

3,400.00

12,825.00

4,875.00
3,000.00

1,680.00

5,250.00
3,000.00
4,200.00

7,500.00

5,000.00
5,000.00

1,500.00

282,480.00

50,846.40

333,326.40

Page 139




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



Morris Senior

Plant & Machinery Dismantlers | Asbestos Sheet Removers

F.A.O. Graham Buchan 25th October 2016
Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty

Kinellar

ABERDEEN

AB2! OTL

QUOTATION

Description

I. Removal of all Non-Licensed Asbestos Waste from site and
Controlled Disposal to a Licensed Asbestos Landfill site.

2. Remove all timber from the site. All timber to be sent to

recycling plant for chipping.

All concrete floors and walls to be crushed, and re-used on site.

4. Move all redundant soil and re-use for site landscaping.

Cat

Total 65.000.00

Payment Terms
30 days from date of invoice.

Muirton, Forgue, Huntly, Aberdeenshire, AB54 6BT Tel 01466 730251 /07831 764134

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



SG CLADDING

CLADDING AND INSULATION SERVICES

Good Morning Graham

| have priced up the Blackburn Project at Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinnellar , Aberdeen
AB21 OTL. The job is quoted for a 40 mm thick composite panels or single skin
sheeting with 150mm thick insulation rolls.

Composite Panels £59,296
Single Skin. f 50,733

This price includes the. Following items

Health and Safety paperwork. £1000
Access Scaffolding. £4840
Asbestos Removal and disposal. £ 12,800
Hire plant. £ 2200
Roof works- £38,456

Composite includes Gable end Flashings, top ridge flashing and integral gutters.

Roof works single skin. £29,893
includes Gable end Flashings, top ridge flashing and integral gutters

If you decide to go ahead with this quotation then | can order the materials, | will do this straight
away if you confirm your happy to go ahead. But | will make you fully aware that the sheets are
made to order which can take between 2 - 4 week waiting time If you have any questions then
please don't hesitate to get In touch.

Kind Regards
Sean Green

DIRECTOR

SG CLADDING

Page 143



Page 144



Py

DESIGN STATEMENT

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
Burnside Poultry

Clinterty, Aberdeen

d K|d

Annie Kenyon |Architects Ltd

Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd
South Lediken Studio
Insch
Aberdeenshire
AB52 6SH
01464 851621
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 145



Contents

Stage 1. Introduction

“Introduce the application, it’s background and identify the context.”

Stage 2. Appraisal

“Identify the environmental, infrastructure, cultural, social and economic context, identity and connectivity features.”

Stage 3. Design Response

“Identify and evaluate options for development in response to the specific features identified.”

Stage 4. Design Solution

“How the layout, landscape, scale, mix, details, materials and maintenance will achieve the design principals identified.”

SIMPLE NOT COMPLICATED

DON'T MAKE SOMETHING
UNLESS I'T°S BOTH
NECESSARY AND USEFUL;
BUT IF I'T°'S BOTH NECESSARY
AND USEFUL, DON'T HESITATE
TO MAKE IT BEAUTIFUL

a k a © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
pmmic Kepon|rties s WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 146



Introduction

“Introduce the application, its background and identify the context.”

This document has been prepared for the site at Burnside Poultry, Aberdeen. The document aims to appraise the site, show
the option identified in discussion with the client and how this has now developed further to form the planning submission.

o L]

é%f F;ﬁw-* ‘“*:mv\
{PT-‘ “‘“"‘F? /’LP” ok Perterhead :}

e { ) Eicne
ol S

4] ¢ Ya ) - ma
— by ¥ m»ﬂl-.--,,\

\

~v
R il Aheres
? Ballater & 2 Faruhory®
| ratracw
/ i Sonehunen @

Location in Scotland Location in Aberdeenshire

T g T b))/ S Caeneg o
‘1 Glasgofore

e _—-._'1-Aq II.-‘ .

Wt ! Ellismoss =

IR Arq 1
" .l'\-"'_gwlnﬁ.

L' .“- ﬂf"u ﬁi“\bﬁ

ﬁﬁs‘-ﬁ?ﬂ‘#‘ =

Burnside Poultry, OS Mé-lp

Burnside Poultry, Aerial Photo

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 147



Appraisal

“Identify the environmental, infrastructure, cultural, social and economic context, identity and connectivity features.”

k © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
dKjd :
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

Page 148




Appraisal

“Identify the environmental, infrastructure, cultural, social and economic context, identity and connectivity features.”

A range of site photographs were taken that record the character of the site, the surrounding views, and mature woodlands.

k © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
4 Kid .
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

Page 149



Appraisal

“Identify the environmental, infrastructure, cultural, social and economic context, identity and connectivity features.”

Site Analysis

A recording of the key features, opportunities and constraints of a site. The drawing is prepared prior to the design process.

ey
~ldry o ——» _ —

Site observations and a desk top study have been used as an indicator to inform the site analysis. A number of key issues were
noted as opportunities and constraints when evaluating the site analysis.

- Redundant poultry sheds to be removed from site.

- Slurry tanks to be removed.

- Hardstanding areas to be cleared (material could be crushed & re-used in development).
- Silo to be removed.

- Overhead electricity lines need to be considered.

- Fantastic long range views across farmland and towards Kirkton Forest.

- South West aspect

- Native trees planted on North to create buffer from A96

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 150



Brownfield Appraisal

1) Rubble area 6) Existing poultry shed

2) Slab 7) Hard standing

3) Rubble track 8) Caravan,

4) Silo 9) Formegpoultry shed foundations
5) Slurry tank 10) Paddbek with topsoil covering

The area (1) in grey is comprised of stones and rubble and does not contain any clean topsoil. It is not possible to cultivate
this area in its currents state as it contains so much in the way of large stones and boulders.

Two large slurry tanks constructed from concrete blocks are still present, one is located at the south - west corner of the ex-
isting shed (5) and was filled in with rubble, the other is at the south- east corner of the large concrete pad (4)and is current-
ly fenced off but still visible.

Although partially overgrown weeds, there is also an access track leading to the rear door of the existing shed, this has been
made up over the years with stones and rubble. Almost the entire area in yellow (below) is not at all usable in any way for
agriculture and could is currently waste ground.

Brownfield Calculation

Former Poultry Building (9) = 696.77 m?
Existing Poultry Shed (6) = 445.93 m?
Slurry Tank SW (5) = 41.80 m?
Access Track (3) = 111.48 m?
Foundations (2) = 278.66 m?
Slurry Tank SE = 27.87 m?
Total = 1602.45 m?

.16 HA
Total Site Area = 6385.5 m?

.63 HA
Percentage of Brownfield on Site = 25.1%

Rubble Area .

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017

pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 151



Initial Ideas

N

r—-’r‘ndrpmrf o 4(S &‘Awm | @

hovse Wt intogretied Grvage.

| option A+ 2 fok dovelogent

tonidor odditionad plaring b RIS
Soreon fom achwity - A
Retins. newly fMLu{

T"‘f.L

— el f’!anﬁﬂj o Novdh - aeade
T butfer fm A

— Gamges sUlA b | @it/
bR Avtndhed. "

Skepvficar T size 4 «_ﬁ__l
phot . Duellings cled a- Novth
o minimise Amok for Acorss & consider amﬂmﬂ ~
s B paolen aren, elechidt

Lﬂﬂ-t, s Mﬂlﬁ/ﬂ_ —

ﬂmmJ LoP% | «Lzr rm,-,a.qm

] Ofion B: 3 pt dorelmpmont B —— .
| %'wamfﬁ Of &[5 Bednam
hevse. with m%agmjrev{ Goaige . @
flarting o Novth redoined
+ aeak lauffm‘.
Fookprint of 3/ Bedwom
r“ houee & A!/%"IM mef,
Gl ovientated N/s Fo
maimise. gevaten /Avewa (g6
lame SW fetei g Hlo i"f“’“@ betwieen huf].lwow_
wibh b= inforvupled views. e o Tts rf;fmvw{.%o_ grovicle
Grdlen space. covled b~/ - pivacy) fom neighlaw
Svb-divided o orestle

swall paddock.

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017

pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 152



Initial Ideas

— bidicative. 4/ Bedmom hause.

| Option C : 3 plok devsbopmert r
| . Defnched Hoges . : @
Neally planted frece retaingd 3 __ Retaun Pim{mﬂ at Novith —
: | Smaemng /buper finim A%,
—— Pivtte drveviays off Fack.

Plot at West most pritate. = soncider — SW anenfetion Fay maximwm

Vg ke 2 plak il il = Aftertonn [eleming swn .
o
Lot SW a-r7ens
Wit - nréawﬁwt Views .
— tonsicder poximuty [eerlooking ¢
- e . - _ ieighbar Af Broombmk
| Ophon D2 2 plot cerelopment Bilding avont e Sout N
[ fat o Sol"ti'ﬂsnini-. New tvack offﬁ i viad. . @
large pooded Spa allocled for
Bulding located at frthgsy r shared space /chdren plety (Phaning
Nerth en st 1o maxiud i wight condihon quirfﬂwﬁ of i),

Hh qedden.
suh gyl s g Oorinied
scheve. vewhypod divenow |

erheunces.

ol insoryaede: o -bnd ding

in ﬂvfdm spact - S@A;‘u/i[ﬂm\m"- BUIHL“If i-di'ks fblﬁﬁﬁfﬂéf 5

frouse.! %&z‘; miomise Vis | bnpact of neighb
1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017

Annic Kenyon | Avchitets Led www.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 153

.;_: —_——




Design Solution

“How the layout, landscape, scale, mix, details, materials and maintenance will achieve the design principals identified.”

Proposed site plan

Establishing design principles by studying the site and context appraisal has enabled informed decisions of rules to be applied to the site.

By studying the vernacular forms and details of the buildings in the surrounding area, it can be established which forms, proportions and
materials are most appropriate. Historically these principles have been adopted due to climatic conditions, as well as materials that are
available close to site. The concepts for the new design are based on these rules and aspire to re-interpret these traditional forms and ideas
to achieve a contemporary solution.

‘We have developed proposals for 2 separate houses on the site at Burnside Poultry using a single house type. The design of this is
contemporary in spirit yet rooted in traditional rural architecture. The houses have been designed to read as a whole together.

Both plots are 4 bedroom dwellings and include:-

+  Carefully placed to allow uninterrupted views South.

+  Individual driveways to obvious front entrances and accessing integral or detached garages.
+ Everyday back doors to boot rooms and utility spaces

+  Options for open plan living.

*  Maximised south facing glazing with fewer North facing openings.

+  Snugs and living spaces with wood burning stoves.

+  Interesting and varied roof lines.

* Double height volumes with sky-lighting over feature staircases and voids.

©  Master bedroom suites with prime views, dressing and en-suite facilities.

k © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
dKjd :
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

10
Page 154



Design Solution

“Identify and evaluate options for development in response to the specific features identified.”

Plot design for both dwellings

ji}

[ 1]

SITTING ROOM

L]

ASTER
sfproOM |

N

Ground floor plan

P Stainless steel

twin walled flue

Corrugated sheet
‘metal roof
45° pitch

Velux or

equiv. rooflights

H——— Galvanised steel
rainwater goods
Smooth wetdash render

Aluminium clad

OO

windows and doors
Scot-larch vertical

timber cladding

North East Elevation

Corrugated sheet

‘metal roof
45° pitch

Veluxor

equiv. rooflights

Galvanised steel

l
l

rainwater goods

Scot-larch vertical

timber cladding

Aluminium clad
windows and doors

South West Elevation

[T N Zan

EDROOM |
= L

saTiRO

N

BEDROPM 3

seonoom s []

L e e

First floor plan

L

South East Elevation

Corrugated sheet
metal roof

45° pitch

Galvanised steel
rainwater goods
Scot-larch horizontal
timber cladding
‘Timber post with steel
shoe connection
Horizontal timber
louvres (shelter)

inless steel

[ ] \

w \

twin walled flue
Aluminium clad
windows and doors
Galvanised steel
rainwater goods
Smooth wetdash render

Scot-larch vertical
timber cladding

North West Elevation

akla

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

© Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 155

11



Design Solutions

“How the layout, landscape, scale, mix, details, materials and maintenance will achieve the design principals.”

Identity | Sense of Place | Materials | Function \ f{
ol
akl|a are proposing Burnside Poultry will have a simple palette =~ =~ O -
of external materials which includes corrugated sheet metal, - -
pale wet dash render and timber cladding. There may be f"r "'.
possibilities to introduce some feature solid timber in Oak or
Douglas Fir.
.. . .. Airtight
Through examining and understanding the traditional rural S =
architecture of the area and reinterpreting it in a contemporary reduce heat loss
manner, we believe that the proposed designs are appropriate 5 ;
for the sites. %
(=]

The designs aim to combine simple gable to gable forms and Renewables

lean-to additions with appropriate proportions, detailing and

materials in order to provide a design which ties into the local context. It is important that we learn from the traditions and
re-interpret design in a contemporary way, as to not mimic; to create a design rooted in tradition but contemporary in spirit.

Renewables | Landscaping
Boundaries will be landscaped and planted to age gracefully while screening neighbouring properties without the need for tall
timber fences. The new homes will be highly sustainable and super insulated with U-values well beyond those required by

current building standards.

The development aims to provide well designed timeless dwellings that create a unique sense of place, sit well in the landscape
and benefit from the site orientation and views.

Wet dash render Profile corrugated metal roof sheeting Natural slate

k © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
dKjd :
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

12
Page 156



S.A.MCGREGOIR

GEOTECHNICAL & ENVIRONMENTAL ONSITE SERVICES

GROUND ASSESSMENT

&
DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT

PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES
BURNSIDE POULTRY UNITS
CLINTERTY
ABERDEEN

AB21 OTT

Client: Agents:

Graham Buchan Annie Kenyon Architects

Report Issued: 315t January 2017

S. A. M°Gregor
Fairmead, Tough, Alford, Aberdeenshire, AB33 S8EQ

Page 157



CONTENTS
Introduction
Site Location & Brief Description

Site Wark
Trial Pifs
FPercalation Tesfing
Infittration Testing

Ground Assessment

Frbiis ed Geoiogy
Fncountered Ground Conditions
Ground Vigter Cheervaticns

Discussion

Serb-Soiis

Seriage Treaiment
Foul iwater Dischargs
Surface MWater Disposal

Crainage Recommendations

Foul water Discharge
SEFA

Surface lWafer Disposal
54 Summarny

Soakaway Design
Indicative Drainage Lavout

Crainage Maintenance & Servicing
Seriage Tregtment Systems

Soakawars
Regulations
Foundation Recommendations
Safe Searing Capacity
APPENDIX A
Site Plans Fig. 1 General & Site Location Plans
Fig. 2. Indicative Site Layout & Test Location Plan
Trial Pits FUWL, FW2, S & SW2
Crainage Fig. 3 Proposed Drainage Layout

Fig. 4 Indicative Soakaway Construction Sketch

Certificates Foul Water Soakaway
Surface Water Soakaway

Page 158



GROUND ASSESS5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

GROUND ASSESSMENT &
DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT

PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES
BURNSIDE POULTRY UNITS
CLINTERTY
ABERDEENSHIRE
AB21 OTT

INTRODUCTION

At the request of Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd., and on behalf of their client Graham Buchan
visits were made to the proposed development site on land at Burnside, Clinterty.

It is proposed to erect 2 new dwellinghouses (4-bedrrom and 5-bedroom) on the site.

The purpose of the visit was to carry out a ground investigation in order to determine the
nature of the materials underlying the site and in particular to undertake the following: -

e to carry out Percolation Testing to assess the suitability of the underground strata for
the discharge of effluent from a septic tank to the ground via a designed sub-surface
soakaway system

e to carry out Infiltration Testing for the design of a surface water disposal system

e to assess sub-soils ground bearing capacity for foundation design

SITE LOCATION & BRIEF DESCRIPTION

The proposed development site is on land at Burnside Poultry Units, Clinterty, on land all under
the ownership of the applicants. Access to the site is from the A96 and local roads, OS NGR NJ
84511, 11149 (approx. centre of site), see Fig. 1. General & Site Location Plans in Appendix A.

The proposed development sites are partially occupied by former poultry units, now redundant,
and with adjacent pasture overlain by grass.

The site is relatively level with a very gentle slope down towards the south.

The site is currently serviced by electricity, mains water supply and telephone. There is mains
sewer available.

There are no wells used for the supply of potable water within 50m of the site.

SITE WORK

Trial Pits

On the 13th December 2016, a tracked excavator with a 0.50m bucket excavated trial pits to
order to assess the underlying ground conditions and to carry out percolation and infiltration
testing in the areas of the potential foul and surface water sub-surface soakaways.

The locations of the trial pits were determined on site taking into account the proposed site
layout and the topography of the site and are indicated on Fig. 2. Proposed Site Layout & Test
Location Plan in Appendix A.

S. A. MTGREGOR Page 3 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 159



FParcolation Testing
Percolation testing was carried out in test holes adjacent to observation trial pits FW1 and P2

in accordance with BS6297 2007+A1,2008 and as described in Section 3.9 aof the Scottish
Building Standards Technical Handbaook {Domestic), the test results are tabulated below: -

Date of Testing 13" December 2016 Fii'1 Fii'2
Average time taken for water

to drain 3 times in each sump hole 4470 5370
(middle 150mm)]

Depth of Water Table below Ground Level (m) »2.20 »2.20
Average Soil Percolation Value, Vp, s/mm 29.8 35.8

Infiftration Testing
Infiltration testing was only carried aut in trial pits SW1 and SW2 in full accordance with BRE
Digest 365, the test results are tabulated below: -

Trial Pit Pit Dimensions Test Zone In-Fill Soil Infiltration Rate,
Ma. (W x LIm (mbegl} F{mfs})
Sl 0.50x 1.50 0.50 - 1.50 Cpen 1.11 x 10
SN2 0.50x 1.20 0.50 —1.50 Cpen Q.25 x 10°
GROUND ASSESSMENT

Published Geology

The British Geological Survey 1.50.000 Superficial and Bedrock maps have no record of the
Quaternary depasits of the area. The site is underlain by the Aberdeen Farmation {(Diamictan -
Psammite and Semipslite]) Metamorphic Bedrock formed approximately 542 to 1000 million
vears ago, during the Dalradian Period.

Encountered Ground Conditions

Topsail
The site is averlain by grass and tapsail 500mm - 800mm in thickness,

Natural Sub-5cifs

The underlying natural sub-sails are laose and medium dense arange brown and grey silty to
very silty sands and gravels (completely weathered rock) becoming dense and proved to the
maximum investigated depth of 2.00m.

Bedrock
In-tact bedrock was not encountered during the investigation,

Groundwater Observations

Groundwater was not encountered during the investigation or abserved during the manitoring
period. No visual indication (no seepages or discoloration) of the seasonally high ar fluctuating
ground water table was sesn in the strata above the encountered depths of 2.00m,

Page 160



DISCUSSION

Sub-5oifs
The silty sandy gravelly nature of the underlying soils and the test results confirmed the
moderate draining properties of the sub-sails.

Sewage freatment
The soil percalation valuess, ¥p, are betwesn 15-120 s/mm and therefore standard septic tanks

are considerad suitable for this development. A septic tank with @ minimum capadity of 3,750
litres is suitable for a population of up to & persons.

Foul Water Discharge
A sub-surface stone-filled soakaway (infiltration system) is considered suitable for the discharge
af foul waters from the proposed sewage treatment system,

The soakaway should comply with the Domestic Technical Handbook (para. 3.9.2) which sets
aut guidance an design and in accordance with the requirements of SEFA Regulatory Method
(WAT-RM-04) Indirect Sewage Discharges to Groundwater,

Surface Water Disposal
The disposal of surface waters from a new develapment needs to be assessed in terms of both

the guantity and the guality of the discharge for Building Regulations and SEPA,

DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATIONS

Foul Water Discharge

In arder to comply with the Domestic Technical Handbook (para. 3.9.2) which sets out
guidance an how propasals may mest the Building Standards set out in the Building {(Scotland )
Regulations 2004, an infiltration system must be designed and constructed in accordance with
the reguirements of SEFA,

Lking the soil percolation values, and in accordance with the regulations the minimum base
area, A far the foul water sub-surface soakaway is derived from 4 = ¥ax FEx 0.25, see the
following table; -

Population With Secondary
Proposed Equivalent, PE Min. Base Area Treatment
Devel:.pment (as defined in BW COP:13.11/13) (m 1} {mzj
Plot 1 Mew 6 (up to 4-bedroom} 30 24
Dwelling House
Flot 2 MNew 7 (up to 5-bedroam) 63 50
Delling House

Full details of the proposed sewage treatment system will be made available to the Building
Stanclards Officer aonce it has been determined after consultation with suppliers which model is
the mast suitable for the proposed development and the potential population equivalent of the
dwelling house,

SEEA
The final installed sewage treatment system and discharge will require to be registered with
SEFA under CAR.

Page 161



Surface Water Disnasal

The disposal of surface waters from a new development need to be assessad in terms of bath
the quantity and the guality of the discharge for Building Reaulations and SEFA. The quality of
the discharage has been assessed using the SIA Tool as summarised below: -

Step 1 Runoff Area Land Use Description Residential Roofing
Pallution Hazard Leve| Very Low
Pallution Hazard Indices
155 | 0.2
Metals | 0.2

Hydrocarbons | 0.05

Step 24 Suls Camponent Desciption
(for disthage to waterbody ) Conmpanent 1 | None

Aggreqated Surface Water Pollution Mitigation Index
155 | O

Metals | [ Ma discharge to waterbody
Hydrocarbons | O

Step 2B Sul: Camponent Desciption
(for disthage to the groundwater] Companent 1 | Infiltration Trench
(with min. 300mm depth of filker materiall

Paollution Hazard Indices
1S5 | 0.4

Metals | 0.4

Hydrocarbons | 0.4

Groundwater Protection Pollution Mitigation Index
155 | 04

Metals | 0.4

Hydrocarbons | 0.4

Step 2C Cambined Pallution Mitigation Indices
for the Runoff Area 155 | 04
Metals | 0.4

Hydrocabaons | 0.4

Step 200 | suffickency of Pollution Mitigation [ndices
155 | Sufficient

Metals | Sufficient
Hydrocarbons | Sufficient

The size of the propased infiltration trench (stone-filled sub-surface soakaway) is based an the
impermeable surface area of the development i.e. the new dwellinghouse roof areas,

Soakaway Design
Using the soil infiltration rates calculated the fallowing aptimum dimensians far the soakaway
are shown on the fallowing table: -

Impermeable Width Length Storage depth Half-Empty
Area (m?) {m) (m]) {m] Time (Hours)

Mew House 1 1.00 22.7 3.59

Roof Area 2.00 12.0 1.50 6.43

Up to 155m2 3.00 3.2 8.22
4.00 5.0 9.08

Mew House 2 1.00 35.90 4.38

Roof Area 2.00 18.00 1.50 8.14

Up to 240m?2 3.00 12.80 10.93
4.00 9.70 12.72
5.00 7.70 13.67

Page 162



GROUND ASSESS5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Indicative Drainage Layout

The indicative soakaway locations are shown on Fig 3. with sketches indicating soakaway
construction shown on Fig. 4 and the certificates for proposed soakaways are all attached in
Appendix A.

DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE & SERVICING

Sewage Treatment System
All servicing and maintenance should be undertaken in full accordance with the manufacturer’s
literature or by a responsible qualified person.

The sewage treatment system should be regularly inspected and ‘desludged’ (emptied) when
appropriate to ensure solids and silts do not ‘clog’ the soakaway or make their way to the
discharge outlet.

Soakaways
The soakaways are designed for the life time of the proposed development as long as they are
not allowed to silt up nor the pipework to be blocked.

A silt trap should be installed prior to the discharge of surface water to the soakaway and
specifically designed to retain sediment in a separate zone so that the sediment will not be re-
suspended. The trap should be readily easy for access for maintenance.

If a soakaway fails to due blockages or silting it should be excavated and reconstructed with
fresh clean stone, new pipework and renewed terram.

During the development of the site, and in particular the excavation of the soakaways, should
any field drains be found within 10m of the soakaway they should be realigned or relocated
accordingly.

REGULATIONS

SEPA and Building Regulations require that infiltration systems (soakaways) are located at least:

e 50m from any spring, well or borehole used as drinking water supply
e 10m horizontally from any water course (including any inland or coastal waters), permeable drain
(including culvert), road or railway

5m from a building
e 5m from a boundary (unless the adjacent land owner under certain circumstances may legally
agree to the soakaway being within 5m as long as it is not detrimental to the neighbouring

property)

FOUNDATION RECOMMENDATIONS

Safe Bearing Capacity
The medium dense to dense nature of the underlying silty sands and gravels have a safe
bearing capacity of 150kN/m? for the design of standard strip footings.

S. A. MTGREGOR Page / of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 163



GROUND ASSESSMBENT & DRAIMAGE RECOMMBENDATION RERQRT GRAHAM BLUCHARM

PROPOSED 2 MEVY DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY AMMIE KEMNYOM ARCHITECTS LTD.
APPENDIX A
Site Flans Fig. 1 General & Site Location Flans

Fig. 2. Indicative Site Layout & Test Location Plan
Trial Fit Logs  FW1, B2, SW1 & SW2

Drainage Fig. 3 Propaosad Drainage Layout
Fig. 4 Indicative Soakaway Canstruction Sketch

Certificates Foul Water Discharge
Surface Water Disposal

5. 4. MGEREGOR Page s of 13 dan-17
COMTRACT Mo, 180617 1S5UE 1

Page 164



GROUND ASSESSMENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Fig. 1. GENERAL & SITE LOCATION PLANS

- m ; '-' .! '=" " '\, .
T ; H
_ Bish

=

.Pstn l"“'h.-'-.'l
R i

iy

— Bushside of ]‘

terkle. Clintert
Clo7N

. I
Caravan Park 552~

/ Copyright Licence No. 100046733, January 2017

21 _ ‘.::--h
&
Extract from AKA Drawing No. 486/P-01, Nov 2016
S. A. M\GREGOR Page 9 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 165




GROUND AS5ES5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Fig. 2. INDICATIVE SITE LAYOUT & TEST LOCATION PLAN

PROPQSED SITE PLAN

Extract from AKA Drawing No. 486/P-02, Nov 16

S. A. M\GREGOR Page 10 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 166




GROUND ASS5ES5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY

GRAHAM BUCHAN

ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Site Trial Pit
Number
S.A. MCGREGDIR Burnside, Clints
ey FW1
Excavation Method Bimensions Ground Level (mGD} Cllent Job
Humbe
Tracked excavator with S0 L. W0 Graham Buchan il
0.50m bucket 120616
Location Dates architect Sheat
13M2520186-
See site plan 18M 272016 Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd. 11
h &
sample | Tests Field Record B Df Descri d B
Dﬁﬂ}h ample 5 ﬁtgﬁ ecords d_.near Il (Thi ?less} scription Legen 2
TOPSOIL
(0.50)
- -
- 2 o
LA Medium dense grey very silty very gravelly SAND -":"‘_'.*_'__:_'-:.-'-_'.
- A
e
B (0.40) L7 7 2
il g s
i 0.90 Dense coarse orange SAND ; v ‘
Parcolation testing in
adjacent tast hales at
1.00m ..
(1.10) %
. — 2,00 -
No groundwater ingress - Complete at 2.00m
|
. Plan . Remarks
Scale (approx) Logoed By Figure Ho.
1:20 SAM 180EM 6. FW1

Froduced by the GEOtechnical DAtabage SYstam (GEODASY) () all rights resamnvad

S. A. M\GREGOR
CONTRACT No. 1806/17

Page 11 of 18

Page 167

Jan-17
ISSUE 1



GROUND ASS5ES5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Site Trial Pit
Mumber
S.A. MCGREGDIR Burnside, Clinte
Eelel FW2
Excavation Method Bimensions Ground Level (mGD} Cllent Job
Humbe
Tracked excavator with S TN Graham Buchan il
0.50m bucket 120616
Location Dates architect Sheat
13M2520186-
See site plan 18M 272016 Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd. 11
h &
Eample | Tests e Field Records m EI Dr Description end &
o p ﬁ“ﬁ (meD) ) pti Legend &
TOPSOIL :
= (0.80)
080 : : RNIANN
Loose to medium dense arange brown silty very gravelly -'1-“_.-'_!_“.,: "
[ SAND Jraga
M
(0.50) ‘='.e:‘
Percolation testing in ; Bpee
adjacent test holes at R
1.00m s LR
e - L L Fal e I
14 Dense grey brown coarse SAND and sub-angular to ", *,
sub-rounded GRAVEL T
1 :, :_:.'. H
—
LY
s foie
(0.70) .'1-.;._‘_".;-'_.-.'_'-.
= e -‘.'.:_f'-: - "_
TR E
£ AT
LR :.-rl'-'l
o MR
. — 200
No groundwater ingress - Complete at 2.00m
|
Plan . ; : . . , : " , | Remarks
Scale (approx) Logoed By Figure Ho.
1:20 SAM 180816 FW2

Froduced by the GEOtechnical DAtabage SYstam (GEODASY) () all rights resamnvad

S. A. M\GREGOR Page 12 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 168



GROUND ASS5ES5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Site Trial Pit
Number
S.A. MCGREGDIR Burnside, Clints
ey SW1
Excavation Method Bimensions Ground Level (mGD} Cllent Job
Humbe
Tracked excavator with AN e Graham Buchan il
0.50m bucket 120616
Location Dates architect Sheat
1322016
see site plan Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd. 11
h &
Dﬁﬂ}h Sample / Tests ﬁtgﬁ Field Records d"neaflll {Thlljr ?less} Description Legend E
=5 Grass TOPSOIL ;
= (0.E0)
Infiltration test zona = 080 - - R e
0.50-1.50m g Mediurm dense grey brown sity SAND and GRAVEL -':dl',.-_'_:_'.__: y
oo bt
= j;llagl' :._.; :_._:
e Al
i
]
L
1_-“:' PR R RN ST U SO P L PIRTY PP ST U -_ :."‘f-.-'."'f'-_:-
Dense orange coarse SAND ik S
(0.40)
. =3 1.50 e
Mo groundwater ingress Coamplate at 1.50m
|
Plan . : . | . . , : ; '- . | Remarks
Scale (approx) Logoed By Figure Ho.
1:20 SAM 1808/ 6.5W1

Froduced by the GEOtechnical DAtabage SYstam (GEODASY) () all rights resamnvad

S. A. M\GREGOR Page 13 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 169



GROUND ASS5ES5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Site Trial Pit
Number
S.A. MCGREGDIR Burnside, Clints
kY SW2
Excavation Method Bimensions Ground Level (mGD} Cllent Job
Humbe
Tracked excavator with AR e Graham Buchan il
0.50m bucket 120616
Location Dates architect Sheat
1322016
see site plan Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd. 11
h &
sample | Tests Field Record B Df Descri d 5
Dﬁﬂ}h ample 5 ﬁtgﬁ ecords d_.near Il (Thi ?less} scription Legen 2
=5 Grass TOPSOIL :
fe (0.50)
- -
— 0.50 ng
3 Medium dense crange grey brown silty SAND R
Infiltraticn test zone s, LN,
0.50-1.50m (0.30) ey
= H ,
B b0 Dense grey brown coarse SAMND b hr
(0.70) S
_ 150 o
Mo groundwater ingress Complete at 1.50m
|
Plan . : . | . . , : ; '- . | Remarks
Scale (approx) Logoed By Figure Ho.
1:20 SAM 1B80B/M6.SW2

Froduced by the GEOtechnical DAtabage SYstam (GEODASY) () all rights resamnvad

S. A. M\GREGOR Page 14 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 170



GROUND AS5ES5MENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

Fig. 3. PROPOSED DRAIANGE LAYOUT

NOT TO SCALE- ALL SOAKAWAY DIMENSIONS PROVIDED ON THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE CHECKED ON A
FULL-SCALE PLAN TO ENSURE THEY MEET THE REQUIRED BUILDING REGULATIONS 50m FROM WELLS &
BOREHOLES, 5m FROM BUILDINGS AND SITE BOUNDARIES AND 10m FROM OTHER SOAKAWAYS, DRAINS
AND WATERCOURSES

Plot 2

Septic Tank to

Foul Water Soakaway
Min. Base Area 63m?

&
Surface Water Infiltration Trench 3.00m x 12.80m

with 1.50m depth filter stone

PROPOSED SITE PLAN Plot 1

Septic Tank to
Foul Water Soakaway
Min. Base Area 30m?

&
Surface Water Infiltration Trench 4.00m x 6.00m
with 1.50m depth filter stone

S. A. M\GREGOR Page 15 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 171



0.50m

HAN

ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

.

| |

L ¥

GRAHAM Bl

Terram 1000 Geotextile

Y

|

(not to scale)

PLAN VIEW

NDATION REPOR
SIDE, CLINTER

AE=
L |

RA
a1

OMI
BURR

C

RE

e

E

NAG
GHOUSE

| |

I

T
1
<

DRA

&
VELLI

L]

¥

110mm diameter UPVC
outfall Pipe from ST/RWPs

MEN

W

5

S

ME

0.50m

|

R TR

-
2.1

:

e

1.0 Ny Ny Ny W, N, N, W, N, N, 8,

LT ] me]
Y

wtiat

haatyats
LT

T

L]
100mm clean/inert

W
broken stone/gravel

s
iy
ni u

[l T ]
'-I

L]
L]

100mm clean/inert
broken stone/gravel

I-il.ll..ll._i_ﬂ....l

"_....-..._....-_.._.

Sl S
ey

gl g

l-l...llluf 'l

il

-
; g
[ S

»
e

L]
-
L]

]
-
.
o
L]
[]
-
L]
-
-
-
-
i
=
L ]
-
-
L]
==
L]
-
-
L]

[

i
L]
M

L ]
"
L ]
¥

w
.

R

vowi et

i
[]
.h
wrE g

=
L]

el
wgeiymiy el
Thaheha

- -
- EE e

[ ]

”

[ ]
i

'
)

)
.'.:u.
o
L |
el

S S
e

-;--:‘:‘::
e
L
9.00m

.
L ]
-
[ ]
=
[ ]
-

.
Su;
‘wu'y
3%
AT
g g g g g ™ g g g g i

".l
o
[

g=
b
5
3
@
Q
=
=
b
b
)
=
£
=
£
=
S
i
Lo |

-
L]
'.i
L]
-
L]
)

wuy
[Tl ]
2

L]
]

w

fy
':‘..l‘
-
oty

2
[ T AT T LS ] -_.llr
w i iy e W W e
i TR T T AT TR
Wty S iy Sy
e
Dy T T T T T Thy !

W gy S

[ ]
-'."".-
=
.'l
5 ol
L
L

-
iy

=1
O
o
-
('8
D -
T
2
£

g g g

i
-
]

2

5y
:
.

"
L ]
.ﬂ
L |
1k
[ ]
i

Sent
[
e tp
ALY

.'-'

el

CROSS-SECTION
(Not to scale)

S
=
n ]

1

.'-_T
.lfl:'-:'l
"

"-ld.'-i:'-

=

i
OTE
[ ]
nigmiy
&
r-r-r-r-r--'-r-:"":""

i

[y

'.l

-
-:"l'-z.. iy

Access Cover
-:..f-l

225mm diameter
Inspection shaft

L
225mm diameter

Inspection shaft
A e e e

ULy LT
T,
Wil i,
e aLat,

s
"

=

g g o g g
iy

Wi

L]
e
L]
3

.
1y
P o LA L L L

ol ] ] el e

"

alehalas, Laiahal

L e T e e o e o e i, R LR

e R e e el
P L T

A TR TR Tl T

P L L]

1

wEg=
[]

ISSUE 1

9.00m

Page 172

306/17

RGN St o B LA P
L L L L s o S L] " ! : < _*.

ROUND ASSE
Fig. 4. Indicative Stone-Filled Soakaway Construction (63m?)

G

7.0m

A. M\GREGOR
CONTRACT No.

S,




GROUND ASSESSMENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

CERTIFICATE FOR PROPOSED FOUL WATER SUB-SURFACE SOAKAWAY

Two tests are normally required to demonstrate the suitability of the proposed drainage scheme:

1. A trial pit must be excavated to a depth of 1 metre below the proposed invert of the drain to establish
whether or not the water table will interfere with the operation of the soakaway

and

2. A percolation test must be carried out to determine the area of the ground required.

Certificate

Applicant’s Name Graham Buchan............
(name of person applying for planning permission)

Address: 2 New Houses, Burnside Poultry Units, Clinterty, AB21 OTT
Date of Test:......13"" December 2016 Time:.......from 11.30 Weather: ...Raining....

Encountered Ground Conditions

Topsoil: The site is overlain by grass and topsoil 500mm - 800mm in thickness.

Natural Sub-Soils: The underlying natural sub-soils are loose and medium dense orange brown and grey
silty to very silty sands and gravels (completely weathered rock) becoming dense and proved to the
maximum investigated depth of 2.00m.

Bedrock: In-tact bedrock was not encountered during the investigation.

Groundwater Observations

Groundwater was not encountered during the investigation or observed during the monitoring period. No
visual indication (no seepages or discoloration) of the seasonally high or fluctuating ground water table
was seen in the strata above the encountered depths of 2.00m.

Wells : no wells supplying potable water within 50m of the site

Depth of Drain BOVSL 51  § § [ Depth of Excavation ...up to 2.00m.............
Percolation Test PLOT 1 PLOT2

Time Taken (mean of three times), s 4470 5370

Soil Percolation Value, Vp, s/mm 29.8 35.8

Population Equivalent up to 6 (4-bedroom)  up to 7 (5-bedroom)
Minimum Floor Area of Soakaway 30m? 63m?2

I hereby certify that [ have carried out the above tests in accordance with procedures specified in British Standard
BS6297:2007+ A1l 2008, and in conjunction with the full requirements set out within the Domestic Scottish Building
Standards Technical Handbook (Environmental Standard 3.9 Infiltration Systems), the results of which are tabulated
above, and that the proposed drainage scheme detailed on the attached plans and report has been designed taking into
account the recommendations in the aforementioned standards.

Signed e R Date...31% January 2017
Name / Company S. A. M“Gregor

Address Fairmead, Tough Alford, Aberdeenshire, AB33 8EQ

Qualification B.Eng(Civil Engineering).

S. A. M\GREGOR Page 17 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 173



GROUND ASSESSMENT & DRAINAGE RECOMMENDATION REPORT GRAHAM BUCHAN
PROPOSED 2 NEW DWELLINGHOUSES, BURNSIDE, CLINTERTY ANNIE KENYON ARCHITECTS LTD.

CERTIFICATE FOR PROPOSED SURFACE WATER DISPOSAL

Applicant’s Name Graham Buchan............
(name of person applying for planning permission)

Address: 2 New Houses, Burnside Poultry Units, Clinterty, AB21 OTT

Date of Test:......13"" December 2016 Time:.......from 11.30 Weather: ...Raining....

Encountered Ground Conditions

Topsoil: The site is overlain by grass and topsoil 500mm - 800mm in thickness.

Natural Sub-Soils: The underlying natural sub-soils are loose and medium dense orange brown and grey
silty to very silty sands and gravels (completely weathered rock) becoming dense and proved to the
maximum investigated depth of 2.00m.

Bedrock: In-tact bedrock was not encountered during the investigation.

Groundwater Observations

Groundwater was not encountered during the investigation or observed during the monitoring period. No
visual indication (no seepages or discoloration) of the seasonally high or fluctuating ground water table
was seen in the strata above the encountered depths of 2.00m.

Wells : no wells supplying potable water within 50m of the site

Depth of Drain =50 s Depth of Excavation ...up to 1.50m.............
Infiltration Test PLOT 1 PLOT 2
Infiltration Test Zones 0.50 - 1.50 0.50 - 1.50
Soil Infiltration Rate, f m/s 1.11x103 9.25x10°
Surface Areas of Development up to 155m? up to 240m?

Recommendation Options: -
Stone-filled Sub-Surface Infiltration Trench
PLOT 1 4.00m x 6.00m with 1.50m filtration stone storage depth

PLOT 2 3.00m x 12.80m with 1.50m filtration stone storage depth

I hereby certify that I have carried out the above tests and calculations in accordance with BRE Digest 365 and in
conjunction with the full requirements set out within the Domestic Scottish Building Standards Technical Handbook. The
results of which are tabulated above, and that the proposed drainage scheme detailed within this report has been
designed taking into account the recommendations in the aforementioned standards.

Signed Date...31% January 2017

Name / Company S. A. M“Gregor

Address Fairmead, Tough, Alford, Aberdeenshire, AB33 8EQ

Qualification B.Eng(Civil Engineering).

5. A. MGREGOR Page 18 of 18 Jan-17
CONTRACT No. 1806/17 ISSUE 1

Page 174



Scale 1:500

This drawing is copyright of Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd. This drawing is to be read in
conjunction with all related drawings. Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions
must be checked and verified on site before commencing any work or producing shop
drawings. The originator should be notified immediately of any discrepancy.

Existing Trees

Proposed New Trees

Page 175

PLANNING
aka

Annie Kenyon |Architects Ltd

South Lediken Studios
Insch

Aberdeenshire

AB52 6SH

tel/fax: 01464 851 621

www.aken yona

ects.com
info@akenyonarchitects.com

Client
Graham Buchan

Job Title
Burnside Poultry Units

Clinterty
Aberdeen

Drawing Title
As Proposed

Site Plan
CAD Reference

Scale at A2 |Drawn | Chk | Date
1:500 RT . NOV 16

Job No. Drawing No. | Revision No.

486 PL-02 -




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 176



>T
-
| Hn_:m \ |
ooy | / ,
- | / |
W , L] ” \ |
Lo\ | 7/ :
| /
: ) HALL W ] |
CPD/] | /
future I / f
m;rSQ, m \ f
I =y LT
T T T 1 T T T T T
| | | i | | | |
: oA . ey e o Be— el
N-SUTTE i B | E— e R R - 1 I
% D ” m sAtHROOM (|| BEDRODPM 3
1] [ - | ! W i * '
Tl ] ) )
N DRESSING o ASTER ! 7 AD BEDROOM 4 [
BEDROOM | [ | =
SITTING ROOM DINING | KITCHEN r===- 1 | T o
| BEDROOM 2 / m m | N
| |
D 1\\\\\\\\\\/{\\ 7 D — - L - . ,L\HHHHM\\\\ —F Foo et
TUDY| i i i
% W,m W _l st [__l~m=m=_”_ W W W D
L L L L L L L L
F— LT O T O L T T T T T T T

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

=

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

H\

T Stainless steel
twin walled flue

Corrugated sheet
metal roof

45° pitch

Velux or

equiv. rooflights

i :::
\

q

]

N

<

Galvanised steel
rainwater goods

Y Smooth wetdash render j

Aluminium clad 7

windows and doors

timber cladding

I i A

|
|
|
|
|
m Scot-larch vertical 7 7
|
|
|
|
|

NORTH EAST ELEVATION

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

Corrugated sheet
metal roof
45° pitch

Velux or

equiv. rooflights

Galvanised steel E

rainwater goods

— Scot-larch vertical
timber cladding

Aluminium clad

windows and doors

[l
i
| |

Corrugated sheet
metal roof

45° pitch

Galvanised steel
rainwater goods
Scot-larch horizontal
timber cladding
Timber post with steel
shoe connection

Horizontal timber
louvres (shelter)

Stainless steel
twin walled flue

Aluminium clad
windows and doors

Galvanised steel
rainwater goods

Smooth wetdash render

Scot-larch vertical
timber cladding

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

Scale 1:100

UTIL

TY

7N\

BATHROOM

This drawing is copyright of Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd. This drawing is to be read in
conjunction with all related drawings. Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions
must be checked and verified on site before commencing any work or producing shop
drawings. The originator should be notified immediately of any discrepancy.

ITCHEN

P |

SECTION A-A

N
/

PLANNING

Page 177

ak

Annie Kenyon

Client
Graham Buchan

Job Title
Burnside Poultry Units

Clinterty
Aberdeen

Drawing Title
As Proposed Plot 1 & 2

Floor Plans & Elevations

CAD Reference

Scale at A2 |Drawn | Chk | Date
1:100 RT - NOV 16

Job No. Drawing No. | Revision No.

486 PL-03 -




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 178



Ryden

PLANNING SUPPORTING STATEMENT

DEMOLITION OF REDUNDANT  POULTRY
BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF TWO DWELLING
HOUSES AT BURNSIDE POULTRY UNIT, LITTLE
CLINTERTY, KINELLAR

MR G BUCHAN

APRIL 2017

Ryden LLP

25 Albyn Place
Aberdeen

AB10 1YL

Tel: 01224 588866

Page 179



Mr G Buchan

1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
4.0
5.0

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Contents

Introduction and Background
Site Description and Proposal
Planning Policy Context
Material Considerations
Justification

Conclusions

Page 180



Mr G Buchan

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

INTRODUCTION

This Planning Supporting Statement has been prepared by Ryden
Property Consultants on behalf of our client, Mr G Buchan and is
submitted in support of an application for Full Planning Permission
for the erection of two dwelling houses to replace a redundant
building and ancillary structures associated with a former
agricultural use established at Burnside Poultry Unit, Little

Clinterty, Kinellar, Aberdeen.

The report has been prepared in accordance with previous advice
and discussions provided by Aberdeen City Council’s Planning
Team Leader, Mr Kristian Smith and Roads Development Officer,
Gregor Whyte in response to pre-application enquires submitted
by Ryden and Annie Kenyon Architects, investigating the
development potential of the site. Copies of the correspondence

can be found attached as Appendix 1 of this report.

The enquiry confirmed that the site and buildings/structures
associated with the former poultry unit were no longer fit for
purpose and redundant of their former agricultural use. Given the
deteriorating condition of the buildings which detract from the
character and rural setting of the Greenbelt, the enquiry confirmed
the client’s intention to explore the possibility of removing the
existing buildings and replacing them with a sympathetic
development of two dwelling houses. Previously adopted
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 Policy NE2 — Greenbelt
was acknowledged, as was the requirement for a robust planning
justification to warrant a departure from the policy should an

application be brought forward.

In the Council's subsequent email response dated 12" August
2016, Mr Smith acknowledged the principle in determination of
such an application would fall to the weight which could be
attached to “material considerations associated to dealing with the
extant situation on site”. It also acknowledged the potential for
enabling development to fund an “environmental improvement” of

something which is causing a blight in the Greenbelt. Comparisons

Page 181



Mr G Buchan

1.5

1.6

1.7

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

were drawn from a consent granted under Ref: 141627 at the
nearby Mill, Clinterty, where the principle of redeveloping former
mill buildings with four new houses was accepted on the basis of
the housing cross-funding the demolition and remediation costs
incurred from removal of the building. Mr Smith concluded that the
principle of development could not be established until such time
as additional information was available for consideration, which

could quantify the level of remediation and associated costs.

In response to the generally receptive response as outlined above,
an application was progressed for the site in late 2016, proposing
a similar redevelopment of the site for two houses under planning
ref 161777/DPP. A substantial level of supporting information was
submitted to demonstrate that the site was redundant, the
asbestos containing buildings were in a state of continued
deterioration and independent environmental evidence confirmed
on-site contamination that would generate significant associated
costs to remediate. In addition, a robust financial appraisal was
submitted supporting the requirement to cross fund the removal of
the buildings and environmental clean-up of the site through the
construction of the two dwellings in a similar vain to the accepted
approach at The Mill under Planning Ref: 141627.

Despite the compelling evidence put forward, disappointingly the
application was refused under the Council’s delegated powers by
the appointed Case Officer, Mr Robert Forbes. The reasons for
refusal focussed on the perceived principle of development being
contrary to Greenbelt Policy, which could set an undesirable
precedent, as well as concerns over design and transport issues.
Unfortunately, there was no contact from the Case Officer to

highlight these concerns, prior to the application being determined.

Accordingly, following the unexpected receipt of the planning
refusal notice, a meeting was quickly arranged with the Case
Officer which took place on 13" February 2017 to discuss the
reasoning behind the decision. In addition to the principal
Greenbelt Policy, suggestions were put forward in respect of
revisions to the design and further clarification regarding

sustainable modes of accessibility to the site.

Page 182



Mr G Buchan

1.8

1.9

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

This Planning Statement supports a slightly revised application
from the proposals sought under Ref 161777/DPP, which seeks to
address the concerns raised by the Case Officer. It provides a
detailed description of the context of the site and the development
proposed. In addition, it considers the national and local planning
policy context applicable to the assessment of the proposal and
provides a robust supporting justification for the development to
proceed in line with these policies and other relevant material
considerations. It also seeks to address ACC’s reasons for refusal

relating to the decision notice for ref 161777/DPP.

This Planning Statement should not be read in isolation, but should
be read in conjunction with the planning application drawings
prepared by the client's appointed architect, Annie Kenyon
Architects, as well as the following additional supporting

documents:

e  Structural Inspection Report (Cameron & Ross)

e  Bat Survey (Black Hill Ecology)

e Drainage Statement (S.A. McGregor)

e Design Statement (Annie Kenyon Architects)

e  Sustainability Report (Annie Kenyon Architects)

e  Asbestos Report 2007 (Ethos Environmental)

e  Asbestos Report 2016 (Ethos Environmental)

¢ Contaminated Land Report (Ethos Environmental)

e Feasibility Study (Walter Michie Poultry Consultant)
e Financial Costings Appraisal (WSD Scotland)

e  Quotation for Re-roofing Existing Shed (SG Cladding)

Page 183



Mr G Buchan

2.0

2.1

2.2

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

The application site, extending to approximately 1.25 hectares
and comprising a former poultry unit, is located at Little Clinterty
on the north western outskirts of Aberdeen. The site lies to the
south east of Blackburn on the opposing side of the A96,
approximately 12km from Aberdeen City Centre and 4km from
Dyce. Access off the A96 to the site is achieved from the southern
arm of the Blackburn roundabout junction and via a private track

through Little Clinterty Farm (see location plan below).

(Figure 1: Site Location Plan)

— Buphside of |
lcerey ATkl

The site comprises a former agricultural shed, associated with the
historic poultry enterprise at Burnside, a further shed and
glasshouse, as well as remnants of two further buildings which
have largely been removed from the site. The existing main shed
is constructed primarily from timber weatherboards, with an
asbestos roof and concrete floor. Whilst the building is relatively
intact, it has experienced a degree of decay and is currently
disused. An agricultural feed hopper is situated to the immediate
west of the main shed in addition to below-ground footings and
demolished rubble associated with a former poultry building
adjacent to the western boundary. To the eastern portion of the
site lies foundations of a former glasshouse structure as well as
an adjoining derelict garden shed constructed in concrete

blockwork and asbestos.

Page 184



Mr G Buchan

23

24

25

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

(Figure 2: Aerial View of Existing and Former Buildings/ Structures at Site)

1) Rubble area
2) Slab.

) anding
3) Rubble track N
4) silo 9) Formegpoultry shed foundations
5) Slurry tank 10) I'ar.ld‘gﬁ with topsoll covering

The site is relatively level and benefits from open aspects to the
north and south, characterised by the surrounding agricultural
land which slopes gently down towards the site when approaching
from the north. Two dwelling houses and a number of farm
buildings are located to the north west at Little Clinterty. To the
immediate south east lies a neighbouring cluster of four
established residential properties of a fairly traditional style and
finish, set within generous plots. A number of existing mature
lodge-pole pine trees are located along the northern-eastern
boundary of Broombank Cottage which offer a degree of

screening from Clinterty Road.

The surrounding area is relatively rural in character, typified by a
gently undulating agricultural landscape, with small pockets of

housing and farm buildings located sporadically throughout.

As highlighted the site is completely redundant of its former
agricultural use as a poultry unit. As such, some of the associated
buildings and structures that once occupied the site have been
demolished and those which still remain are dilapidated and no
longer fit for purpose. Given the age and presence of hazardous
asbestos materials found both within the existing buildings and
spread across the site due to contamination associated with the
previous down takings, the client has sought to explore a suitable
means to remove the remaining structures and remediate the site.
A more detailed account of the structural condition of the buildings
and contamination of the site is provided within the associated
supporting documents submitted as part of this application. These

are discussed in greater detail under Section 5 below.

Page 185



Mr G Buchan

26

2.7

2.8

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

The proposal is for the demolition and removal of the existing
redundant buildings and clearing the remnants of any former
structures from the site. This would allow the site to be
sympathetically redeveloped for two detached houses, which
would be of a high quality design and finish, complementing the
rural character of the surrounding locale and designated
greenbelt, as well as the established built fabric of the

neighbouring residential properties.

The first of the proposed new house plots, identified as ‘Plot 1’ on
Annie Kenyon Architects Drawing No. P-02, would be positioned
to the north eastern corner of the site, allowing for the erection of
a 1 % storey property with integral garage and formation of an
associated domestic curtilage. The proposed dwelling at Plot 1
seeks to replicate a similar linear layout across and east — west
axis as the former glasshouse and would be partially located over
its footprint. The second property, ‘Plot 2’, would be positioned to
the north western corner of the site, adopting an identical design
as Plot 1, set partially on the footprint of the existing poultry shed.
A detailed critique of design is provided within Annie Kenyon
Architect’s supporting Design Statement and also summarised

within Section 5 below.

Following appropriate site remediation measures and removal of
existing structures and rubble, the remaining land out with the
house plot areas will be top-soiled and reseeded to ensure it is

brought back into appropriate use for pasture and grazing.

Page 186



Mr G Buchan

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

Aberdeen City & Shire Strategic Development Plan 2014

The strategic policy context for the North East region of Scotland
is laid out in the Strategic Development Plan (SDP), approved by
Scottish Ministers in March 2014. This document sets out a
spatial strategy for the area with a clear direction for its
development in the period to 2035. It details population growth
targets and the subsequent development required to provide for
and sustain a high quality of life for residents of the City and Shire

in the context of housing and employment.

The application site at Burnside Poultry Unit lies within the
Aberdeen City Strategic Growth Area (SGA) as stipulated by the
SDP and as such is expected to maximise development potential
in order to deliver sustainable communities whilst supporting
associated infrastructure and making efficient use of the local

transport network.

In order to sufficiently accommodate a rising population, the
Aberdeen City SGA is required to provide 50% of all homes in the
region up to 2035 equating to 31,500 houses. Land brought
forward for such development must be used efficiently and
development on brownfield sites is required to deliver 10,500

homes over the next 20 years.

The SDP recognises the important role the Greenbelt has in
protecting the character and landscape setting of the city, whilst
at the same time promoting a degree of flexibility, in recognition
that it, “will need to change to meet the growth this plan seeks to
achieve.” In that regard the Greenbelt should, “guide development

to appropriate places while protecting the most important areas”.

Page 187



Mr G Buchan

3.5

3.6

3.7

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017

Aberdeen City Council adopted its second Local Development
Plan (LDP) on 20" January 2017, which replaces the previous
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. The LDP sets out how
the Council aim to work towards their vision for Aberdeen. It
allocates land to meet the City’s development needs to 2026 and
beyond and it sets out the related planning policies to be applied

in promoting the growth of Aberdeen over this period.

As promoted at national and strategic levels, the LDP recognises
that ‘redevelopment of previously used sites makes a significant
contribution to the overall sustainability aims of the Plan’ and can
‘bring land and buildings back into effective use and remediate
contamination.” Whilst the strategy and associated list of sites
focuses on urban brownfield land, the LDP recognises that ‘the list
of brownfield sites is not exhaustive’ and ‘the city needs to expand
beyond its existing developed edges’ to maintain and strengthen

housing and employment opportunities and attract investment.

The site is located towards the north western limits of Aberdeen
City Council’s boundary, within an established rural area
designated as Greenbelt. As such, the principal policy
consideration relates to Policy NE2- Green Belt of the extant
LDP. The Policy seeks to maintain the identity of the Greenbelt by
preventing development other than for the purposes of those
essential to agricultural, woodland and forestry, recreational uses
compatible with an agricultural or natural setting, mineral
extraction/restoration or landscape renewal. A number of

exceptions do however apply:

a) The development is within the boundary of the existing
activity;

b) The development is small-scale;

c) The intensity of activity is not significantly increased;

d) Any proposed built construction is ancillary to what already

exists.

10

Page 188



Mr G Buchan

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

It is acknowledged that the proposed development does not neatly
fit into the requirements of the above policy criteria, as it is not
associated with the defined agricultural/forestry/recreational uses
outlined above. However, the site was previously utilised for
agricultural purposes for poultry rearing and the associated
buildings are no longer utilised for those purposes. The
development is contained within the established boundary of said
previous use and the erection of two dwellings is certainly small
scale. In addition, the proposal will remove a redundant,
dilapidated building and former structures, as well as undertake a
costly clean-up of a contaminated site associated with the
intensive former poultry use. The proposed dwellings would be of
a high quality design and scale and contribute to an overall visual
improvement to the run-down buildings and structures which are
of no architectural merit and serve to detract from the qualities of
the Greenbelt.

Policy 11 — Infrastructure Delivery & Developer Contributions
addresses the infrastructure requirements that are needed to
support new development. Supplementary guidance provides
applicants with details of the levels of contributions sought from

different types of development.

Policy D1- Architecture and Place-making promotes quality
design in all new developments to ensure the city retains and
enhances its unique identity for future generations. Quality of
design is judged by a series of factors to ensure a consistency of
approach in assessing a scheme’s contribution to the city’s built

environment.

In the interests of sustainable economic growth, Policy T3-
Sustainable and Active Travel encourages development that
reduces reliance on the private car and utilises existing public
transport provision. This policy also asks that new development
enhances permeability and access to, and movement within and
between, new and existing developments prioritising walking,

cycling and public transport.

11

Page 189



Mr G Buchan

3.12

3.13

3.14

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Policy D2 - Landscape recognises the importance natural
topography and landscape play in Aberdeen’s unique landscape
setting. Development should avoid creating any significant
adverse impacts to the existing landscape qualities. High quality
development sought through planning applications for new
development must include a landscape strategy and management
plan incorporating hard and soft landscaping design

specifications.

Land which has the potential to be degraded or contaminated will
require site investigations and risk assessments to identify
potential risk to the environment or health and safety. Policy R2
— Degraded and Contaminated Land requires remediation to be

carried out to a level suitable for the proposed new use.

Policy R2 also stipulates, “The significance of the benefits of
remediating a contaminated site, and the viability of funding
this, will be taken into account when considering proposals
for the alternative use of such sites.” This new policy provision
would pose significant material weight in the consideration of this
application, which proposes the erection of two dwelling houses
to cross-fund the removal of degraded buildings and effective
remediation of a contaminated site. In that respect, the application
should be considered alongside the substantial volume of
documentation submitted in support of the application, including a
Structural Survey confirming the existing building is no longer fit
for purpose, as well as detailed environmental and financial
costing reports detailing the extent of contamination and

estimated costs to remediate the site.

12

Page 190



Mr G Buchan

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Scottish Planning Policy 2014 (SPP)

Scottish Planning Policy, published in conjunction with NPF3,

advises that planning should ‘...take a positive approach to
enabling high-quality development and making efficient use of
land to deliver long-term benefits for the public while protecting
and enhancing natural and cultural resources’. It promotes
sustainability and place making as principal policies in order to
achieve four planning outcomes with the objective of Scotland
becoming a ‘successful, sustainable place; a low carbon place; a
natural resilient place; and, a connected place’ as set out by the

NPF3.

The overarching purpose of planning, as recognised by SPP, is to
create better places. This should be achieved by the planning
system supporting economic growth through the creation of well-
designed, sustainable places and environments. A greater
emphasis is placed on the planning system directing the ‘right
development to the right place’ through adopting a ‘design-led
approach’ to ensure the creation of ‘high quality places’. It's policy
principles advise ‘using land within or adjacent to settlements for
a mix of uses,’” in addition to ‘considering the re-use or re-
development of brownfield land before new development takes

place on greenfield sites’.

The Mill, Clinterty - Planning Application Ref 141627

This application proposed the demolition of former mill buildings
and redevelopment of the site for 4 new dwelling houses located
approximately 1.2km from the Burnside Poultry Unit site. Situated
within the defined greenbelt, the application was supported by the
Planning Service as a slight departure from LDP Policy NE2 —
Greenbelt on the basis of material considerations brought forward
within supporting information. This took the form of a financial
appraisal, which concluded that the costs associated with
demolition of the buildings and site remediation would require an
“enabling” development of four housing units to cross fund and

make the work economically viable.

13

Page 191



Mr G Buchan

4.4

4.5

4.6

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

In granting permission at The Mill, the Planning Service placed
significant weight on additional ‘sustainability’ factors associated
with regeneration of a degraded brownfield site and the
enhancement of biodiversity value and improvement to the visual
characteristics of the site. This approved development shares
many common aspects to that proposed under the current
application for Burnside Poultry Unit in relation to the economic
viability of regenerating a contaminated brownfield site and
removal of unsightly buildings. It should therefore be considered
a significant material consideration in the assessment of this
application as it demonstrates a similar precedent for an
appropriate redevelopment of brownfield land, where the
overriding benefits can be considered to outweigh LDP Greenbelt

Policy.

Furthermore, the condition of the site and continued deterioration
of the existing buildings and structures at Burnside Poultry Unit
are more visible than those located at The Mill, which benefit from
significant screening. This is particularly evident on approach to
the site from the north. Therefore the proposed removal of these
structures, remediation of the site and erection of two high quality
and energy efficient dwelling houses would offer a significant
visual improvement to the current situation and allow a redundant
site to be brought ‘back into effective use’ as advocated at both

National and Local Planning Policy levels.

The Burnside Poultry Unit site is located closer to the A96 and
associated bus stops / public transport links, from the four
approved houses at The Mill under ref 141627, therefore previous
reasons for refusal based upon lack of compliance with policies

T2 and T3 are strongly contested.

14

Page 192



Mr G Buchan

5.0

5.1

52

5.3

54

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

JUSTIFICATION

Section 25 of the Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
states that all planning decisions by local authorities should be
made in accordance with the extant development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. Within the extant
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (LDP), the site is located
within the defined Greenbelt, encompassing redundant land and

structures associated with a former poultry unit.

As highlighted in section 1 above, pre-application advice was
sought from the Planning Service’s Team Leader in respect of
redeveloping the site for two dwellings. The Officer acknowledged
that the potential for enabling development to fund an
“environmental improvement” of something which is causing a
blight in the Greenbelt had previously been considered in respect
of a nearby site at ‘The Mill’, Clinterty (ref 141627). Any proposal
brought forward would require a sufficient planning justification,
supplemented by appropriate costings etc., before the principle of

such an approach could be accepted.

In light of this, the client commissioned a number of detailed site

investigations and surveys to identify the following:

e The structural integrity of the former poultry shed and

suitability for reuse;
e The levels of contamination at the site;

e Costs associated with demolition, clearing and remediation

of the site; and

e Development appraisal reflecting overall costs against likely

yields achieved through sale of two dwellings.

The above information, undertaken by appropriately qualified
professionals was submitted as part of a previous application for
two houses on the site under planning ref 161777/DPP. Despite
setting out a compelling case for the Planning Service to approve
the proposed sympathetic redevelopment of the site for two new
residential properties, without forewarning the application was

refused, with reasons for refusal relating to:

15

Page 193



Mr G Buchan

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

e Green belt Policy

e Transport / Sustainability
e Design

e Precedent

Following the receipt of the refusal notice, discussions took place
with the case officer in respect of the decision and reasons for
refusal. Much of this centred on the precedent set by the Mill and
why greater material weight had not been placed on the
information submitted in support of the application, which clearly
set out the requirement for cross-funding to undertake
contamination clean-up costs and site remediation measures. The
discussion also focused on the approval of the application at The
Mill ref 141627 as a comparative example of how Greenbelt policy
had been relaxed to allow for an environmental improvement to

be made to that site.

The case officer concluded that in the above case, greater
emphasis had been placed on the larger scale of buildings which
were to be removed from the site as the only reason why that had

gained the council’s support.

Transport and design were also discussed and it was highlighted
the site was closer to the A96 and associated bus stops /
sustainable transport nodes than the four houses approved at the
Mill. In addition, the Case Officer intimated that design concerns
were only in relation to previous plot 2. Should a design be brought
forward similar to plot 1, this would likely alleviate any issues

based on layout and design.

Accordingly, much of the following sections present a similar
argument to that set out within the Planning Statement submitted
in support of the previously refused application, however
additional justification and clarification has been included to

address the reasons for refusal.

16

Page 194



Mr G Buchan

5.9

5.10

5.11

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Principle of Development

As discussed above, the site is situated on the outer fringes of
Aberdeen City Council’s administrative boundary and within the
defined Greenbelt. The LDP applies stringent policy guidelines
under NE2 - Greenbelt regarding the type of development deemed
to be appropriate in the Greenbelt, focusing primarily on
agricultural, woodland/forestry and recreational uses appropriate
to the countryside. Whilst the proposal does not propose a use
which strictly fits with the above, there are substantial material
considerations which would outweigh the principal policy position
of the LDP.

The application has been supplemented by a suite of information
(as set out in paragraph 1.9 above) which provides a detailed
account of the structural condition of the existing shed, the extent
of contamination across the site, associated demolition and
remediation costs, as well as costs associated with retention and
refurbishment of the existing poultry building. The site ceased
poultry farming operations in 1993 and since then has lain
redundant of any agricultural operations. The remaining poultry
shed has fallen into disuse and all other structures have either
been partially removed or fallen into a state of dilapidation. As
highlighted within the Michie Report commissioned in 2005, the
site is too small, and the existing buildings were even at that time
considered to be in a state of disrepair. It concludes that the site

is no longer economically viable for poultry production.

The Structural Survey undertaken by Cameron & Ross highlights
the building is in excess of 50 years old and due to continuing
deterioration requires substantial repair works. Given its age and
condition, the building is no longer fit for modern agricultural
practices and would be uneconomical to repair. Additionally, a
previous Asbestos Survey carried out by Ethos Environmental in
December 2007, provides a section by section analysis of the
condition of the external roof sheets of the existing poultry
building. It highlights approximately 50% of the roof covering was
cracked and in a poor condition. The condition of the building will
have no doubt suffered further deterioration in the 9 year

intervening period since the Asbestos Report was carried out.
17

Page 195



Mr G Buchan

5.12

5.13

5.14

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

As evidenced in the associated 2016 reports prepared by Ethos
Environmental, the remaining shed contains a substantial degree
of asbestos containing materials that will require to be carefully
removed prior to any demolition. Furthermore, the Environmental
Investigations have determined extensive contamination of
surface and sub- surface ground associated with both existing and

previously demolished agricultural buildings at the site.

Further investigation of the costs associated with removal of the
buildings and remediation of the site have confirmed this would
involve substantial sums of money. Additionally a confidential
report on costings relating to repairing the roof of the existing shed
has been prepared in response to Robert Forbes’s suggestion it
could be “easily repaired”. As evidenced, significant additional
costs would also be incurred in replacing purlins and in
repairing/strengthening the bowed trusses. To invest such sums
either to return the piece of land back to agriculture or repair a
redundant building which has no prospect of ever being utilised
again for its original purpose, would be neither reasonable nor

financially viable for my client.

Accordingly, my client has sought to explore a sympathetic new
use for the site that could be justified financially. Having explored
the similar circumstances at The Mill (ref 141627), where 4 houses
were approved in the greenbelt to cross fund the demolition and
removal of redundant buildings, my client undertook a similar
exercise, expecting the Council to adopt a consistent approach,
based on the overwhelming supporting information which would
constitute a similar small departure from Greenbelt Policy. Given
the immediate neighbouring land use comprises an established
cluster of residential properties, the development of two new
dwelling houses was deemed to be the most appropriate and

viable option for the site.

18

Page 196



Mr G Buchan

5.15

5.16

5.17

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

A robust assessment of financial feasibility has been undertaken
by WSD Scotland as qualified Quantity Surveyors in support of the
development proposal, which provides an intricate breakdown of
the costs associated with demolishing the existing buildings and
structures and redeveloping the site for new residential use. This
indicates the total revenue achieved from the development,
measured against the associated costs, as well as a modest
residual gross profit as is expected from such a commercial
undertaking. It demonstrates a financially viable option for my
client to redevelop the site which should be given significant
material weight to set aside the provisions of extant LDP Policy
NEZ2 — Greenbelt. My client is happy for the financial appraisal to
be forwarded to the Council’s in-house Asset Management Team
for further scrutiny, which does not appear to have taken place as

part of the assessment of the previous application.

Additionally, the proposals are wholly compliant with PLDP Policy
R2 - Degraded and Contaminated Land. The significant benefits
of removing unsightly buildings and structures from the greenbelt
and pursuit of a financially viable means of remediating a
contaminated and currently useless site should be taken into
account when considering proposals for the alternative use of
such sites. The proposals represent an inherently sustainable and

superior alternative to the site remaining in its current condition.

If left in its current state, the site will continue to deteriorate and
detract from the character and quality associated with the
Greenbelt locale. The site has no reasonable prospect of being
reused or restored for agricultural or forestry purposes typical to
the greenbelt given the significant costs involved, lack of financial
viability and restricted size of the site, as highlighted in the Mitchie

Report.

19

Page 197



Mr G Buchan

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Advice provided by Morris Senior, Demolition Contractors
stipulated that, in the event of poultry shed roof collapsing, any
resultant asbestos debris falling to the ground will be classified as
asbestos waste. Such asbestos waste would not be accepted by
local licensed landfill sites. The nearest licenced landfill site which
will accept such waste is located at  Stirling.
As the poultry shed is visibly sagging and the Ethos Report of
2007 has indicated the perilous state of the external roofing
sheets, the possibility of the roof collapsing would entail

significantly higher disposal costs for my client.

The proposed development allows for an economically viable
means to carry out demolition and remediation through cross
funding from a sympathetic development of two properties. In view
of the forgoing, the principle of the development should be
deemed acceptable by the Planning Service as the proposal
advocates the redevelopment of brownfield land in accordance
with the spirt of SPP, SDP and LDP Policy.

Design and Layout

Our client has appointed Annie Kenyon Architects to design two
new dwelling houses that respond to everyday living requirements
and adopt the very highest standards of design and energy
efficiency, worthy of the site’s associated sensitivities. The
proposed house designs offer a contemporary take on more

traditional North East rural vernacular.

The proposed dwellings will be entirely sympathetic to both the
established surrounding residential properties immediately
adjacent to the site, as well as respecting the agricultural heritage
of the site and associated farm buildings which operated there in
the past. In that regard, a simplistic architectural form as well as
a traditional palette of materials, including larch cladding, wet
harling and corrugated sheeting are proposed, which are typical
of materials found in rural architecture and thus sympathetic to the

existing context of the site.

20

Page 198



Mr G Buchan

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

A full critique of design is contained within the Design Statement
prepared by Annie Kenyon Architects submitted in support of this
application. It should also be noted that the proposed housetype
at plot 2 has been amended to reflect the same layout and design
to that promoted at plot 1. This is in direct response to concerns
raised within the previous application and discussion with the case
officer in respect of scale and massing previously proposed for
plot 2.

Substantial glazing is also proposed on the south elevations of the
two properties to capitalise on solar gain opportunities, in addition
to benefiting from the setting and excellent views offered out to the
surrounding landscape. A Sustainability Report has been
prepared by Annie Kenyon Architects which provides further
details on the measures incorporated into the site layout, design
and proposed low carbon technologies to be considered within the
proposed development. The proposal is therefore submitted in
accordance with LDP Policy D1 — Architecture and Placemaking
and Policy R7 — Low and Zero Carbon Buildings and Water
Efficiency and supplementary guidance on low and zero carbon
developments.

Given the relatively rural setting that will be afforded to the
proposed two properties by existing trees and proposed
landscaping, there will be no negative impact to the amenity of
surrounding residential properties. Furthermore, the proposed
properties will benefit from appropriately sized plots, private
amenity space and front onto the existing private access track in
accordance with LDP Policy D2.

The redevelopment of the site will bring significant benefits to the
surrounding landscape through the removal of redundant and
deteriorating structures and replacement with a well-balanced
residential development, as well as restoration and retention of
pasture land, which respects the rural landscape and improves the

visual setting of the site in accordance with LDP Policy D6.

21

Page 199



Mr G Buchan

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Drainage

The site is not currently served by a public sewer, therefore the
proposed properties will be serviced by a private drainage system
by way of foul and surface water soakaways. An independent
drainage report by S. A. McGregor confirms that the ground
conditions are suitable and that appropriately designed
soakaways will be effective in all weather conditions and would
not present a risk to local water supplies and ground water,
surrounding amenity or public health. The site is not located within

any floodplain nor will it increase flood risk to the surrounding area.

The proposal is therefore entirely in line with LDP Policy NE6 —
Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality. This policy sets out clear
provision for the use of private systems for individual properties in
the event that an area is not served by a public sewer, as is the

case with the proposed site.

Access & Connectivity

The site is situated within a rural locale, therefore car use cannot
be completely discounted from the development. Opportunities do
however exist for access into the wider countryside by walking and
cycling. Whilst outwith the 400m walking distance to a bus stop as
stipulated in PAN 75 — Planning for Transport, which typically
relates to standards within urban areas, there does remain the
opportunity to access an established and widely utilised bus route
on the A96(T) to the north. There is an existing public footpath
running directly from Clinterty Roundabout through Little Clinterty
farm towards Westhill, which can be readily accessed from the

site.

A short walk of approximately 0.9Km can be made from the site
along Clinterty Road to the north towards Bishopton Farm, where
a lit underpass provides safe pedestrian access onto the opposite
side of the A96 to an existing bus stop for services into Aberdeen.
Additionally, there is an existing pedestrian footpath leading onto
the nearside of the A96 providing direct access to a bus stop for
services to Inverurie and beyond to Inverness. These are
established, safe and widely utilised sustainable alternative
transport routes to the private car. The distances involved are

perfectly acceptable and within the realms of Planning Advice

22

Page 200



Mr G Buchan

5.30

5.31

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Note (PAN) 75 - Planning for Transport, which details "a maximum
threshold of 1600m for walking is broadly in line with observed
travel behaviour". Following the imminent completion and opening
of the AWPR, vehicle movements are likely to be significantly
lessened on Clinterty Road due to a reduction in “rat-running”
between Dyce and Westhill.

(Figure 3: Pedestrian Underpass at A96 adjacent to Bishopton)

A paved footpath beginning at Roadside Cottage, running past

Little Clinterty Farmyard, crosses the A96 via a pedestrian
crossing island adjacent to the roundabout. Traffic speeds
approaching and exiting the roundabout on either carriageway will
generally be much slower due to vehicle deceleration on approach
to the junction. The footpath continues into Blackburn where there
are a number of established amenities and public transport
options. Additionally, a new Park and Choose facility has recently
opened at Dyce Drive, approximately 4km from the site. This
offers a further sustainable transport option rather than travelling

by car into the city.

Furthermore, early pre-application dialogue with ACC’s Roads
Development Team on 9" March 2016, confirmed that the
unadopted track serving Burnside Poultry Unit and Little Clinterty
Farm, which meets Clinterty Road, is an established access that
will require minor surface improvements. The Roads Officer also
confirmed that “in principle the access would be acceptable for the
development you have in mind”, when discussing the potential for
two residential units (Appendix 1). No objection was raised by the

Roads Development Team to the previous application for the site

23

Page 201



Mr G Buchan

5.32

5.33

5.34

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

ref 161777/DPP. When considering the wider sustainability
benefits brought about through this rural brownfield development
and proposed remediation strategy, the proposals accord with the
spirit of LDP Policy T2 — Managing the Transport Impact of

Development and T3 — Sustainable and Active Travel.

Ecology

As the proposals would involve the demolition of an existing
building, a Bat Survey was commissioned to ascertain whether
there was any presence of bats or their roosts within the disused
poultry shed. Accordingly, evening emergence and dawn return
surveys were carried out by Back Hill Ecology. No evidence of
bats were seen utilising the building as a roost, therefore no
impact would be posed to a protected species or any associated
mitigation required. The proposals therefore accord with Policy
NE8- Natural Heritage of the extant LDP.

The site is redundant and contains a number of disused buildings,
foundations and areas of hardstanding. The proposed house plots
will be sited within the footprint of the buildings once they have
been demolished and removed from the site. The remaining
redundant brownfield land will be remediated and returned to
nature, which presents an ecological and environmental
improvement offering better connectivity for species and

benefiting the visual setting of the greenbelt.
Trees

In respect of trees, the proposals seek to retain existing trees on
site as a landscape feature. In addition, a robust new scheme of
planting along the northern, eastern and western boundaries is
proposed, incorporating native species. The client would also be
happy to have a condition ensuring protection of existing trees
during construction and an appropriate maintenance plan to
ensure the retention of newly planted trees in perpetuity. The only
trees marked for removal are a number of non-native Leylandii
hedges and one self-seeded ash tree located on the footprint of
Plot 1 currently occupying part of the site. The proposals therefore
meet the requirements of Policy NE5- Trees and Woodlands of
the adopted LDP.

24

Page 202



Mr G Buchan

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

CONCLUSION

The proposed development is submitted in accordance with the
overarching principles of sustainability advocated through
National, Regional and Local Development Plan Policies. The
preceding arguments demonstrate that the proposal to demolish
the existing redundant and dilapidated buildings and structures
associated with the former agricultural poultry use and replace
them with two dwellinghouses, incorporating the highest
standards of design and energy efficiency is entirely in keeping
with the spirit of promoting rural brownfield development, as
encouraged both by SPP, SDP and the adopted Aberdeen Local

Development Plan.

The existing buildings and structures on site have been
demonstrated to be no longer fit for purpose. The remaining
poultry shed is constructed in timber weather boarding and
deteriorating asbestos, which requires to be safely removed in its
entirety from the site. In addition, asbestos materials are evidently
spread across the site causing widespread contamination. The
costs to demolish and remove the buildings and remediate the site
are not economically viable without pursing an appropriate means
of cross-funding through redevelopment of the site for a new

residential use.

The proposed dwellinghouses will serve to aesthetically enhance
both the site and the sensitive character of the designated
Greenbelt, by incorporating a high standard of contemporary
design and a traditional palette of materials to compliment the
immediately adjacent residential properties. The proposed layout
presents no impact to neighbouring amenity and has been
sensitively sited to ensure that there would be no associated

detriment to the character of the surrounding landscape.

25

Page 203



Mr G Buchan

6.4

Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposal does not fit neatly with
existing policy in respect of preferred uses within the Greenbelt, it
has been satisfactorily demonstrated that there are significant
material considerations in this instance that would warrant a slight
departure from said Policy NE2 - Greenbelt. This reflects a clear
established precedent set by approval of four dwellinghouses at
The Mill, Clinterty (Ref: 141627). Furthermore the proposal
embraces wider aspects of sustainability, regeneration and
environmental improvement of redundant land. The site can be
safely accessed and is in close proximity to sustainable transport
modes. The proposed dwellings have been sensitively designed
to improve the visual appearance of the site and sensitive
characteristics of the Greenbelt. In view of the foregoing, it is

respectfully requested that the application be approved.

26

Page 204



Mr G Buchan Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Appendix 1

27

Page 205



11/07/2016 Ryden Mail - Burnside Poultry Units, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Ryden Michael Lorimer <michael.lorimer@ryden.co.uk>

Burnside Poultry Units, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

1 message

Michael Lorimer <michael.lorimer@ryden.co.uk> 11 July 2016 at 12:12
To: Kristian Smith <krismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk>

Cc: Rachael Walker <rachael@akenyonarchitects.com>

Good afternoon Kristian
| hope you are well?

I've been asked by my clients and their appointed architects to forward you the attached indicative drawings relating
to a proposal for the small-scale redevelopment of two redundant poultry sheds at the above site. The site has lain
derelict for quite a number of years and the existing buildings are no longer capable of modem farming practice,
therefore my client has sought to explore the possibility of redevelopment of the site for two new dwelling houses.

Whilst | appreciate the site is located in the Greenbelt and doesn't fit neatly into current LDP Greenbelt Policy, wider
policy principles contained within the SDP and SPP do promote the redevelopment of brownfield land. | also note a
recent nearby example at The Mill, Clinterty (P141627), whereby delegated approval was granted by the City Council
for the demolition of redundant agricultural buildings and the erection of 4 new dwellings. The assessment of that
application focused on these brownfield principles, sustainable development and promoting high quality design.

The intention with the proposed site at Bumside would very much seek to follow the same principles as those
adopted for the site at the Mill. Promoting the highest standards of design to regenerate a redundant site and
buildings through a sustainable new development of two energy efficient dwellings, thus improving the overall visual
appearance of the site and wider character of the Greenbelt.

I'd ask that you give the attached plans some initial pre-application consideration and get back to me with any
comments you may have please as these would be most welcome at this stage. | understand perusal of any such
application will require a robust planing justification and design statement, however any further pre-application advice
would be greatly appreciated.

Look forward to hearing back from you once you have had the chance to consider.
Kind regards

Michael

Michael Lorimer MA (Hons) MRTPI
Associate (Consulting)

Ryden

25 Albyn Place

Aberdeen

AB10 1YL

Tel. 01224 588866

DDI. 01224 569656
www.ryden.co.uk

Download a guide to Ryden's town planning and property research services.

Ryden

Contact our people or find us on Twitter and Linked In

e et Y iaan BT gl S T R T LN R e *

Page 206
https:Hmaii.google.comlmaiIMO;"?ui=2&ik=d399052234&view=pt&search=sg§th= a82bc2eaBab&simi=155d%aB82bc2eadab 1/2



12/08/2016 Ryden Mail - RE: Burnside Poultry Units, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

Ryden Michael Lorimer <michael.lorimer@ryden.co.uk>

RE: Burnside Poultry Units, Little Clinterty, Kinellar

1 message

Kristian Smith <KriSmith@aberdeencity.gov.uk>
To: Michael Lorimer <michael.lorimer@ryden.co.uk>
Cc: Rachael Walker <rachael@akenyonarchitects.com>

Michael,

Firstly apologies for the delay in responding, this lies with me during the busy summer period — and my taking of a
summer holiday.

Anyway, the site is one | am vaguely aware of — the (I assume) client and subsequently ak|a having mentioned it
around the time of the Mill, Clinterty (Ref: 141627) decision at the end of 2015. | don’t know the context of the
site or what is there however.

As you will appreciate the issue here is the material considerations associated to dealing with the extant situation
on site. Essentially that in order to deal with something which is a blight in the greenbelt that enabling
development is required to fund that ‘environmental’ improvement. As such at this point in time the quantum or
detail of development is not particularly relevant, as the principle first needs to be established and should then
lead on towards that quantum and detail. In effect the enabling development should be reflective of the costs of
‘remediation’. In the case of the Mill/ 141627, there was a detailed planning justification which was informed and
supplemented by a detailed QS report (which went through various iterations as a result of third party assessment
by our in-house Asset Management surveyors) — which led to the acceptance of the principle. In terms of the
design detail, details were submitted in an indicative form, but quality was to be ensured through the wording of
conditions and attachment of informative notes and the Report of handling, which made clear what was expected
and would be acceptable at MSC stage.

So drawing all that together, until such time as there is more detail on the context and a supporting assessment of
the need for remediation and cost of doing so, it is not really appropriate to look at the detail of a development
scheme. Once we have accepted the principle, we can then expand the parameters.

I hope this helps, and | would again refer you to the 141627 decision and background info for guidance on how
you could progress.

We can then discuss further.
Regards

Kristian Smith

Team Leader (Development Management North)

https://mail .google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=d39e0522a4&view=pt&search= |Et)x§gg SQQ)ZTeObSN &siml=1567e80847e0b871

12 August 2016 at 12:25

1/4



04/04/2016 Ryden Mail - FW: Burnside Poultry Units_roads enquiry
Hi Rachel,

The unadopted track serving Burnside Poultry units and Little Clinterty Farm meets Clinterty Road at an
established access. This is a priority junction with an unbound surface. The junction layout has reasonable
visibility to the north and limited visibility to the south. | note the first 35 metres of the track is approximately
8 metres in width and within the developer’'s ownership. Improvements to the track surface and confirmation
of the visibility splay may be required.

In principle the access would be acceptable for the development you have in mind.
Let me know if you require any further information.

Best regards,

Gregor.

Gregor Whyte

Engineering Officer

Roads Development Management
Communities, Housing & Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North

Marischal College

Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

From: Rachael Walker [mailto:rachael@akenyonarchitects.com]
Sent: 02 March 2016 11:31

To: Gregor Whyte

Subject: RE: Burnside Poultry Units_roads enquiry

Hi Gregor,

Thanks for the quick response.
hitps://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=28&ik= d39e052234&view=pt&search=ian@tg%3gcg4§afe0d5&si ml=153e1ca420afe0d5 417



e
TECHNICAL REPORT P6799.02:
STAGE 1 SITE INVESTIGATION
Burnside Poultry Unit, Little

Clinterty, Kinellar,
Aberdeenshire AB21 OTL

Prepared for:
Mr Graham Buchan
59 School Drive, Aberdeen, AB24 1TH

Prepared by:

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Riverside House, Riverside Drive

Aberdeen AB11 7LH

Tel: 01224-898189

E-mail: bﬂan@ethmepuimnmnta‘l.m.uk
Web site: www.ethosenvironmental.co.uk

L

& 3 INVESTORS
% o IN PEOPLE

TLES BIATS 15%1 sSHLVErE anel £ o il 11ty

FE733.02 Ethos Enwironmental Lid

Eiull'ﬂi.:de Poultry Unit Page 1 af 28 Stage 1 $i‘tE fﬂﬂiamlh@thnn ASSESIMENT

Mr Graham Buthan _ ovember 2016
Form No | 30-014 | Date of lssus 27/04/2016 IsSue no. 5.0

Page 209



PROJECT QUALITY SHEET

Project Title Burnside Stage 1 Site Assessment | Project Number
P6799.02
| Document Title Technical Report Survey Date Issue Date
29 September2016 16" November 2016
Revision | Date Filename Technical Report
Written |
Version | 1b6th Description | Final Version
1.0 November | Item | Prepared By Checked By
2016 Name B Gardner S Carlin
Signature
ﬂ e
Issue Filename
Description
Prepared By Checked By
Name
Signature
P6799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 2 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment
Mr Graham Buchan _ November 2016
Form No i 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 210




CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0 INTRODUCTION
2.0 METHODOLOGY

3.0 SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

4.0  RISK ASSESSMENT
5.0 CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS

APPENDIX1. Certificate of Analysis

APPENDIX 2. Envirocheck Data

P5799.02

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 3 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment
WMr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. S.0

Page 211




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

An assessment of site contamination has been carried out for the Burnside Poultry Unit site
at Little Clinterty, Kinellar Aberdeenshire AB21 OTL. This involved review of historic maps,
regulatory documentation etc plus site walkover. Due to the extensive presence of asbestos
materials some sampling of asbestos debris was undertaken in tandem with an asbestos
building survey undertaken at the same time on the main agricultural shed standing
(reported at P6799.01).

There are two standing structures with extensive asbestos cement in-situ totalling
approximately 1000-1500 sq m. The internal fabric within the main shed (wall cladding and
roof underside) requires to be cleaned under controlled conditions (“environmental clean”)
prior to any significant occupancy.

The external asbestos cement sheeting on these two existing structures does not present any
risk to occupants but should be inspected for deterioration on a three-yearly basis.

Prior to demolition and re-development the in-situ asbestos should be removed under
controlled conditions. The external sheeting to be removed may be sufficiently degraded to
constitute “asbestos insulation board” and should be tested by water sorption testin advance
to confirm appropriate category of work. The internal asbestos cement has not degraded.

There is extensive contamination of surface and sub-surface ground with asbestos in some
areas of the site assumed to derive from a previously-demolished agricultural shed. The
extent of this contamination requires further work in terms of delineating the contamination
(ie lateral spread, depth of contamination), understanding the nature of the contamination
(ie degree of degradation of material/product categorisation, free-fibre quantification). This
will assist in informing the client on the most cost-effective remediation solution, depending
on end-use options.

The asbestos present on-site (in-situ or ground contamination) currently presents negligible
risk to human health (occupants or neighbouring community). There is a low but readily-
controllable human exposure risk during earthworks for site operatives and neighbouring
receptors.

There is no evidence of other potential contamination on-site excepting possible animal
waste residues associated with the existing structure, however these waste residues are
concluded to be sufficiently small in volume and sufficiently old to present minimal
microbiological hazard, excepting during either demolition of the main shed or dust-raising
activities during occupancy of the shed, in which cases there is concluded to be a low and
readily-controllable risk of human respiratory health impact.

PE799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 4 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 212



1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.3 At the request of Mr Graham Buchan (Private Client), a Stage 1 Site Investigation was
undertaken at the following site:

Burnside Poultry Unit
Little Clinterty
Kinellar
Aberdeenshire

AB21 OTL

1.2  The site has one remaining structure which has recently been used for poultry
farming. A survey of the structure for asbestos is separately reported (P6799.01). This
report addresses the potential for ground contamination of the site itself (and adjoining
areas) due to current or historical activities on the site. The scope of the report does not
extend to assessment of the site for ground stability or with regard to suitability for any
specific construction or development type or other planning or other considerations.

1.3 The client is considering options for the site, including development of two
dwellings.

1.4  The site walkover and assessment was undertaken by Dr Brian Gardner, Senior
Consultant, Ethos Environmental Limited on 29'" September 2015.

P6799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 5 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30014 Date of lIssue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 213



2.0 METHODOLOGY

2.1  The assessment was undertaken by means of a desk-top review of the available
historical and related data. The site was attended on 29" September 2016 for the purposes
of a site walkover and examination of ground conditions

2.2 The site walkover was undertaken by Dr B Gardner who is a Certified Occupational
Hygienist (BOHS) and has first and research degrees in Environmental Chemistry. He also
holds the BOHS CCP in asbestos.

2.3 Additionally, analysis of debris materials identified on the surface of the ground was
undertaken at the company’s Edinburgh laboratory, accredited by UKAS to 1SO17025 for
asbestos analysis in building materials.

2.4 No previous site investigation report was available.

2.5 Where appropriate the site investigation and assessment work followed the
requirements of the following:

» Planning Advice Note 33 (2000) and Part 11A of the Environmental Act 1990 (as
inserted by section 57 of the Environment Act 1995)

» Contamination report 11 — Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination {CLR11)

» BS 10175:2011 British Standards institution ‘The Investigation of Potentially
Contaminated Sites — Code of Practice.

» CIRIA Asbestos in soil and made ground: a guide to understanding and managing
risks (C733)

# Joint Industry Working Group’s Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012:
Interpretation for Managing and Working with Asbestos in Soil and Construction
and Demolition (C&D) materials: Industry Guidance (shortened name CAR-SOIL)

» Draft Analyst's Guide H5G248, Section 7, Appendix 7

PE792.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 6 of 28 Stage 1 5Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-D14 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no, 5.0

Page 214



3.0 SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

3.1 Site Location
3.1.1 Thesite is located at

Burnside Poultry Unit
Little Clinterty
Kinellar
Aberdeenshire

AB21 OTL

(National Grid Reference: 383270 811890

3.1.2 The site comprises approximately 1.26 Hectares. A satellite image is shown in Figure
1 with site border detailed in pink.

Figure 1. Satellite image of site (in pink) and 50m perimeter (blue)

P67902 Ethos Envirpnmental Lid

Burnside Poultry Linit Page 7 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Farm Ma 30-014 Dateofbsswe |  27/04/2016 issie no. 50

Page 215



3.1.3 The site comprises one functional agricultural shed (12 x 35m) currently used for
miscellaneous storage and incorporating small office/ stores area. This is shown on Figure 2
as structure A. The site also has a derelict garden shed [B], the above-ground foundations of
a large glasshouse structure [C], and the below-ground footings and demolition rubble

assumed to be associated with the former poultry building at the westernmost location [D].

3.1.4 There is an agricultural feed hopper at location E, Area F shows a location with no
known history of building but substantial asbestos contamination assumed to derive from the

demolition of the former building D (see section 3.3)

Figure 2. Satellite phutﬂgﬁph Ehnwig site structures

PG729.02 Ethos Envirgnmental Lid

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 8 of 28 ___ Stage 1 Site Contarmination ALLesimiedl

Mr Graham Buchan Novembar 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 ISSUE NO. 5.0

Page 216



3.2 Environs

The site is bordered to the north by a non-metalled road and beyond, agricultural land. To
the west and south is agricultural land, and to the east there are a number of dwellings.

3.3  Site Walkover and Sampling Results

A site walkover was carried out during afternoon of 29" September 2016. There was 80%
cloud cover and slight precipitation during the site visit.

A. The main existing structure is shown in figure 3. This is constructed primarily from
timber and asbestos cement with a concrete slab and some plasterboard internal
walling recently added. This structure is relatively intact and currently functions for
storage purposes. The asbestos management risks associated with this occupied
structure are discussed in a separate report (P6799.01) commissioned by the client
under the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012.

Some limited debris was noted on surface ground around the structure that appeared
to be associated with the corrugated roof sheeting. This debris is discussed in more

detail at section F below,

Figure 3. Photograph of front entrance of Poultry Unit shed (west elevation)

P&733.02 = Ethos Environmentsl Lid
Burnsige Poultry Unit Fage 9ol 28 Stage 1 She Comtamination Assessment

| Mr Graham Buthar _ November 2016
Form No 30-014 | Dateoftssue |  27/04/2016 lssue no, &0 |

Page 217



B. The agricultural storage sheds remaining at the east end of the site have corrugated
asbestos cement roof sheeting (approx. 40 sq m).

Figures 4 & 5 show the sheds and the roof asbestos sheeting in close-up. The structure
is constructed from concrete blockwork. There is some debris associated with the
sheds which has asbestos cement attached (see figure 6), and some limited ground
contamination as discussed at section F

Figure 7 shows a small length of partially-buried footing to the east of the sheds, which
has a section of asbestos cement forming part of the footing.

Figure 4. East Elevation of Sheds [B] to west of site

P6799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Fage 10 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 218



Figure 6. Door frame debris with asbestos cement sheeting attached

PETER.02

Burnside Pouliry Unit

M Eraha‘m Buchan

Pags 11 of 28

Ethos Enwiml}mraﬂl-a]itcl

| Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

- Navember 2016

Form NG

30-014

Date of Issue

27/04/2016

[gsue no.

2.0

Page 219




Figure 7. Footing to unknown structure to east of B, with asbestos cement sheeting within
wall.

C. The former glasshouse to the immediate west of the sheds shown at B, has visible in-
situ footings present above ground as well as some associated demolition waste

(glazed timber frames).

D. This is the area of a former agricultural shed demolished in the early 1980s. There Is
evidence of buried footings to the structure and extensive surface contamination with
asbestos cement products as identified in-situ on the remaining shed [A] and
discussed in more detail at section F.

E. Figure 8 shows the agricultural feed hopper located to the immediate west of the main
shed [A]. This comprises sheet metal only but should be assumed to contain some

residual feed.

[ Pe7%3.02 Ethiss Erndironmental Lid
Burnside Poultry Unit Pape12 6l 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment
Mr Graham Buchan - _ Mowvember 2016

Form Mo 0-014 Date of lssue 27/04/2016 Is5UE no. 5.0 !

Page 220



Figure 8. Agricultural Feed Hopper, Location E

F. Area F has no history of built structures above ground and no obvious evidence of
below ground footings. This area has extensive contamination of the surface and
immediate sub-surface with the two main asbestos products identified in-situ in the
main shed [A], the internal flat, pale yellow asbestos cement sheeting located on the
wall cladding and roof underside, and the external corrugated asbestos cement roof
sheeting (see Figure 9a-c). There is additionally evidence of asbestos cement
downpipes (see Figure 9d).

PETO9.02 Ethos Enwirgnmental L1d

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 13 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessmeant

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form Mo 30014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 iS5 U A, 5.0

Page 221



igure Sc, Ground Enntarninatinn (Area F)

’l"*

&” J

Figure 9d. Ground Contamination (Area F)

Ethas Enﬂrnnm-:nta_l_l Lid

" P§799,02 _
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 14 of 28 Stage 1 St Contamination Assessment
Mr Graham Buchan . 4 i Novermber 2016

Form No J 30-014 Date of lssue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 222




G.

General Site

Asbestos cement debris was observed on ground surfaces at a number of locations
elsewhere on the site. The debris was similar in colour, thickness and morphology to
that observed in-situ in the Main Shed [A] forming either the corrugated external roof
sheeting or the internal flat sheeting wall cladding and roof underside.

Analysis of these samples confirmed the presence of asbestos (chrysotile) in the
material. Water sorption testing of the debris sampled from ground surfaces was also
carried out. This indicated that in two out of the five samples tested, the contact with
soil and moisture had degraded the cement matrix sufficiently to significantly reduce
the cement composition such that water sorption capacity was >30% (Refer samples
67444, 67447, 67448, 67450 and 67451, Certificate No. A20653, Appendix 1). As such
it is prudent to assume until otherwise indicated that any ground debris material
assumed to be asbestos debris requires to be classed under the Regulations as
“3sbestos insulation board”. This is a more friable and risky product category than the
original un-degraded in-situ product retained in the Poultry Shed structure.

The site walkover and visual inspection did not indicate any other obvious
contamination, however there was significant grass vegetation/foliage inhibiting
visual inspection. There was no sign of staining of soils or retardation of vegetative
growth, except for areas where there was significant demolition rubble/aggregate
present.

There was no evidence of site drainage save for natural drainage via the slope to the
south of the site. No other significant pollutant vectors or conduits were evident.

P6795.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 15 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 223



3.4 Documentation Review/Consultations

3.4.1 The main findings from review of standard Envirocheck data (Landmark Information
Group, see Appendix 2) for the site are shown in Table 1, as follows:

Table 1. _Summary of Review of Envirocheck (Agency/Regulator) Data
Item Findings
Historical Review of historical plans indicates no structures on the site until three

Building Plans poultry sheds constructed during period 1959-65. The western-most of
these was removed above ground by 1994. The glazing to the easternmost
structure has been removed more recently though the brick footings
remain as do the sheds to the east of these though now in a derelict

condition
Current The site has been used as a poultry farm since early 1960s until this ceased
Industrial Land | in early 2000s.
Use A landfill site has been in operation at a location approximately 287m to

the north-east of the site.

With the exception of a consultancy service operating out of one of the
dwellings 34m to the SE of the site, all other commercial activities are
>500m distance

Historical Tanks | There is no evidence from review of plans or site walkover of current or

and Energy historical above-ground or underground storage tanks.

Facilities

Landfill and Registered landfill site 287m to NE, closed in 2002 containing paper mill
Other Waste sludges/wastes; numerous areas of potential infilled land within 50-1000m
Sites distance

Geology and Weakly permeable geology; generally considered as containing
Hydrogeology insignificant quantities of groundwater

Designated Sensitive land use: ancient woodland to north east and east (500m) and

Environmentally | smaller woodlands to south and west and north also at similar distance
Sensitive Sites

Flooding Potential for flooding at surface level (BGS Flood Data)

Source None within 1000m

Protection

Zones

Planning Site is within adopted green belt, local authority development plan
‘Mining None
| Agency & Discharge Three consents within 500m in relation to septic

Hydrological Consents tanks/sewage discharge to Black Burn tributary; one

consent in relation to surface water from garage at
Blackburn (527m, discharge to Black Burn tributary)

Nearest 134m south-west of site
Surface Water
Feature
P6799.02 Fthos Environmental Lid
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 16 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment
Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 224



Ethos Environmental Ltd

P6799.02

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 17 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-D14 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 225




4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1 Summary of Main Findings

The client’s intentions for the site were reviewed alongside the desk-top data, observations
made during the site investigation, and the results from sampling of suspect asbestos debris.

4.2 In-situ Asbestos

4.2.1 In summary, asbestos cement totaling approximately 1000-1500 sq m is present in a
relatively intact condition on structures at A and B as shown in Figure 2. Approximately 40%
of the material is external to the structures and exposed to the elements.

4.2.2 This material does not present a risk of human or environmental exposure unless
significant damage is received (eg fire, demolition etc).

4.2.3 Occupancy of the main shed presents a risk to occupants if the area is occupied
without pre-cleaning (environmental clean) of the internal surfaces as discussed in Report
P6799.01.

4.2.4 In the longer-term, weathering and low-level deterioration of the external materials
which are exposed to the elements, may increase the extent of contamination of the ground
cover in the immediate vicinity of these buildings.

4.2.5 Removal of the asbestos paneling from the internal parts of the main shed is likely to
be a notifiable, non-licenced task. Removal of the asbestos intact on the external parts of the
existing structures is a non-notifiable, non-licencable activity. Such work will constitute
demolition and will require to be undertaken in tandem with — and in advance of - general
demolition. Costs for the asbestos removal and disposal should be expected to be the major
part of the overall demolition cost, and be in the range £50-100,000.

4.3 Asbestos Ground Contamination

43.1 Itis assumed that some areas of the site have extensive surface contamination with
asbestos cement debris. The contaminated material appears to have been moved around on-
site to some extent but it is assumed to have derived from the most westerly of the three
original agricultural sheds constructed on-site in the early 1960s.

4.3.2 It is assumed from the materials observed that this structure — while smaller in size
overall - was of similar function and construction to the existing shed internally and externally
and as such there may have been approximately 1000sq m of asbestos cement associated
with it. It is currently unclear whether this material was buried on-site (as was commonly
carried out) during demolition, or to what extent the asbestos waste was removed.

4.3.3 The contamination is concentrated in the north-west section of the site in areas E&F
on Figure 2. It is considered prudent to assume that this material - while concentrated in the
surface and sub-surface depths — may be present to a depth of 1.0mbgl or more until
demonstrated otherwise by excavation and sampling.

P6799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 18 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 226



4.3.4 The material appears to have become sufficiently degraded to constitute “asbestos
insulation board” in many instances, and this should be the default assumption until proved
otherwise. As such it presents an elevated risk of fibre release compared to the un-degraded
product still in-situ.

4.3.5 It may be possible to undertake a clean-up of the soils associated with the readily-
identifiable asbestos debris, as there is scope for re-use of this material on-site if suitable
precautions are put in place (eg careful location, suitable capping with fresh material etc).
This will require consultation in advance with the planning authority however.

43.6 Given the condition of the asbestos contamination and the small fragments evident
(suggesting extensive historical damage) it is likely that on-site decontamination and re-use
of significant volumes of this soil material will not be cost-effective and it will require to be
removed off-site and disposed of as special waste. For an area of approximately 100 sq m
footprint and a soil volume with depth of 1.0m, the disposal costs for hazardous
soils/demolition rubble containing asbestos would be likely to be in the region of £30-50,000
(100 cubic metres)

4.3.7 Furtherinvestigations to delineate the physical extent (ie lateral and horizontal) of this
contamination (including free-fibre quantification), to characterize the asbestos cement
classification, and to fine-tune costs, are warranted to further inform the client’s decision-
making options prior to any mitigation works.

4.3.8 A conceptual model of the environmental risk presented by the asbestos ground
contamination is provided at section 4.4. However it should be noted that there are other
risks to the client not directly accounted for in this. These include:

a. the risk of asbestos being identified on-site during or even subsequent to construction
of new development/dwelling at which point remedial mitigation can become very
expensive; and

b. inadvertent removal off-site of material classed as inert waste which is subsequently
identified as containing asbestos wastes, and which may contaminate other material
streams, again with possible high-risk financial consequences.

4.4 Poultry Wastes

4.4.1 Historically the site has only been used — since the early 1960s — for the purposes of
poultry farming. Historic poultry wastes on-site are not evident in significant volumes but are
assumed to be present as residues within the shed area. These are considered to present a
risk to water-courses from run-off or to constitute a hazard in the soil surfaces on the site,
given the time since cessation of poultry farming on-site.

4.4.2 Recent studies have identified that there is a human respiratory health risk from
exposure by inhalation to the organic dusts associated with such processes. These dusts can
be a complex mixture of components including bioaerosols and various allergens, as well as
ammonia. However this is considered primarily an occupational exposure risk when working
in live facilities. The biological activity of the dust residuespresent in the Main Shed and
externally is considered to be very low and any gaseous by-products such as ammonia will

P6799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 19 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 50

Page 227



long since have volatilised off. Nevertheless there should be assumed to remain a low risk of
exposure by inhalation exclusively for persons occupying the shed (if undertaking dust-raising
activities), and for operatives engaged in demolition of the shed.

4.4.3 The impact of such dusts beyond the site perimeter during demolition activities is
considered to be negligible.

4.5 Environmental Risk

A formal conceptual model of the environmental risk has been developed on the basis of the
asbestos ground contamination and poultry waste residues, and the possible environmental
pathways available, and the ultimate pollution receptors in each instance. This is presented
in Table 2.

PE799.02 Ethos Environmental Lid

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 20 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graharm Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 228



Table 2. Conceptual Risk Model

H

Pollutant | Linkage Receptor Risk Assessment
| Asbestos Dispersion by air Groundwater Negligible risk
Surface water(on-site) Not applicable
Surface waters (off-site) Negligible risk
Water supply Not applicable
Building foundation integrity Not applicable
Human exposure (site worker) Potential low risk (during earthworks if
simple controls are not implemented)
Human exposure (off-site, eg | Potential low risk (during earthworks if
neighbour) simple controls are not implemented)
Human exposure (occupier) Very low risk of exposure of subsequent
occupant of dwelling (eg during garden-
related activities)
Vegetation (on-site or off-site) Not applicable
Ecological habitats Not applicable
Asbestos Physical migration | Groundwater Negligible risk
through soil within [7g, ¢ ca water(on-site) Not applicable
site or off-site ‘
Surface waters (off-site) Negligible risk
Water supply Not applicable
Building foundation integrity Not applicable
Human exposure (site worker) Negligible risk
Human exposure [off-site,  eg | Negligible risk
neighbour)
Human exposure (occupier) Negligible risk
Vegetation (on-site or off-site) Not applicable
Ecological habitats Not applicable
Asbestos Percolation in | Groundwater Negligible risk
surface/groundwaters [ g, ¢ s water(on-site) Not applicable
within site or off-site
Surface waters (off-site) MNegligible risk
Water supply Not applicable
Building foundation integrity Not applicable
Human exposure (site worker) Negligible risk
Human EXPOSUre (off-site, eg | Negligible risk
neighbour)
Human exposure (occupier) Negligible risk
Vegetation (on-site or off-site) Not applicable
Ecological habitats Not applicable
Poultry Dispersion by air Groundwater Negligible risk
Wastes
Surface water{on-site) Not applicable
Surface waters (off-site) Negligible risk
Water supply Not applicable
Building foundation integrity Not applicable
Human exposure (site worker) Low risk
Human  exposure [off-site,  eg | Negligible risk
neighbour)
Human exposure (occupier) Low risk
P6799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 21 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment
Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 229




Vegetation (on-site or off-site)

Not applicable

Ecological habitats

Mot applicable

Poultry Physical  migration | Groundwater Negligible risk
Wastes through soil within
site or off-site
Surface water(on-site) Negligible risk
Surface waters (off-site) Negligible risk
Water supply Not applicable
Building foundation integrity Not applicable
Human exposure (site worker) Not applicable
Human  exposure  (off-site, eg | Negligible risk
neighbour)
Human exposure (occupier) Negligible risk
Vegetation (on-site or off-site) Not applicable
Ecological habitats Not applicable
Poultry Percolation in | Groundwater Negligible risk
Wastes surface/groundwaters
within site or off-site
Surface water(on-site) Negligible risk
Surface waters (off-site) Negligible risk
Water supply Not applicable
Building foundation integrity Not applicable
Human exposure (site worker) Not applicable
Human  exposure  (off-site, eg | Negligible risk
neighbour)
Human exposure (occupier) Negligible risk
Vegetation (on-site or off-site) Not applicable
Ecological habitats Not applicable
P6799.02 Ethos Enviranmental Ltd
Burnside Poultry Unit Page 22 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment
Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 230




5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 There are two standing structures with extensive asbestos cement in-situ. The
internal fabric within the main shed requires to be cleaned under controlled conditions
(“environmental clean”) prior to any significant occupancy. This will be notifiable, non-
licensed work. Refer to Report P6799.01

5.2 The external asbestos cement sheeting on the two existing structures does not
present any risk to occupants but should be inspected for deterioration on a three-yearly
basis. Refer to Report P6799.01.

5.3 Prior to demolition and redevelopment the in-situ asbestos should be removed under
controlled conditions. The external sheeting to be removed may be sufficiently degraded to
constitute “asbestos insulation board” and should be tested by water sorption test in advance
to confirm appropriate category of work. The work on the internal asbestos cement should
be assumed to be classed as non-notifiable, non-licenced work.

5.4  There is extensive contamination of surface and sub-surface ground with asbestos in
some areas of the site assumed to derive from a previously-demolished agricultural shed. The
extent of this contamination requires further work in terms of delineating the contamination
(ie lateral spread, depth of contamination), understanding the nature of the contamination
(ie degree of degradation of material/product categorisation, free-fibre quantification). This
will assist in informing the client on the most cost-effective remediation solution.

o’ The ashestos present on-site (in-situ or ground contamination) currently presents
negligible risk to human health (occupants or neighbouring community). There is a low
human exposure risk during earthworks for site operatives and neighbouring receptors.

5.6 In addition to elevating human exposure/environmental risks, inadequate
identification, assessment, segregation or disposal of soil and demolition rubbles
contaminated with ashestos can result in significant commercial/project risks.

57 There is no evidence of other potential contamination on-site excepting possible
animal waste residues associated with the existing structure, however these waste residues
are concluded to be sufficiently small in volume and sufficiently old to present minimal
microbiological hazard, excepting during either demolition of the main shed or dust-raising
activities during occupancy of the shed, in which cases there is concluded to be a low risk of
human respiratory health impact.

F&799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 23 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 231



5.8 It is considered that sufficient information is presented in this report with regard to
the in-situ asbestos materials and the poultry wastes risks, to enable the client to progress
decision-making with regards to the site. In contrast, to evaluate options for future use of the
site, it is however considered that there is still room for significant clarification as to the
nature and extent of the asbestos ground contamination, the work categorisation for this
(licensable/non-licensable etc), and the likely associated costs for remediation,
removal/disposal etc.

P&799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 24 of 28 Stage 1 5ite Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5,0

Page 232



cee abed

APPENDIX 1. Certificate of Analysis (A20653)

CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS Ethos Enwironmental Lid

Fap g DR e :.u
e R Dh et PO s

Syl n rere me e s el T el e e e e s b kel PEs RS [ i

ko St iy o W MM PR SRS | e i B LS.

i
el Tdl

i SRR AN HER 6
o TR N ST
Lt e -l ad B T Sl oy b oo - ]

iu‘.ltm Jﬂ-m‘- Ay ] DIETE OF Rl AP it - T L L A e TRl
r Py oy B morrewreyrls (= OOETEW 3 DY ALY A CTRAREY IOV P e
CATE OF AN AL VR RRLT- 2 -1
LT W Shay PARCTAMN T NCAAE e T MG MASTEITT ARSI CRRT LI T @
B BT TN GAMPLED WY R T W [y g [ e D P ErertrTraTIm | S ETOPRD W
..F" 'ﬂ-l'"-l-l [ b -“'lh Fpm e T e P L g L 'f'-T-Il_ﬂ'f! l"-‘-'ﬂ"'l"l. ETFSSTED O rha)
S —— AT TR TEF RTIERT] all MRT Th Dt T aoonwpd o cam
SHERDEE" T Ay el = s T e L T e e e AR LT
5 W [ P e e e P O B propeyls e
ﬁi;‘d*'l'm
— B e = —— —— e
k=L § & TRMPLE CETALE ST REEE AN ERTR
B —_———
il T By i et —rTINlEr AT EEDE TR G
Efud T TV TR B T 5 eGSR o——
31T o W MO e el S * N AT . B
dtagd Le ime A SRR e PR e - T BRI [ p—
— —_—
Awii vRED BY e s ASALTEED BY SsOMATLRE Whdbyiidh Qe iaeria
. i LA fretemid il pml] cpmweast by oy s oEpET RS
D BEOMA PN . A ARge ri-Eaemed] e Wee DeeSelr e Bew puymaees twes EOTEAe W L0 e
- i e Armippsy o0 Lpe pew, o Bue RARER ey S
WEE.&E Al 5 e O B N Repres ] guen o
AUTHECHEDGY Tl Sl R AUTHORMSED By SOMATURE ot tiwre—taioy ol e eeoreommory gl P §ETa s
O S R TR A T . TR RN T O et e i
il w2
Pags T 0
= Ttk
=1
PETI9.03 E Ethas Erwiranmental Lid
Burnside Pouliry Linlf Page 25of 18 Stage 1 5ie Contamifation Assessment
M Granam Buchar November MN16
Form Mo 30-014 Daté of Issue 27/04/2016 15508 ND. i 5.0




yez abed

=8 CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS

Ethos Environmental Ltd

i adl O w 5

(W L ] :",--1'"1-'_‘"{' & =i 1 B e v
Chgrvdrpdies Ml

Mgl et e e b s (AT dcoreces sy [Erg e iemee] 1) e Pe——— ey T e
=l pl= B g -y ek T e (REFR TR
¥ Ly L
i i D&
& 146
W LR AT A
n..‘.‘ N Il'.l"n.la
- i l._.:-_'Iq WY S WL — -
_— R — e — — —_— —
A BE ST O8 SO8 s ilEm & Joe 3 DATE OF BAMPLIGG 7 6 7000 By misng Dmes s
|1 D o Eovearmmesiy o opespie g o0 LS Sy foers mor sy
CLEENT b R LR R A S T 3 : % e § —
F g ey o fad e Eoe vy deie e 8 e G
™ =l #H L =Y RhaEL ED O thag= L g i bop e e ¢ werern, [ e [ popEepr e | owE e oS
TIFL [T A A - b P Ty F e E I B AT N RATTRG S VO s NP ST
- I FrTUILEER TS LEY P el ET P ol el T gooper ol ces

i nm =

1 LR Ty

PR SR LV LI TS A RPN WM Sl B
el T TS T (PP S Bl e M

ki AT e LT T | T g e N -'IF-"'I:""' R—
———— —_— - = = e ——
! Lk - T L, TR A oy | i Ty o S 5
o . Firniilil - afve snigoems R e e I e |
ded - ¥ LOArTTHE  EETPE AN
— T —
ANl VEED BT A —— Ay VLS @Y Eacia T —
R MA TV P Lo =Y AT SEFTISTT FRAGY S RO Wy s
5 "y - T
Al O DAy DS I DRt P § CoTpngle pF Dg el
b CPeTRELR hp Arcigwa. of AP T Bl WSRELE s M
WL LN Ny T e g6 e Nl o W st s o7
AUTHORBED BV Ay T I eh ALITwlEmE D B WGMATYFE T VR e e N .
IOV LA T Y | e —— L R e T A L Rl o e T W, o e
i
A

PE739.02 |

'-J:iurnﬁndn_l:'-:y_ltw Limly Page 26 of 28

Ethas Erironmental Lid

Stage 1 Sie Contamnation Assessmant

Mr Graham Buchan

T

Form No ' 30.014 Date of issue _ 17j04/2016 IS5 ue o 5.0




Gee abed

i
! e |

=8 CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS

EBATE DF s s

148
e
hapraTon JOf WUEEER T
‘o 8 R B ERERT PR E S R S A

L 1y

ELATE O Lkl VgEE
AL EL AT
BT DETAILS

i ooy e

P PRERA e T

Rarmmmbye Ponary F armm
[ TERRIS

Ethos Environmental Lid

i i ST

e I T i me e L LR o
. |
[T —prime S

B e

Pl

WEEgng DLW

f B R AN R SR
ja FEINE ERNGEERED

= "I::-""""-'l-l“ — - ]

Lt i L el g

EE=m =il W o o 4 ™ AL s F T Ol T
e SETER] W Pl guRETIEG ApeTTY AT S Y

e T Py FiEveaE vl it R PmaTTtm el Ll Ol B i F

rE ARl i vy errrec Ml o wd ry o rToma

g ey TS L EpETEE R e T [l pesgEae o F

[ N e | L el "‘-_”"-‘; Towy ST —wr—w o p i e

1) Rt b ) ITEE R T e e el T e s,y Ll e B RE R RS .
TR
e ———— e
I- " o i b AP R T ™ %‘_I#‘ ll'l\_'l"". — T
e . N — S —
= = = Fr 2t e X o b T & W e "idik g
—————— S
mMis YRED Wy ¢ - AMAL TEED EY WAL TUNE R b riain Db L
L L L L L T s R - L S T T
EBlaakatioE ' " r-p——— ] e -
CaweEl S ey e e e S i e e & pie W | R

AL Fublriipy B B Rl § TS R

bed BT S R T =i |

BLFTEERED: BY Sl Yo e

By rresf R g s W Geegprepe, e Lpmoge e e fla.m Liger o5 Ty
T LE PNET § 2 Pee B el B i @il e =

o g e el ma ge| B g mieep. owen| ooy e s ey ol

il.1 LS e S WHPLRR I W TR #

[ pE790.07

Hufnsade F'ql.l 1 r'!rﬁgll

Ethos En'.-l_rqﬂrm_-'nﬁll Lied

Page 27 ol 28

e Granam Buchan

ETEEE 1 Site Comtamination Assassment

NovemBer 2016

Form No i 10-014

Date af 1Ssue

27/04/20018

Issue no.

54




APPENDIX 2. Envirocheck Data

P6799.02 Ethos Environmental Ltd

Burnside Poultry Unit Page 28 of 28 Stage 1 Site Contamination Assessment

Mr Graham Buchan November 2016
Form No 30-014 Date of Issue 27/04/2016 Issue no. 5.0

Page 236




/€¢ abed

B = -
i
'._l, -
w w - _._’_‘__,_,-'"-'r'-"-:
e, ey e
'
-:‘. -'I.- I.'
'.___ll'.'..‘ ..r
_.:_:n.}. o
| | i
= d -; r'r
- ' ¥
Il Pk e
- | :
#
7 I
{7
i
ool
AN g
r"l
I.I‘
i
i
h—i——&-‘ﬂilllﬂl——'———u!.——-r -I———-——_—-
F | F
Il'r ..
F J
i ;
e o
T it |
Y g l
i 'I._\_Lr I
1 1I|.
'-\-._ I
) B I
Lale s -_'-. I
= I
h-l
-“'H.._ I
.“g\-\_‘-- I
h_'.‘r-“-h-l
I/ e
=
-
A -'I' o
f I _..-ﬁ:"h_
. iR 3
r..r ¥ I. R
— N, g
o P,
P
i - ""F.-J'-
= ,f"'r 4 I :
. o
—_-—L-_— I_'___F -
_-_T_-_‘_,_—'—‘___'___,—-—'-r'_ - -'I
__'__,_I—F__F_.__ '._. -k = ._-". I g
’ e — > i | d
!:FW oy — — _—_—_—ml
. _______——————  ——— —

Envirocheck

& LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUWUP®

General
. e Liw = Sl Plsinri 5 i ey R fes [ i
e lamr ] e Lt e mmmea re

Agency and Mydrological Waste

.ﬁp——l' ke Lt L T ——

| Gt d L P oy o e I R ] | e

.‘ L v — A I'Hrl;hll.l-nrmi--m

A [ a ey v etener wace L P I
e | e el R | i i

B rewws P e A ) “rhrewte e e

e S ey S

B ey m g e w TS St S e

oY L Amurt Sl oo o [ Sy p——

B ey e e ey U P el |
e T e
* P e Py Sy Ope— Sy W vy | L

g T Tt 7 L P p—

Flams bt vowt o Pimi Fwamrs e ey e
.‘_H‘-I_* B | BT ey ey L S
f e s it m— e A i
e s T mER A AT R
Harardous Substances O IEEN™= e E——"

W i T gl E— gt Mo et W T—
e e

ey twrwaa s Caeey © - W it S T

E "wTr T LATeSy ety

Site Sensitivity Map - Segment A13

Order Details

Cirder Mumnber: TOABO3RTE_1 1
Cutiome: Rt PETIS

Hanonagl Gnd Rolemence; 383270, 81168600
Slice: A,

S Aren |Hai t i

Piol Bufler (m) 100

Site Detalls

Burniside Paiiiny Unil, Lifiis Coniarty, Kinellar, ABERDEEN,
ABZY (TL

Llandmark & =mm

VO Y e DA S

i | gty gy rolomregeates Orous Serves oS00 Addse2000 Vg | oul




ggg abed

Envirocheck

= LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP'

General
¢ feweim C Desedleen) ) Seewyisermiies § en
e

Agency and Mydrological Waste

Wit b T S P —

O Ggew Dy m Sy BOS Fwoross |t T
T ‘m“muh*ﬁ

i Privramry o Pk e o P e e L ke o
FL s LIE Y PR LA s S e o T

B e e Sreewne Lora B Pt s B e Ve

e R S S

-.-L—"ﬁf‘”". W (s el Can bl Wi e e e s

'I.li-ll.l-lf!l-u-hmn T —

[ LRt BT e, Prm—— P A
[ T PRI S S S e e —
l-' o cmmn e B b 7 e M- P | —

i [ TR S R —

T e i P Pl ) g | ] L e e -
) "o twrie? Polion Tw wwrd Mg i L P Bt
¥ —— T L et R T Spp—
o e pa L M gtitrad Semte Tymie "l
Hazardous Substances (0 2Iomrr s Pemetor Pumons a0
o i o s T Fmgriene e " ety Cmr 14
- Gealogical

il Fviglmw e s Seswry T o=
. h-'h._-.n-i-q-l-ll—_lq—-

¥ ox reormqeery Ui

Site E&nsiliviﬁr I'-H%Bp - ﬁ_li;:n“.ﬁ;

" . . ; H
-.-.ﬂli':qq i
1 . = l

Order Details

Order Number 104603876 1 _1

Cusiomer Rel PETID

Matictal Grad Relerence: 383270 B850

Shon: A

Site Area (Ha) i

Sdarch Buffer (m) 1000

site Details

Bornside Poultry Unie, Lime Clmsgeny, nmear, ADERDEEN

AB21 OTL I

- B T (L TR TE R ) -
Landmark Sl
i ——— EEs s R

o TR T T (T

M | mrdvet () vl o ey Teewarw oS00 Qa0 Fege 1 gl




6c¢ abed

Envirocheck

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP™

industrial Land Use Man

Genaral
Rosclied w O, BesemadTulelsl K Bewing ey P
e [T

industrial Land Usa

R e T e L]

P ke

. O Figuiw

F bowwrcitimom cerwee G

- e L LT PR SR

B b e v s Ty e s

 Padi 7 i rR Tubw o w bt

& PemwE =iiem e Crormoew g (0 o8 TEeETES
L T

lndusirial Land Liu- Map - Shica A

Order Details

Oirder Momber 104603878 1 1
Cusiomes el PETIG

Matioeial Gnd Ralosdngd: JZXIZTD, 311580
SHica: A

Site Arsa (Ha ) T I

SEATEh BuMer jm) 000

Site Details

Barnmisge Paudiry Linie, LilBe Centerty, Kinglinr, AREROEEM
AR OTL

—

. s Tl Sld =R
Ema Pollid Wil BTG ¢
Sl — AT TN H -
W& &t ORFATIRE O aLE

i | mwtiimbh (Ao el Terwmid 00 0 SPiaeg iR Pagw 2wl b




Ot’¢ abed

Envirocheck’]

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROLUP®

General
T e 8w
¥ vy et

Agency and Hydrological (Flood)

0. 1% aitorsbed K et ftad fagfl

i S perwngred | (Minr o dupin

L Chewe S weemiindd 1T foed derih

o e O B B S ey | ——— ity S0 e S B G me—— W
Fiy g e Find  mrE s B Sl e S B aer mmer®y meemw . wr e S PR
e I Rl R e R

Flood Map - Slice _A_

Order Delails

Orer Number: 1046035676 % 1
Cusiomier Ref PETIY

hovional Grid Reference: 383270, 811880
Slice A

Site Area [Ha) 1.26

Search BuMer(m) 10600

Site Details

Hurfedafia Poultry Unil, Lillie Coabarty, Kinsliar, ABERDEEN,
A2 GTL

L e F‘H‘um;
n mﬂ [ T X
g B R et

i e D

A | pegiorm vs brtboreemien Dy Serees 0D 18 Mew-200 Hygm Jnf@




Tt abed

Envirocheck

®» LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®

£ g
T s ol Mool 6
K g e B
i
T o Vp o ey

i B s Cag ) v
B D2 B D 13- e
- B P Do

O e

For Boiwehiile inhiomalod fhense e i e Boeatuie cory file sfech
gecprmeanied s, ales

A copy o the BGS Borehdle Orderng Fom & avadable o dowrdoad
frorn tae Suppan sedton of wnw ermarmchiney roouk

B-nranln Map - Slice A

Order Details

Crdar Mumbes 104603876 1 1
Customer Ral PETAES

Matanal Grid FReference: 353270, B11890
Bhce A

Sile Arad (Ha) V26

Saaech Buffpr im§ 1000

Site Deatalls

Burmssde Poudtry Linit, Lite Clinterty, Kmellar, ABERDEEN
ABZT GTL

Landmark oosmmE

A = ONPE TR GG

A | merears inbornee Gmup Serees 0 0 @-Now20 Pepadoin




2 abed

e f 7/ f | Envirocheck

& LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®

) [\1\‘ ﬂ,,,:': J“’ ,,H

General

7 S

O e

A By S wan Bord
L

Dataded River Notwork Data

—_— Pty Falwnidns Tuhes [prase thar im)
——  tetureteds Bk i gLl S | ol
— Vmwry Free —— Ll Faen M s—g
—_— Ll — g o e W e e
== m (gl T = m oo [y B0 ayaEd Lo e
et i L = Wy germgerd e depars

= e ow Lk e e

- == (e [ngean Famor

COMOUTS faigis in oy s

Tedre Dorvme " - .__,I" o= m b Lo W S
b 1 s ——-"'" , s AR g W e

T Hiap I

T —

EA/NRW Dotailad River Network Map - Slice A

| ¥ .1 .FI
- . - - & el
- . - L iy il
= .lI " b | e \ = 3 ] .1‘-'::':-‘I-
1 " . el ol el
. & r H ; ":_"'-.'. "
B ‘ | r I-. - . . L] | ._. - } T i L I._ g - . |
- 1 . =, - e X H
IHl“ = = -: - — b e - - ] ‘H‘-""-"_ .
e . ¥ # A x - e 5 T
jur, - - .| i i L. £l '_.. % R = "': - —M ;_r -r
e - . & g e | e,
i “ i 1 i 1 . - e W |
" \ i | o - J " ! = g 1 j
s - .- .
1 3 .
e

Order Datails

Order Number V0at03876_1_ |
Cusiomen Ral PG00

Mational Grd Reflerence 383770 AT1550
Sica A

Saie Area (Ha), 1.20

Search Butfer im| 000

Site Details

Barrisioe Poury Uit Lims Cinsity, Kinglar, ABERDEEN
ABRZY DT

e LS LTY TR T
ndma R
g wew pwprEieare py -

C D RO T PR EETRGE e U

i gl (miegion Omup Sewen oS00 VMO Pmge Dl B




ci¢ abed

& LE

e

Envirocheck

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP'

Risk of Flooding from Surface Water
..‘I W m S
U ek g

b TEED Vil

o e . e

= e w e e —

EANRW Suitability Map - Slice A

| - .'I i

Order DatnTis

Order Numbser JO0SEL3A76 1 3
Customer Ref. TR0

Mahonal Grd Relerenca 383270, B 1E00
Shin A

Sim Avgw (Ha) 1.26

Search Buffar (mi 1000

Site Details

Burmzide Podiliry Uit Litie Chiviany, Kineisr. ABERDEEN
ARZY OTL

. ' Ll RS
ma E EaEE
Pl Y Mo, Romey M R
& T DS T O T

i | ey isdonmming Cioup Seevees o800 LMo« 0 Fage i = 1




vz abed

Lt L, sFL . e -— -
&
(T T e — *
RS, nvirochec
“ Fh B _}.' wy / ® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP"
o -] - -
o N Nass A8
P R il ‘1|"'._ ‘M L
L _ M "__f &
s Frepa '-fhlr_--r‘li 2 AR — =117 e . General
S | A (L) Sasm S
...,!?F-‘.“"I i Sae'l g Blackb B e oo T [ T X, Mg A wh S
BRI ] ackburn S
Al Gl e ™ fimated Soul Chemasiry Arsenic
o hh "’:."; ."i’ S o
: b AT
—~ ‘-’f " E l-T-rh .r...'.i.l'_'J .";' -.I,JF""Q, Y "-.__h‘
—— o L . g1 ¥ 3) B o e o srivamone g g
_— T : ] ". i ! 'ﬂ-
! .:l 153 B « BE
B 574 LT ¥
BN —_ — - *‘--ﬂ = = ,{p ~
. y —] - 15, 2%
e R L
i _ = -_LJ fﬁﬁ 2:' .ﬂ':
/ e ".I
_" , | 2% .48
'I i -
f Py
r | 5. 120
e - =T
I I
|
. \ Estimated Soil Chemistry Arsenic - Slice A
| %
1
\ . g N
i | ==
| [ P -
A L
| = it 4
i
b ey .
|
) il
-\ Order Datails
Croer Deimis 104603676 1 1
Cuslomer Kel FErEs
ez i -, Nahdhial G Réfdrencd: J83270. B8
— Shoe: A
= Sae Area (Ha) 1.26
SEAMN Buther () P00
_ Site Details
\ ; Burnside Pouliry Unit, Litse Clintgety, KineSar, AGERDEEN
\ AB2Y OTL
h |:'*-l'=;i 2
= o
- "l e _I': i __"'_ . - _:- ® -:‘\ll-l.-l fad BEAY
o, i I-':_'lu" B m I ‘l 1 "H:I T L Wl BT
e rg:'l'l.:":'_ d [ o' ®mew IEEII‘IUH :.lr.'ul'k s A e
o i =
A Ll | Simaben Ditup Sefves w500 1AM Page 1o0 8




Gir¢ abed

I Envirocheck

|
B LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®
:
|= ___—_"‘"-‘-u iGareral
t " T 1 i B ¥ ey Frwwny b
| Estimalod Sad Chemestry Codmiuim
g 1 =
\\ | Foren LTI, (ancers e g g
oy = |
\"\.
1h-22
= id-ia
\-f...-* ' L | F
. = = = “18
: — = ;_-;::.. = |
ﬁ =
" -E::_"_N._ - _-=-___
- R — s
".-I.. — 1 ,I:‘::_‘_::rt‘d rIi
= -y L{h_
'.. .t'.-'ll = .
N 't Estimated Soil Chemigtry Cadmium - Slice A
N te
‘l.f‘;t - ;
_
/ i

& EE
M /f.' A o Order Detalls
s = /4 1 | Order Details 1DAG03BTE 1_1
/"' " Cuzlomes Red PETOY
 w— s b £ Nalicnal Gid Relengnce . 383770, 511889
T ‘J___,,--" i - = Shce A
- e Site Area [Ha )| 1.2
= a3 | P L Search Butfer (m) 1000
___l-—”"—‘rr—r J_,{:"::f 'I'l,—rlilﬂ Site Details
f.;-:'.i' - ] Baurnside Pooiry Ui, Litiie Oy, Kineltar, ABERDEEN,
P AB2T OTL

e = . ta DM By L
= mu s i B S
S | iﬁ B & B S ONEATIE O e o .
-

B Larwiemih, vy Croapr Gmevcm ol P Vo000 Fpes I ol %




9t/¢ abed

Envirocheck

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®

General
S 1 L e B e e LA
Estimated Soll Chamistry Chromium

1y = o - I
'||... ' /
— S, TR g -
Order Details
Deder Dafaily: 1045003878 1 1
Customer Raf PETRO
Naliotal Gad Referwnce. 383270, 811800
Shioe. L
Sdm Arsa (Ha) 1.26
Saarch Butfer (m) 1000
Site Details

Burnside Poytiry Umit, Limg Clintesty, Kinadar, ABERDEEN,
AB21 OTL

Landmark e musaen |
L ol el Wl @RS
TEEE e ——— T

W A T i DA

A L wredrm s infermwion Gy Serece 00 VMg Puge 3ol 8 I




/e abed

P e _— — _————— —— ]|
- L ] L - [T rr-
4 ) [ : e E . H
{3 nvirocheck
& "y -
_.f'". O ;
. r !:u & LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP:
i g -
a.._q:*: -I-li-.. _.._.E___ —
e i J ""'d__' -I
e e s, | ¥ b - General
L ; . =
e . =
o E‘r" .- BIHE:I{I]-{T“‘H ; e Fw L P e o g W 7 ol
-.ft w2 e _ Eatimaled Soil Chemmialry Lead
! 1 ',,;| f
t ;.1'-:# E "'lrl"' I--:'-: 2 ‘,F"'I":- =il H §
{ - \ o e . o .
| ; i — | | P Rp— Lot oo permnmrnaeyy oy
:’ | « |00 mavig
= i Ao |- L —
& . i —— =1 - = J
r v | 100 = 200
A _.!,f' l : .
Ll -l_--l- & - i [
& = . o S e o | ! Wi | G = O
T B _
‘ - = | = 100 - 00
| ] =
"'t e E - - 1 ! : e ool P - 100
| iy,
| F = 1 |
| | e w1y = l
F'h-"'\___ I I_.I
e | | pr
N it & |
e - = —
fen N , Estimated Soil Chemistry Lead - Slice A
g | r =
L | s v m
R ! p—
|
- N : e |
| — |
h-:‘.-F_ i | (|
. o ey o
e :‘tr' _"__'_'.."':'I -:';;[-Il-l [ T - -
| (=5, I
| LE_ =8
| o Se Order Details
" Ovder Details: 104603876 1 1
el __wi .. 1 | b L T L Mational Gnd Relerence 283270, 811880
ol Ly’ | — b Sice A
g Sitm Area (Ha) 1,26
el — Search Bufter im ) 000
i1 = = Site Datails
Burnside Pouliry Unit, Lilse Clinterty, Kingdar, ABERDEEN,
ARZT OTL
.
—— Idli?r‘“l'i
Far ea |
—.-H" N— JE—— —_—— - =
el e ! — N1 : ] d ¥ T i TERTTE L H
et | ) | .| | Landmark L.
. e L § ] B R e P LT - T
B Tl e Kot Ty T T
—— =i == — L EnaEi | P Dy Tdrece oS00 Liabise 554 Pagn 4o &




8¢ abed

W

L]

o gmem

(2L

Fe=

Slackburn

i

L= IR

Lt == &

LLal e & fal®

Envirocheck

© LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®

Garperal
" B 1l e i i — B ey ey ST

Estimated Sodl Chemesiry Nickel

P ) S arivimsary g i

a ju

. .‘-l

) -
5
A

» B

Estimated Soil Chamistry Nickel - Slice A

|

= —== — —_———

Order Details

Ordber Dietails TOAE0387E 1 1
Cusi0imeis FRad, FEMO

Natons g Halerence 83270, 311800
Blige: L

Sile Area (Ha ) 1.26

Seprch Byfler im) 1004

Site Details
Blmside Poultry Uini, Litte Clinieny, Kinesilas, ABERDEEM,
KEZY OTL

r e Bl Padad -5

B E e 0Tl N il e -

A LAraira s Pl ha i Do Sidvem TS 1dbig=2T98 fape i of




617¢ abed

| WY g P Sy g

Ordnance Survey Counly Series and
Ordnance Survey Plan 1:2.500

i =4 Gl Sard
ia{Ty __-_' By By
o amm 'y cege e Fels
-:.":"'1.-

b Lloping Mawiiny %— - == Flal Rk
o=t S <

== .
. S . i ]

. -~

Taruh ity 19
Rough Byehure T

ey L B #—h

lﬁ':‘ '-.i- |

[ » *..

Whrwm Wdane L M T
e Ll o - T
T Farp :_E'-I'uwhl

E Thag. Sadan L Abibude #l Trig Sebon
Naagy b Banch MY Mr Surtace Lave

AT S i i

e e - Artapinies |aite of)

-__:'-'-""'_'ﬁ"l'lllllﬂilu-_ ﬂhj*l_:_ﬂ-'l‘-mm.

T g —
‘“'l"-'l'l-l-hiﬂllﬂ'l--—lll"'i

e e ey e o e prk Fedcy L flas
AN, e S YT ¥ Py
[ o a0 Ly Ty Kr grw
EE P Bricigy L ol
FF Fouasd iPopiy . B iy
[ Dot Pl s [lpwrs Frs Talppie s Dl BEr
Ma i Ty E= h Teauat
Lt

Historical Mapping Legends

Ordnance Survey Plan, Additional SIMs and
Supply of Unpublished Survey Information
1:2,500 and 1:1,250

\3 H#I-H HI‘MJ
L :I'ﬂlilnr | Chaig P or
: E Chay PN s Clay M
" . R Al 9 e
iR g -

Trawe = i!.‘ Bl
{ Coppics - Bmady == - "“"'E
s u
I bt I_F,-r""" Curvert
e Duwihion — Ardaaty
of waler Sow Mark ¢aite o)
g Cave . & Imaegpiabon ey Elecinoly
i _  Elecincxy Trensmasion Lee
N — Cmmdy Beneniary | Seogrmnne|
— — Coundy & Ol B eh Boundary
Crett Pamiah Soamndary
ol Aderiin, Courdyor Counly Bor Boandary
=SSN0 Lo Borough Beuncary
_A{ Syl frafsl ngpoiit wiers boundary
- mersing changes.
Eed B pacppaps 4 Piag, Pogly o Pl
B By Bazundwry Pogf o B B iP el D
EnE Camiti= Crami Fr Pedrks T vamtane &
Crmy Crrresy " PBAT Hitads
ifm Uil ongy Py o Py By
L Einchicky P oo Puan B8 Tigw Fev e Griage
FAR Frs b Pl 4 8 Elgvm Fui oo Ligin
Fi F s Ffati e g
[T L] T wr Trpi
- ward o 1 il s ™H Tinbaorfomra Dl Ham
Leed! Crpaming e ftemive=y o2 P
ke ™ Tresgh

H
1
I
|
£
i
:

=

H

L

-

L g Pl o Woncrg P
e

L

i
i
i

Large-Scale National Grid Data 1.2,500 and

1:1,250
S alaianis o)
i
= i nnmmmm
. Pock
4, Bouders ~  Boulders (scafisred)
. Posiliored Bouder A Sores
Irveyrme {surveysd|
e Qs Ll T s e
& "Iimw i:.: Yerull 1y Arsckan
EL o fﬁm
= ﬂ‘.‘.."'i;‘“'h. - Fm + E"“"!'
1L Emdncdy Trarmmsission Line &l w
[ e o
I Chl parmnienmmmeny boursery
— —  [Nslicd Boundary
— Courty boundary
Binureary postinione

Aladi ¥R BPRET IR DRoCeed pairs or groupRs

o Fras |
filw Mo e ¥ P, Pealy v Fous
B Bormers rC P iy
Tomy Caretny L™ = T
-y Chrmray > T
=" | [ S g0 Pustiig TES e
Dirmgd Ny Lepewrtie o By el a8 SRR
P Deincny Gewling Ersige "og Sl m_ﬂ
e ENOmee, Pek F e W B0 Dl Wi e Bidpe
B Bl P Do (S Bk Shalioe EF N Sigw Femerign
i e ape Speng
friD¥Fr Feamsmis IDrreing Fon ™ T wrTrpch
Gl GRr G Mk Cdroiudg ™ gt
e i Bawwsim Ll W P
ar [HEE TR ] WL T W T, W T
- LI daa ek B Sihg o el
el S PER P R L. L

Envirocheck

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP"

Historical Mapping & Pholography included:

ll-ﬂ...l'r'ﬂ-. S E— W Teg
Alaromenn e NEET LS T
Mbmrdeanibey 12508 (veed_ | 3
Abarcasmbew 0 12000 T e P i
seara e -z son vwer-iaw | 3
hbarSeannh e — e e | A
L L I 12508 | W18 )
Erinance Servey Ple B (T [ N—
 Adeilions! By 118 rni w6
eaitional S0ty ET ML G
lﬂ-_hﬂ-“vl e !:'r..!-ﬂ' -I‘-! I Hl
arge Beats Miimnet Grvd ot |13t s £
ity Seale Walionai Grid Oate CECTT | 1)
Mistnmens A Pcauyrapny BIET NG T __L"
Histarical Map - Segment A13
A
|

COrder Details
Chtier Humoar OLBOJETH | 1
Cisstomsr Fel PETGY
Maliong Grd Reference 383270, 81 1880
SheE A
Site Area (Ma ) 196
Saimrch Buflar i i)
Sita Detalls
Barmaide Poubtry Linid_ Listis Climerty . Kinatsr, ABERDEEN
ABZ1OTL

(o s Ll
Landmark e EEEE

e e e

AW ST ki PR

A ool | e Do G S8k (b el Page sl e




0G¢ abed

|
:
:
75 I
1
4 |
I
I
|
|
To = P e |-

Envirocheck

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP

Aberdeenshire
Published 1866 - 1889
Source map scale - 1:2,500

T Bl Mg §res S (WP b o g o g o ey 1
& V- s E enactEd s T agisl il diel Rlesgin) = B 180G b i R
i & TRES g swy OO fies i smpoung wrsan @iemee i by TR 4
Sevmrrs B v R AR o | BE W b e el pany o Glae
Wik " pillaesil e oo &b w CREn woe plash iy Han wm
erenrnl AW Pt YO aF 0T e swe kasad =6 e Cabiymi

Flop st wil) duy ey SiF =Syl ' 8 boal ety oo e oy ol ooy
(T ke g mEoRela B el H B LSS == e R

Map Harr:n;{s] and D-.EI‘!E{.'-I

L 1 I M
R 1 §
| | e "] t * o g
]
|
| ks TR i
1A |
' 1o A | IR

¥
B
B |

Ordar Details

Cridér Number 104603576 1 1
Customar Ral PRTOSE

Mabonae Grg Palmance 383270 811867
Shca A

Sile Area (Ha) 136

Soarch Bullar im | 0]

Site Datails
Hirrmide Poullng Ui, Liile Climiany Keelar, ABERDEEN
ABM OTL

ol = Uk Wl e
m-ur i il Bl e
= = = Foees——— L

R = T T e e T

= g el | obgpestewe U s EEstTems S0 p BB BTN Sl | ol b




TG¢ abed

-
] -
-A.: |
|
|
i -
|
l
|
wrem S
|
LIRS Y
| f-mer R W T ﬁi" m Emi N T T -

| |Envirocheck

d

o LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®

Aberdeenshire

Published 1866
Source map scale - 1:2,500

Thes sk reond S Gfcresti e repeoas el nam e pro-Smeemdiy e
e i melomiest Sor Ernpigrd ivmind sl Soplineg e i VRS g B TS
i 1 X SO0 ok wia e ] Ao iTepceep Litien aveag el ity AT @

wir o] Tlwi el F widml i i Doibabinowd B Bed Pl —oFgmia padte ol G
Brials Tha podrsaled dals e Dad i Ceii e paacs ilied P e
ey dats et 10N @ O omgpa deaie D on s UEGGE

Prim s o retenendars noropm ol 8 Losse USUrTp 07 oWl B Dot
A FEm WO B ol it § oVt B

Map Name(s) and Date(s)
i % " e )
: I'I.-é“' I |
Y
f |
ﬁl-l ‘1#
1P SN i

Historical Map - Segment A13

Order Details

Drder Humber I04p03ETE § 1
Customer sl PETO0

Mélicna Ged Rfarence . 33270, 8118860
S A

Sde Aren (Ha ) L 8 ]

ENTER BuMaEr (i) Rl

Sita Dotails

Burrmigo Poustry Unid . Listie Climesty . Kine%ar, ABERDEEN
AEZ T OTL

Landmark R

W& W i OERRATIE D

i L wimih (riswmieces Drpupe Sapecs o500 Vdalinee Tl Fagpm 7 2 14 I




2S¢ abed

L = A —
i
| ]
riE [ = ]
]
i
|
]
ﬂ-—---'—-._-—--_'_----_---
i [ S8, ]
LA L]
i e = =
it
f I T e [Ty T Se—r g Ry E ] Ly F [ Sty mrp— -

Envirocheck

® LANOMARK INFORMATION GRAQUP

Aberdeenshire
Published 1866
Source map scale - 1:2,500

Thas rapledini maps BPOm sw=s rEormhioed e raps erio=sard; o
| g asfnpbead For Legeesi Wiy ar Gonsaei o 5 1080 4 Fn 183
i EE O ol i dipbied B Sl wilih B0 A By )R A
rrvaTet B aiid Gl aFed e ooesalaiae B Dl e il ki paete ol U e
Eaiar TRy pobiohed dale pean tains 0 aben e e e i S
Eured il omiy Db BUEE ad Q% rraps seew pagml o0 e Casend
Fromchon wih sdepesciail suroags ol @ poaly ooosly o grmup of goasees
ey i A Wﬁiﬁﬁl.—--nmﬂjﬂq TR

linp Hﬂme:ﬁ_}nnd Date(s)

Historical Map r&gment;'l 3

3|4

Order Details

Drder MumDer TR4EO3RTE 1§

et pupver Rk P raa

Matonal Geid Refersncn. 383270, 51148580

Slica A

Site Area (Ha| 1486

Saarch Bule i) 10g

Site Details

Borrepige Pouliry Ui Littis Lhinderty, Funalliar, ADERDEEN
ARZ OTL

¥ I= e § iR
Eonn wwed A nd e
i i T g W 1]

WS S T AT DR

# Lwrwrrmfi (Hameeien Crpug Saiyvecs o500 debpy-T000 Fagys 4 i 1




£Ge abed

wh|

-—--u-ﬂn--—---l-il--hl--'n---—

L R [ A e—

Lt

Envirocheck

2 LANDMARK INFORMATION GROQUP®

Aberdeenshire
Published 1867 - 1898
Source map scale - 1:2,500

Tem tmongiom apy Mmmﬁmﬂmnmi—ﬂ
¥ ife poils anispisd Be Engard Waks and Goodlanel ome P8l & (0 1953
He 170 200 acmin wad piopied Lr mappeng wibee, sonax and by 194 4
catwat S (he whoby of whil wes conaslenms o Se P st ool g of Gl
Demmii  Fha pubdales did Jreal Balicras i ol doore ety nis) S e
vy dEe Dates 1O g0 05 irapi wers hdtad of B Caiais

FPre et &N e NPT & P BT § O cilly o grinag oF oz e s
TP VR O R e el o cudl g avees

l_ﬂﬂl-:l Name(s) ant!_lilﬂ_!ulsl

Historical Map - Segment A13

Order Delails

Orciar Nurm bis T048038TE 1 1
Cristoengs el PETEG

Matwonal Grig Relerenca: I83G70, B11880
Shes A

Sile Afoa iFHa) 126

E&nrch Autfer fm) ol 1]

Site Delails
Bifraida Poullry Unit, Lifle Clintary, Kenstiar. ABERDEEN,
AR OTL

. i LT PN T
mur Fag WAL i
T - e geviesceien oz L 2
L W EITLE N ST PR R

A pEaiemih e (s Seipicy SO0 kMo 0TE  Page §of 4




Gz abed

] Envirocheck |

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®

Abeardeenshire
Published 1900
Source map scale - 1:2,500

Thes. hasprrags s=apy Thpas wem SeFtongd by =iy gog forrmgily by
ke gy il £ begierad, Wyaing and Bosifena ey lhe Fd0 0 e 2 B0
i 1 3 D00 il s Ry L R GEE  aN eE eed By 1 e

iy vl e o bl e e el Y e el el i 18 TR
ifvnaen  Thes pupssimeg ot greme Deos o oW red. e e P T
iy dain [Ladiom 1508 @i 05 mape sene fosed ae vem G ssas
Pitainbies & po bt (i wera i of 8 bempe coudiy pe e ol Seuree
R D RS D LT S S T U IS

Map Name(s) and Data(s)

- i - P P

S I T
g . | - | i T i

. i

'__""T -_:n.-* =,

' 'r.l'ﬁ'-m | ey :

I-: — I-— — NERCE g - | -

Histarical Map - Segment A13

EIZ_‘

-m | I_‘.
0-ga1 1 ¥ | "

Hurnaa E—-—l,
el = —
| Order Details
Cirder Mumber 1G4B0IETE_1 )
st bl P TO
Malional Gro Relemence 383270, 69 18E0
Shie A
“ Sile Arag (MHa) .28
Sairch Buffer (m) 160
Site Details
.r"‘ Bumside Poulfry Unif, LB Cenlery, Kmailor, AHEROFEN
}‘,: % AR OTL
1 = = .
) | A
4 [ P 28 ‘ -
o= ¥ Landmark % S

[ | : W T R T
L et Lt e LR A g N : = T e
iR L g A Cman e W0 0 Rdome (2T e T LT




GGe abed

H i

3y LU "‘-'
A5 s

"q;ﬂr ¥
":"" ‘..

L}
r'lr ,

=
¥ ror

_..._.._..__--.f....--..

P S — S

LTI

lIl‘III'J||

P T e

RN Nk Fon

Envirocheck

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP®

Aberdeanshire

Published 1925
Source map scale - 1:2,500

T endivridad emmpzn grorsis e e pioeseed o e e ety s
i rew ol @80 ] dei Enipinfil WPaging ial el iol m (Fl bRAD 5 B 8
P | J L0 gl iyl S!S Py iR Aehes denl g 180N

oo amimd b ebaa oA ol depes poreeletml by By e oSl palris 4 it |
Il Pl gii=e® & el e 000 O Sl Wle JEett Bl D a0 g

Eii vyl il Plebosa (EIA @9 Dl g comrm ieaal & e ) @seas
Frogaibmn el ovimianse |8 srages OF 5 rype Crgnd j & e il o
pe g rimm b ol e A = g e

Map Namea(s) and Date(s)

, TR WS- e e
S "
] 12 l i e A
i

———— g
i I.-.:,‘-l L:ﬂ = (& "
I La* - I |q.|u| i

Histarical Map - Segment A13

il
~-ai% - | .
: "';

Order Detalls

Orcier M, imber TDAB0IATE 1
Carsipmar Haof &Y

Mitoad Grd Ralers=a 83270, §1180¢
Slirw i

Sliiw Araa (in) )28

Saarch Bufer imi 100

Site Delails

Burnisime Pealiry Uled . Lifjle Chirderfy, Kinellar, ABERDEEN,
AET OTL

==, = == 2 = —

Landmark 5 e

[ R e Al [L R R TR

& | el | el [ Seirecss #5000 | Bkl HE S Vi * & YA I




9G¢ abed

" | —

LRI

g

- h—

Envirocheck

S LANDMARE INFORMATION GROUFP

| Ordnance Survey Plan
Published 1965
Source map scale - 1:2,500

1 Pogipymp o o prmes qpress PPl Cm 1 o R Yy |
o i ke i e N B el W ael e o e TRl g e 1R
iy 1 e Al ST B i el aie B ey R
myrn | B wiiin ol ot a8 peornide el ke B How o cBiomianl gm0 i 1§ ool
i e Yrs o= bl FE bl Irﬂ"llhﬁl'l"-' g b A puiy bl b b
BLTVErAs (s BElae RTR &0 VP —ap sl feieEd ol 1Re T passs
U el ety el gairv i F o e Laninn g o g [d 900 g q et i
o) v g i e T R T Ty

h;ﬂ; Mame|s) and Date(s)

| |
R

2 I 1N
L | ey
1 3R

j TRy :
-, E
E S LFE
e b e l L
Historical Map - Segment 413
M
!
; 1
Order Dalalls
Ot Number 1OME03ETE 1§
Csinmer Fal P T
Matitinal Gired B dprencs ST 11800
Ao A
Si& Ansa | Ha) \ 26
SEAFCN Bt B (i) 109
Site Detalls

Bumside Poultry Unit. Litie Chintany, Knaiar AGERDEEM
ARZY OTL

Landmark = EES

B = w ymiboenyrd § il md Mue

i w4 ol Ty bies a0 |l TRiR T ok goll Wi




/Ge¢ abed

Envirocheck

® LANDMARK INFORMATION GROUP

Additional SIMs
Published 1982 - 1984
Source map scale - 1:2,500

Tong il popniin. [Tiovjomaroe Esrva gt Tuney ool irndpoion s g8 Bligrmbery) j s
bgrihke o pgbacT g u.-!n-ppn] ol vt B e pedesbd mis | bbb =
it [T prida Bl anieh w4 0 RIS e g alatedl DRy 3N I TEELT 1
P g i dfalitid somrmaiaT o Baliaicn eTRdY el el
et oy e ioepulictes) o Bty 4 3500 i V| 28 e

Map Name(s) and Date(s)

' mmeis | nwgy |

' :':Eur. 1 :?‘m
X
i !
i i
Historical Map - Segment A13 T

e =y

| 2
4 —r
|

Order Details

Drder Humbef \DAB038TE 1 1

Customer Ral PE U

MNetgnal Grid Relerence JAXITO, 811850

aliga, A

Site Ares (Ha) 128

Search Buffer dm| 100

Site Detalls

Hurmada Poultry W, Lisle Clinmiy, Kingilar, ABERDEEN
A2 OTL

P T i W
Landmark = A
_— == 1 U T [

il & & b DEERAT [ Rl

A |l il | [y S e /00 FlBEaSUIR Wil @ E




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



v
LQ(:AMERON+R055

CONSULTING CIVIL 6 STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

15 Victoria Street, Aberdeen, AB10O 1XB

T 01224 642400 F 01224 642406
E info@cameronross.co.uk

WWW.Cameronross.co.uk

A/16677 — STRUCTURAL SURVEY OF POULTRY SHED, LITTLE
CLINTERTY, CLINTERTY, ABERDEEN

STRUCTURAL INSPECTION REPORT

Prepared By:

CAMERON + ROSS,
15 VICTORIA STREET,
ABERDEEN.

AB10 1XB

Tel — 01224 642400
Email - info@cameronross.co.uk

October 2016

Cameron + Ross is a tgading na FCameron + Ross Ltd
Registered in Scotland 142061 Relmsteb ChEe: ns Road, Aberdeen, ABIS 4YE



1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

CONTENTS.

INTRODUCTION

DESCRIPTION

OBSERVATIONS & PHOTOGRAPHS
RECOMMENDATIONS

CONCLUSIONS

Q

CAMERON+ROSS

CONSULTING CIVIL & STRUCTURAL ENCINEERS

Cameron + Ross is a tgading na ameron + Ross Ltd
Registered in Scotland 142061 Refraigk e, ns Road, Aberdeen, ABI5 4YE



CAMERON-+ROSS

CONSULTING CIVIL & STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

A/16677 — STRUCTURAL SURVEY OF POULTRY SHED, LITTLE CLINTERTY, CLINTERTY,
ABERDEENSHIRE

Further to your recent request, we confirm having carried out a visual structural inspection on

13" September 2016 and record our observations and comments below.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The purpose of the report is to assess the structural condition of the existing building
with a view to its existing use and to give guidelines for necessary remedial actions or

further investigation as appropriate.

1.2. The inspection consisted of a visual examination of the interior and exterior of the
property.
1.3, Unless specifically noted, finishes were not disturbed nor was any subsoil investigation or

inspection of buried foundations carried out.

1.4, We have not inspected woodwork or any parts of the structure which are covered,
unexposed or otherwise inaccessible and therefore we are unable to report that any

such part of the property is free from defect.

Cameron + Ross Page 3

Page 309



2

DESCRIPTION.

2:1 The building is located at reference NJ 83246 11917 as shown on the location map below.
Littie Climlerty Farm
/Poulryshtd

2.2 The poultry shed is about 11.9m wide x 36.7m long externally and is 2.4m high to the
eaves with a 22° pitched roof and is over 50 years old.

2.3 The building is constructed with timber frames trusses and posts at 3.05m c/c onto a
215mm blockwork wall which is 350mm above floor level. The frame sits on the wall at
this level.

2.4  The roof is of asbestos cladding onto timber purlins which span between the timber
frames.

2.5 The purlins are clad on the underside with an asbestos sheeting or similar.

2.6 The walls are of timber frame, 75m thick clad with timber lining externally and asbestos
sheeting or similar internally.

2.7  There are large double doors to the gables of the building.

2.8 To the North gable end of the building there are two small internal toilets and kitchen/
office rooms.

2.9 The ground floor is a concrete floor slab.

Cameron + Ross Page 4

Page 310



3 OBSERVATIONS & PHOTOGRAPHS.

Below are a collection of photographs taken of the property during our inspection.

3.1 West Elevation

Note evidence of sagging in roof at apex.

3.2 South Gable

Cameron + Ross Page 5

Page 311



3.3 East Elevation

34 East Elevation showing signs of bowing in wall.

Cameron + Ross Page 6

Page 312



3.5 North Gable

3.6

Cameron + Ross

Page 313

Page 7



3l

3.8 Internal view to South gable.

Cameron + Ross

Page 314

Page 8



3.9 Views on truss frame

Cameron + Ross

Page 315

Page 9



3.10 Propping to truss due to previous failure.

3.11 Strengthening to truss noted.

3.12 Evidence of water staining.

Cameron + Ross Page 10

Page 316



3.13 Seating for frame onto blockwork wall.

3.14 Deterioration of timber frame post at wall head.

Cameron + Ross

Page 317

Page Il



4 RECOMMENDATIONS.

4.1 The building is in a reasonable condition for its use but does require extensive repair
works.

4.2 The roof structure appears to be sagging which we understand is due to deterioration of
the purlins. The building will have been exposed to moisture variations in internal
temperature, and this has caused timber decay to the structural members.

4.3 There is evidence that the roof structure frame has had repairs and this may be due to
the fixings and members which have had water ingress through the roof.

4.4  There is evidence that the base of the timber frames on the wall head are showing signs
of deterioration.

4.5 We understand that the roof requires to be resheeted due to the condition of the roof
sheeting. This would involve removal of asbestos sheeting and thereafter disposing of this
in the correct manner.

4.6  There is evidence of the blockwork wall at ground level spalling and this will require
further investigation and repair.

4.7 Cracks are noted in the base wall and these should be repointed.

4.8 The connection of the frames to the foundation wall requires to be installed as at present
it is not connected.

4.9  The building can be considered more of a shed type structure, in that it has a lack of
robustness in relation to wind and snow loading imposed onto it. Our design review of

Cameron + Ross Page 12

Page 318



the building is that this is lightweight to withstand snow and wind loading. We would

therefore suggest that robustness detail and strengthening be carried out.

4.10 No damp proof membranes are thought to be present to walls and slab, and this should

be rectified.

Cameron + Ross Page 13

Page 319



5 CONCLUSIONS.

5.1 The building requires remedial repairs and the cost of this work may not be financially

viable as it is no longer usable.

5.2 We would suggest that extensive works are carried out to the building to extend its

lifespan.

5.3 We would conclude that it may not be financially economic to carry out repairs on a basis

that it would be better to remove building and redevelop the site.

END OF REPORT

Signed ... &CSH\T‘/

on behalf of CAMERON + ROSS

CAMERON '+ ROSS,
CONSULTING ENGINEERS,
15 VICTORIA STREET,
ABERDEEN. AB10 1XB

Cameron + Ross Page 14

Page 320



.";-.r'

~, e

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
Burnside Poultry

Clinterty, Aberdeen

d K|d

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd
South Lediken Studio
Insch
Aberdeenshire
AB52 6SH
01464 851621
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 321



SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
BURNSIDE POULTRY, CLINTERTY

prepared by Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd
2017

k © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
d Kid .
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

Page 322



Contents

4. Introduction

4. Strategy for Sustainable Development
5. Building Design and Materials
6. Low Energy Design and Renewables

7. Water and Drainage
7. Waste and Recycling
8. Ecology and Biodiversity
9. Transport
10. Community and Education

10. Summary

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
ronlaend WWw.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 323



INTRODUCTION

The proposed development at Burnside Poultry will provide an eco-development of two new homes within the area of
Clinterty. The concept for the development is to achieve a showcase of best practice in low energy and ecological design.
STRATEGY FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Principles of sustainability have been applied throughout the development of the site plan and conceptual arrangement
of the homes and supporting amenities. These principles are described throughout this report, and include:

building design and materials

low energy design and renewables

water and drainage

waste and recycling

ecology and biodiversity

transport

community and education
The next stages of design development, specifically in relation to the buildings, offer great opportunities to address
principles of low energy and sustainable design. The proposed site at Burnside provides a basis from which to achieve
a highly sustainable development.
Some of the main points that were considered from the initial stages are:

+ Public Transport:

The site is located nearby a major bus route between Aberdeen and Inverurie and the bus can stop at the A96,
nearby the site.

* Local Amenities:
A range of local amenities including a shop, village hall and park are available at Blackburn nearby with more
extensive facilities available in Inverurie and Dyce, which are both accessible by bus and are all within cycle
distance from the site.

+ Reduction of Surface water run off:

The homes have been located outwith the 1 in 200 year flood level, and there will be a high percentage of
attenuation through soft landscaping and porous surfaces.

* Recycling facilities:
Recycling and storage areas have been included within the garages.
* Protection of Ecological Features:

The newly planted native trees at the North will be protected throughout the construction. Additional
planting has been incorporated into the proposals on the East and West boundaries.

* Private Space:

Both homes have their own large garden space with uninterrupted views across the countryside. Separation
between the properties will restrict overlooking.

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 324



BUILDING DESIGN & MATERIALS

Burnside Poultry can accommodate two contemporary houses reflecting the local vernacular style of architecture, these
flexible designs based are on traditional forms. These would be easily adapted to suit changing lifestyle requirements and
provide homes for life.

Housing design will be simple gable forms with lean-to additions, orientated to exploit sunlight with large areas of glazing
facing south and small openings to the north. To enable the development to blend in with the local landscape, natural
materials will be specified, including timber, local stone, and slate. Sitting well in the landscape these designs will be robust
and suited to the local climate.

The houses will typically be timber framed and super-insulated using structural insulated panels. The colours and textures
will give a unique sense of place to the development, which aims to promote good design and provide site specific solutions,
for individual needs.

The materials used throughout the development should display a variety in colour and texture. The following materials are
suggested:

Render finish

Natural timber cladding

A limited variety of roof materials to add texture and colour to the development; slate | corrugated metal
A variety of fenestration openings to add variety in scale and colour

Hardcore and gravel

. Paving slabs

Natural slate

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017

pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 325



LOW ENERGY DESIGN & RENEWABLES

The most effective way in which to reduce CO2 emissions associated with energy use is to minimise the demands for heat
and electricity in the homes through well considered design, taking into account factors such as:

orientation

solar energy in association with thermal mass
super insulated building envelope

air tight construction

daylighting

heat recovery

efficient services, lighting and appliances

The low energy design approach at Burnside will incorporate high levels of insulation and make use of solar energy to
offset heating requirements. Analysis will also be carried out to test the most effective strategy for the homes, including
comparisons of passive ventilation against mechanical ventilation with heat recovery.

Once the lowest possible energy demand has been achieved through design measures, a range of renewable energy
technologies will be investigated for the development and used to offset the requirement for fossil fuel energy sources on
site. Detailed feasibility studies will be carried out to determine the most appropriate technologies for the site, although
initial observations have identified the following as suitable for further consideration:

solar thermal panels to produce hot water
wood burning stoves to replace secondary heating

A detailed energy strategy for the site will be produced as part of the next stages of the design development for Burnside, and
will be based on the best practice approach of an initial reduction in energy demand, followed by the application of suitable
renewable energy technologies. These measures will result in very low or zero CO2 emissions from the development,
which will be reflected in the achievement of high ratings for their Energy Performance Certificates.

Airtight continuous construction Solar PV panels Wood fuel stoves Dual fuel boilers

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017

nnie Kenyon Architees Led www.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 326



WATER & DRAINAGE

Water is a resource which should be used sparingly, like any other. The proposal at Burnside will investigate the use of rain
water harvesting and grey water re-use. This will work in combination with efficient water sanitary appliances to ensure a
low demand for water usage. The design also includes for a provision of water butts throughout the development. This will
provide non-potable water for irrigation of the soft landscaped areas and allotments.

The design of all landscaped areas will ensure the reduction of all surface water run-off. It is essential that, as a result of
the development, the surface water is not made any worse as a result of the development and this will be resolved by using
measures such as porous surfaces and ecological planting.

WASTE & RECYCLING

Waste and recycling are to be key considerations for all stages of the proposed development. Some possible strategies could
include:

designing around standard material sizes

production of a Site Waste Management Plan

use of pre-fabrication

agreements with manufacturers to return unused materials
“just in time” deliveries

re-use of high value materials

Wherever possible, substitutions for building products with a higher than average recycled content will be made, so as to
achieve a best practice level of recycled content for all buildings at Burnside.

Each dwelling has ample space to allow for the sorting and storage of recyclable waste. This will include segregation for all
materials that can be recycled locally, including paper, cans and plastics. In addition, it is proposed that the residents have
access to composting facilities to prevent biodegradable waste from being sent to landfill. This will have the additional benefit
of providing a local source of compost which can be used within the garden areas.

Any existing materials on site are to be re-used and re-cycled where possible. Subject to contamination zones, concrete and
rubble should be considered for crushing and re-use. Timber downtakings should also be considered for chipping and re-use
in landscaping.

k © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
dKjd :
www.akenyonarchitects.com

Annie Kenyon [Architects Ltd

Page 327



ECOLOGY & BIODIVERSITY

The site at Burnside boasts a diversity of wildlife which varies with the seasons, including numerous species of birds, insects
and flora.

The development aspires to protect and enhance the rich natural heritage of the land by creating a wildlife habitat which
provides a haven for existing species and encourages other native species to become established and thrive in a bio-diverse
environment. Some examples of features currently being considered include:

incorporation of existing ecological features in the proposed site layout
log piles for frogs and insects

bird and bat boxes

limited car movement / hard landscaping around the development

The proposal at Burnside aims to improve ecological connectivity and natural countryside setting. The existing site in its
redundant state (ie concrete foundations and rubble) offer little in the way of a route or habitat for wildlife. The proposal
for the site has increased and improved soft landscape and substantial areas of new planting, offering a greatly improved
wildlife corridor.

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017

pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 328



TRANSPORT

The rural location of the site determines that car use cannot be completely eliminated from the development. However, this
is recognised to be a key issue in terms of creating a sustainable eco-development.

The site is located nearby a major bus route that runs between Aberdeen and Inverurie. The site is also located within
cycling distance of Dyce 9.4km, Westhill 7.3km, Kingswells 11.2km and other areas. This in turn means that residents at
Burnside would not require to have sole reliance on a private car.

The distance from the junction of the Burnside track where it meets Clinterty Road up to the bus stop at Bishopston is 0.9
km.

The road is quite straight with good visibility from Burnside up to the junction of the old A96, turning right, there is a wide
double lane road up past Bishopton Farm where the underpass with a lit pedestrian footpath on each side leads to the bus
stop on the new A96. (This is a dead end to traffic as the old A96 ends and only vehicles going to and from the farm and a
few cottages use that road.) In addition to this there is also a bus stop on the near side of the A96 accessed by a pedestrian
footway. In summary there are two bus stops with pedestrian access, one in the direction of Aberdeen and one in the
direction of Inverurie.

It is also worth noting that there is no need for pedestrians to venture on the dual carriageway in order to reach the bus
stop - the pedestrian rout along the existing farm track and the underpass is well used by students from the College and
schoolchildren.

The alternative pedestrian route to the nearest bus stop in Blackburn village is to turn left at the end of Clinterty Road and
use the pedestrian island on the west side of Clinterty Roundabout to cross the A96, this route is 1.2km. There is a footpath
to the roundabout crossing which is lit.

There is an official signed public footpath with runs directly from Clinterty Roundabout through Little Clinterty farmyard
to the direction of Westhill. The neighboring farm received public funding to create the footpath and continues to receive
funds to maintain it.

The footpath can be accessed from the farmtrack which runs Westward from the site at Burnside Poultry. There is also a
paved footpath beginning at Roadside Cottage and runs past the entrance to Little Clinterty Farm yardthen crossing on to
the A96

An alternative option for transport is the new “ Park and Choose” facility which is now operational - this is approx 4km
from Burnside.

The new bypass is also due to open at the end of 2017 which will dramatically reduce the use of Clinterty Road as a “rat-
run” for rush hour traffic.

NS

-

‘I--

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

Page 329



COMMUNITY & EDUCATION

As the site is located on a major bus route and within cycle distance of nearby peripheral towns this allows for connectivity
to leisure, retail and employment opportunities.

With the provision of dwellings with such great transport links to the local areas, the residents will help to supports the
growth of the area by ensuring the survival of local services and facilities such as the shop, village hall and Blackburn
Primary School.

SUMMARY

The proposals for the eco-development of two new homes at Burnside Poultry have been generated using best practice
principles of sustainability, and address the following key areas:

building design and materials

low energy design and renewables
water and drainage

waste and recycling

ecology and biodiversity

transport

community and education

The next stages of design development will build on the sustainable features already incorporated into the site layout, and
will address details of renewable energy feasibility and materials selection.

This is an opportunity for a community to build contemporary homes in a choice of suitable materials, using construction
methods at the forefront of green technology. The development aspires towards creating a contemporary rural lifestyle with
sustainable living at its heart.

1 k 1 © Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd 2017
pmie Keyon i1 WWW.akenyonarchitects.com

10
Page 330



TcE abed

This drawing is copyright of Annie Kenyon Architects Ltd. This drawing is to be read in
conjunction with all related drawings. Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions
must be checked and verified on site before commencing any work or producing shop
drawings. The originator should be notified immediately of any discrepancy.

EXISTING SITE PLAN
SCALE 1:1250

PLANNING

A | 18042017 | Updated for Planning. | RT

aka

Annie Kenyon |Architects Ltd

South Lediken Studios

Insch

Aberdeenshire

AB52 6SH

tel/fax: 01464 851 621
www.akenyonarchitects.com
info@akenyonarchitects.com

Client
Graham Buchan

Job Title
Burnside Poultry Units

X 5/ Littl?
' ?. Clinterty

Clinterty
Aberdeen

-~

Drawing Title
As Existing

>k

/ Location and Site Plan

“

// @

/ CAD Reference

>R

g \ B I;oo m ban Scale at A3 |Drawn | Chk | Date

LOCATION PLAN

0 100 200 300 400 500m 0 25 50 75 100 125m
Scale 1:5000 Scale 1:1250

SCALE 1:5000 N Job No. Drawing No. | Revision No.

N Various RT - NOV 16
|
|

486 PL-01 A




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 332



REPORT
ON A FEASIBILITY STUDY

OF

BURNSIDE POULTRY FARM,
CLINTERTY
ABERDEENSHIRE

Walter Michie

Poultry Consultant November 2005

,,,@e 333




BURNSIDE POULTRY FARM, CLINTERTY

The Poultry Unit at Burnside was built in the 1960's and comprised three houses. |
understand that one house was used for rearing chickens from day-old to point-of-lay (18
weeks) when they were transferred to one of the other houses where they were kept for egg
production and were housed in battery cages. They would have been kept in production for
around one year, after which the whole flock would have been disposed of to a poultry
processor. Each house would have accommodated around 6,000 birds.

Two of the houses have been removed - the foundations are still evident. The cages have
been removed from the remaining house. The house is 36.6 metres (120 feet) long and 11.59
metres (38 feet) wide. There is a small store with a sink unit in the N.E. comer. There is a
bulk bin for holding food. The house is sectional, is clad with weatherboarding and has
corrugated asbestos on the roof. It would have been insulated with glass fibre and is lined
with asbestos partition board. It had a conventional ventilation system of side inlets and roof
extraction via fans in shafts.

It appeared that the house had received little maintenance in recent years and was in a poor
state of repair. Four of the fan shafts were missing and the gaps left in the roof were covered
with clear corrugated plastic sheeting. The other two shafts were in a state of collapse. This
would have enabled an ingress of water into the roof structures. Some of the baffles over the
inlets were rotten or missing (see Appendix 1). There was evidence of vermin activity and it
is likely that this would have damaged the insulation.

It appeared that the housc had been last used for the floor rearing of chickens from day-old.
Outside the building there was a gas brooder, bell drinker, mini drinker for chickens and
troughing for a chain feeder.

The building would obviously require a major refurbishment - almost a rebuild - before it
could be used for any form of poultry production. It would require to be re-equipped,
probably re-insulated, re-wired re-plumbed. rotten house supports replaced/repaired and a
new ventilation system installed. A level well-drained loading area would have to be
provided and a collection tank for waste wash water would probably be required. [f the
adjoining land was used for free range production it would also require attention. The
suitability of the access road for vehicular traffic for deliveries (feed and stock) and
collections is questionable.

The Poultry Unit at Burnside was fairly typical of units established at that time - early 1960's.
Feed would have been purchased from a feed compounder, the eggs would have been sold to
a packing station and the manure (sludge) would have been taken away by a local farmer.

Due to economic pressures many of these units ceased production during the 1980's although
some did expand and went on to market their own eggs.

The main problem of bringing the Poultry Unit back into production - apart from the
tremendous amount of work which would have to be done to it - is its size which provides a
total usable floor space of just around 400 square metres.

Page 334




—_— — SEE — - e e e

Various possibilities were considered from conventional broiler production (6800 birds per
batch) to organic, free range egg production (1000 birds per flock). The number of birds is
determined by Legislation, Codes of Practice and Farm Assurance Standards.

Apart from the condition of the poultry house - which was in a state of disrepair - and the
adjoining land - which would require much attention to make it suitable for free range
production - it is my opinion that the size of the Poultry Unit is far too small to make any of
the possibilities which were considered to be economically viable.

Further significant factors which render an operation on the scale of the building at Burnside
uneconomic, even if improved to acceptable modern standard are:-

1. The two main poultry processors in Scotland, Grampian Country Chickens (Rearing)
Ltd., and Joseph Mitchell (Letham) Ltd., specify that the minimum number of birds
for conventional broiler production which they would require a producer to rear in
order for that producer to become a contract grower would be 30,000 birds per batch.

The maximum batch capable of production at Burnside in the present facility would

be 6,800.

For free range broiler production the minimum number required would be 18,000

birds per batch.

3. For free range cgg production, the minimum number of birds required to supply eggs
to a packing station would be 5,000. The house itself could accommodate 3,600
birds, but this number would be further restricted by the available land area. The
subjects extend to just over 1 hectare and a grower requires to have 1 hectare
available for each lot 0of 2.500 birds.

4. House processing of poultry is not a realistic possibility on this site given the
prevailing regulations.

39

References
1. The Welfare of Farmed Animals (Scotland) Regulations 2000 and 2002
2. Commission Regulation (EEC) No 1538/91 of 5 June 1991

Detailed Rules for Implementing Regulation (EEC) No 1906/90 on certain marketing
standards for poultry meat.

3. The EC Egg Market and Animal Welfare Regulations
Explanatory Leaflet: Poultry Rearing Methods - Cage, Barn, Free Range, or Organic
4. Codes of Recommendations for the Welfare of Livestock
Meat Chickens and Breeding Chickens - Scottish Executive September 2004
5. Codes of Recommendations for the Welfare of Livestock
Laying Hens - Scottish Executive September 2004
6. Soil Association Organic Standards: April 2005

7. SAC Farm Management Manual 2005

Walter Michie -

Page 335




WALTER MICHIE, SDA, NDD, NDP
Quarry Croft
Keig
Alford
Aberdeenshire
AB33 8BP
Telephone: 01975562692
e-mail: :

PROFILE

Experience — 38 years in the Poultry Industry — Poultry Consultant/Head of Division
with  strong leadership, managerial interpersonal and communication skills.
Commercially aware and client focussed. Committed and motivated individual with
extensive range of skills and knowledge covering all areas of poultry production:-
Business strategy and policy development, stock management, research and
development, education and training, consultancy on all aspects of poultry
production.

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Checkmate International ple (CMI) 2003 -
Assessor (Part-time)

Carry out audits on poultry farms on behalf of CMI in connection with the Assured
Chicken Production (ACP) Scheme

Scottish Agricultural College (SAC) 2001-2003
SVQ Assessor (Part-time)

Carried out on farm assessments of Management Staff for the Scottish Vocational
Qualification Level 3 and 2.

Scottish Agriculture College (SAC) 1992-96 (Retired)
Senior Poultry Consultant

Responsible for providing a consultancy service covering all aspects of poultry
production to independent poultry producers and companies in the Poultry Industry.
Areas covered included:- physical and climatic environment, nutrition, stock
management, health and welfare, budgeting and financial control, audit and impact
assessments, stafl training, lecturing diploma and degree students and supervising
student projects.

[nvolvement in Research and Development at the SAC Poultry Science Department at
Auchincruive.

Nerth of Scotland College of Agriculture (NOSCA) 1970-1992
Scottish Agricultural College (after re-organisation)

Head of Poultry Division (Craibstone, Aberdeen)

Responsible for planning and implementing a Research and Development programme
appropriate for the needs of the Poultry Industry. Topics covered included interactions
between environmental temperat ures, nutrition and lighting for layers, broilers, turkeys:

Page 336




whole grain feeding including choice feeding for broilers and turkeys, perchery system
for layers, product guality. Mam or joint author of 80 scientific papers during career.

Lecturing to graduate, undergraduate and diploma students attending courses at
SAC/NOSCA and University of Aberdeen. Supervised post graduate student research
projects. Was a recognised lecturer for the Univeristy of Aberdeen.

Provided training for staff of the large Companies operating in the Poultry Industry.

Responsible for the management of the Poultry Unit at Craibstone which had
substantial egg, broiler and turkey enterprises.

Responsible for a team of 10 staff.

NOSCA 1965-1970
Senior Poultry Adviser
and Manager of Poultry Unit at Craibstene, Aberdeen

NOSCA 1960-1965
Assistant Advisory Officer in Poultry Husbandry
and Manager of Poultry Unit at Craibstone, Aberdeen

NOSCA 1958-1960
Manager of Poultry Unit

EDUCATION/QUALIFICATIONS
1956 Scottish Diploma in Agriculture (SDA)
1957 National Diploma in Dairying (NDD)
1958 National Diploma in Poultry (NDP)

PERSONAL

Date of Birth: 1 September 1937
Marital Status: Married

® Member of Council of World Poultry Science Association, UK Branch for 9 years.
J Member of Headquarters Poultry Committee of National Farmers Union of Scotland

®

Examiner and Assessor for Diploma and Certificate Courses in Poultry for SCOTVEC

1996 Presented with The Distinguished Service to the Poultry Industry Award by the
British Poultry Breeders and Hatcheries Association for “meritorious service over
a period of many years to the Poultry Industry of the United Kingdom.”

2060 Presented with the Howie/Surgenor Cup by The Poultry Club of Scotland for
Services to the Scottish Poultry Industry.

INTERESTS

® Property Convenor for Howe Trinity Parish Church, Alford
® Elder of Howe Trinity Parish Church, Alford

e Treasurer for Bennachie Sheep Dog Trials Association

® Fishing, Golf, Walking

Page 337




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 338



UKAS

TESTING

>
=

UKAS

IMNSPECTHOMN

DRAFT TECHNICAL REPORT P3335

EXTERNAL ROOF

BURNSIDE POULTRY UNIT

LITTLE CLINTERTY FARM

BLACKBURN

TYPE 2 SURVEY FOR THE PRESENCE
OF ASBESTOS BASED MATERIALS

P3335
Burnside Poultry Unit

Prepared For

Mr. Graham Buchan
328 Morrison Drive

ABERDEEN
AB10 7EN

Prepared By

Ethos Environmental Ltd
Lauries House
Altens Lorry Park

Hareness Road
ABERDEEN
AB12 3LE

Tel: 01224 898189
Fax: 01224 875697
E-mail: kploeger@ask-ethos.co.uk
Web site: www.ask-ethos.co.uk

DECEMBER 2007

Page 1 of 30

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn

December 2007

Page 339

Ethos Environmental Ltd.



Please note that the UKAS Accreditation marks on the front cover of this report refer only to
services for building surveying and sampling of the suspected asbestos bulk materials. This
includes the recommendations detatled herein. It should be noted that the Risk Assessment
Algorithm used in this survey is out with the scope of Ethos Environmental Ltd’s inspection

bodv accreditation.

Technical Report Ref:

P3335

Report Type:

Asbestos Inspection Survey

Premises Surveyed and
Address:

Burnside Poultry Unit
Little Clinterty Farm
Blackburn

Report Status

Draft report

Report Version

1.0

Client Organisation:

(G raham Buchan

Client Contact Name:

(Graham Buchan

Survey Date

5" November 2007

Report Issue Date:

17" December 2007

Report Author
(Signature, name & title):

Kitty Ploeger, Consultant

Report Reviewer
(Signature, name & title):

Katherine Horsell, Consultant

Technical Director
(Signature, name & title):

I brian \rxaraner, 1echnnica Irector

Ethos Office Address:

Fthos Environmental
Lauries House

Altens Lorry Park
Hareness Road
Aberdeen

AB12 3LE

Contents
1.0 Introduction
2.0 Use of the Report
() Survey Findings
4.0 Risk Management
Appendices
Al Methodology
A2 Survey Scope, Qualitications and Service Constraints
A3 Certificate of Density Analysis (3 Pages)
A4 Site Plans (1 Page)
A5 Terms & Conditions
P3335 Page 2 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd,

Burnside Poultry Unit
Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 340



1.0 INTRODUCTION

At the request of Mr Graham Buchan, Proprietor of Burnside Poultry Unit, Little Clinterty
[Farm, Blackburn an inspection of the buildings’ asbestos cement roof has been undertaken at the
following premises:

Burnside Poultry Unit
Little Clinterty ['arm
Blackburn

The scope of the exercise was to establish the condition of the asbestos containing cement roof.
The roof has been inspected with a boom lift (cherry picker) to establish the condition of the
roof panels in 24 separate areas.

The client did not provide plans of the site. Survevor derived plans are included in Appendix

Ad.

The survey was carried out byt Ms. Kitty Ploeger (Lead survevor) and Ms Katherine Forsell
(Assistant Survevor) of lithos Lnvironmental Ltd, on the 5" November 2007,

P332 Page 3ol A Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn

Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decembser 20007

Page 341



2.0 USE OF THIS REPORT

2.1 This report should be read in its entirety, including all sections, appendices, certification,
plans and photographs (where applicable).

2.2 There are a significant number of report caveats, qualifications and service constraints
relating to:

Client instructions/brief

Client information provided

Scope of the survey

The method of work for Type 2 asbestos building surveving
Representative surveving and sampling strategies

oooooag

Client intentions for the building

These are necessarily associated with asbestos building surveving, and are required under our
UKAS accreditation and/or professional indemnity insurance cover.

2.3 The client should satisty themselves as to the adequacy of this survey report within the
caveats and exemptions detailed at appendix 2, and the following items.

2.4 The specific areas detailed below could not be accessed for the reasons given, and
therefore no conclusion can be drawn with regard to the likely presence or absence of ashestos
in these areas, and it should be assumed that ACMs mayv be present in each area. If anv doubt
exists as to description of areas or room elements the client should contact the company at the
earliest opportunity:

n The remainder of the building has not been surveyed for asbestos
containing materials.

2.5 The client should satisfv themselves that thev have provided - in advance of the survey -
the surveving organisation with all information available in terms of previous survevs, history of
the building, previous asbestos removal details, site and lavout plans and details of hidden voids,
solums, hidden access hatches/points etc

2.6 The client’s attention is drawn specifically to the distinctions between type 1, 2 and 3
building surveyvs as discussed in appendix 2. Specifically it is stressed that a tvpe 2 survey should
not be relied upon to confirm the presence/absence of asbestos in buildings prior to
refurbishment, demolition or any works liable to disturb non-surface elements of the building
fabric as these mav not have been included within the scope of a tvpe 2 survev. Where such
work is proposed, a tvpe 3 survey is required.

2.7 It should not be assumed that Lithos Linvironmental Ltd is party to full information
relating to the client’s intentions for the building at the time of the survev commission or
completion.  Lithos Linvironmental Ltd understands that the client’s requirements/project
intentions are as follows: The creation of an asbestos register and management plan.

P332 Page 4 ol A Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn

Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decembser 20007

Page 342



2.8 The client should satisfv themselves that the scope and extent of the survev reported
here addresses all parts of any proposed scope of works which mayv cause disturbance. It is also
stressed that the responsibility of the surveving organisation extends to the undertaking (and
demonstrating of same) that reasonable steps have been taken to carry out a full and
comprehensive survey in accordance with the survey tvpe (e.g. 1, 2 or 3) specified.

2.9 The client should review the material risk assessment (see appendix 1) prepared for each
ACM identified in light of their understanding of the nature of the building and its use by
occupants and satisfv themselves that the risks presented by ACMs on-site are adequately risk-
assessed.

P332 Page 5 ol A Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

ecember 20007
| ) Page 343



3.0 SURVEY FINDINGS

3.1 General Building/Site Description

The building 1s a single storey; brick built building, with a corrugated asbestos cement root. The
internals of the building consist mainly of brick and plasterboard walls. The ceilings are clad
internally with chipboard wood panels. Doors and window frames are wooden and the tloor 1s

concrete.

3.2 Summary of Asbestos-containing materials (ACMs)

The main survey findings are summarised in Table 1 below. Refer to Table 2 tor a summary of
the asbestos presence for each individual room. The criteria for assuming an item contains

asbestos is detailed in Appendix 1 (section Al.1)

Table 1. Main Areas/Build
Area/Element'

External — Root material

inE Elements cnntaining asbestos
DescﬂEtinn and Surveznr Criteria

The panels on the root were tound to contain
Chrysotile (white asbestos). The material was
unsealed, in tair to poor condition and in an area of
low occupancy at the present time

External — Debris surrounding

the shed

Debris within the soil surrounding the building was
tound to contain Chrysotile (white asbestos). The
material was unsealed, in poor condition and in an
area of low occupancy at the present time. The
density of this material indicates that the material can

be classed as Asbestos Insulating Board (AIB).

Note 1: Area dESCIiptiUHH are surveyor derived

P3335

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 6 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.

Page 344



3.3 All areas surveyed

Table 2 details all areas of the building within the scope ot the survey. Please refer to the plan in
appendix A4 for room locations. Section 2.4 summarises the areas not accessed, along with
reasons for lack of access.

Table 2. Summa

EZ of asbesms-cnntairﬂng materials in each area

Area’ Asbestos | ACM Description
present in
area? ’
External
Section 1 Yes 3/This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47139) |
Section 2 Yes 4/ 'This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47140)
Section 3 Yes 2/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47138) |
Section 4 Yes 1/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47137) |
Section 5 Yes 5/ This material can be classed as Asbestos Insulating
Board material (AIB). (cert A13761, sample 47141)
Section 6 Yes 6/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47142)
Section 7 Presumed | As 1/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC). Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47137)
Section 8 Presumed | As 1/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC). Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47137)
Section 9 Yes 7/ This material can be classed as Asbestos Insulating
Board material (AIB). (cert A13761, sample 47143) |
Section 10 Yes 9/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47145) |
Section 11 Presumed | As 1/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC). Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47137)
Section 12 Yes 8/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47144) |
Section 13 Presumed | As 1/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC). Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47137)
Section 14 Presumed | As 1/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC). Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47137)
Section 15 Yes 10/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing
cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47140) |
Section 16 Presumed | As 7/ This material can be classed as Asbestos Insulating Board

material (AIB).
Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47143)

Note 1: Area dESCIiptiUHS are surveyor derived

Note 2: Type 2 survey method (MDHS100)

P3335

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 7 of 3( Ethos Environmental Ltd.

Page 345




Continue. /Table 2. Summaz of asbesms-cnntainjng materials in each area

Area’ Asbestos | ACM Description
present in
area? ’
External
Section 17 Presumed | As 7/ This material can be classed as Asbestos Insulating Board
material (AIB).
Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47143)
Section 18 Presumed | As 10/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC).
Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47146)
Section 19 Presumed | As 7/ This material can be classed as Asbestos Insulating Board
material (AIB).
Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47143)
Section 20 Ves 11/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing

cement material (AC). (cert A13761, sample 47147)

As 11/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC).

Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 4714 7)

As 11) This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC).

Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47147)

As 11/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC).

Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 47147)

As 11/ This material can be classed as asbestos containing cement
material (AC).

Presumed as (cert A13761, sample 4714 7)

Surrounding area Yes 12/ This material can be classed as Asbestos Insulating
Board material (AIB). (cert A13761, sample 47201)

Note 1: Area descriptions are surveyor detived

Note 2: Type 2 survey method (MDHS100)

Section 21 Presumed

Section 22 Presumied

Section 23 Presumied

Section 24 Presumed

P3335 Page 8 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.
Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn

December 2007

Page 346



Table 4.

Description of item &
location!

Section 1

Condition of the material

Condition of the material

60% ot the material 1s in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the sheets.
40% 1s 1n fair to medium condition with layering of the sheets

Section 2

50% ot the material 1s in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the sheets.
50% 1s in fair to medium condition with layering of the sheets.

Section 3

10% of the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the sheets.
90% 1s in fair to medium condition with layering of the sheets.

Section 4

100% of the material is in fair to medium condition with layering
of the sheets.

Section 5
Asbestos Insulating Board

50% of this section has been replaced with new corrugated sheets.
50% ot the material 1s in fair to medium condition with layering
of the sheets.

Asbestos Insulating Board

Section 6 100% ot the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the sheets.

Section 7 90% ot this section has been replaced with new corrugated sheets.
10% ot the material is in fair to medium condition.

Section 8 90% of this section has been replaced with new corrugated sheets.
10% ot the material is in tfair to medium condition.

Section 9 100% ot the material is in poor condition with visible layering and

cracks in the sheets.

Section 10

100% ot the material 1s in fair to medium condition with layering
of the sheets.

Section 11

90% ot this section has been replaced with new corrugated sheets.
10% of the material 1s in fair to medium condition.

Section 12

100% ot the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the material.

Section 13

100% ot the material is in fair to medium condition with layering
of the sheets.

Section 14

100% ot the material is in fair to medium condition with layering
of the sheets.

Section 15

100% ot the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the material,

Section 16

100% ot the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the material.

Section 17

20% of the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the material.
80% ot the material 1s in fair to medium condition.

Section 18

100% ot the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the material.

Section 19

100% ot the material is in poor condition with visible layering and
cracks in the material.

Note 1: Area dESCIiptiUHH are surveyor derived

Note 2: Type 2 survey method (MDHS100)

P3335

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 9 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.

Page 347




Cont. / Table 4.

Description of item &
location!

Section 20

Condition of the material

60% of the material is
cracks in the material.
40% of the material is

Condition of the material

in poor condition with visible layering and

in fair to medium condition.

Section 21

60% of the material is
cracks in the material.
40% ot the material 1s

in poor condition with visible layering and

in fair to medium condition.

Section 22

60% of the material is
cracks in the material.
40% ot the material 1s

in poor condition with visible layering and

in fair to medium condition.

Section 23

60% of the material is
cracks in the material.
4% ot the material is

in poor condition with visible layering and

in fair to medium condition.

Section 24

60% of the material is
cracks in the material.
40% of the material 1s

in poor condition with visible layering and

in fair to medium condition.

Note 1: Area d(:f-;criptiunf-; are surveyor derived

Note 2: Type 2 survey method (MDHS100)

P3335

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 10 of 30

Page 348

Ethos Environmental Ltd.




4.0 RISK MANAGEMENT

Table 5 (below) summarises the risk management requirements and recommendations.

‘Table:b. Risk Management

Description of item &
location!

Surrounding Area

Debris in soil

Comment

Asbestos debris was found within the soil surrounding the
building. This material i1s classed as Asbestos Insulating Board
(AIB) and shows visible asbestos fibres.

This material poses a medium-high risk with regards to the
release ot fibres to any occupants working within the area. (risk

rating 64)

It 1s strongly recommended that this asbestos containing material
is removed from the area in the short term (3 months).

To remove the material, 5-6 inches ot top soil should be removed
reaching 2-3 feet away from the building. Atter 3 teet, fractions
of asbestos cement debris can be lifted and disposed of as
asbestos containing material.

Work on this type of material will invoke the Asbestos
Licensing Regulations and requires the use of a licensed

asbestos removal contractor working in accordance with the
Control of Asbestos Regulations 2006.

It should be noted that this material must be treated as asbestos
containing waste.

Poor condition material
(layering and cracks

visible asbestos fibres
present}

ArC

present within the panels,

Adrc

This material poses a medium risk with regards to the release of
fibres to any occupants working within the area. (risk rating 52)

In section 5 and section 9 this material was found to be Asbestos
Insulating Board (AIB). It should be presumed that the material
in poor condition is classed as AIB material. It is strongly
recommended that these asbestos containing materials are
removed from the area in the short term (3-6 months).

Work on this type of material will invoke the Asbestos
Licensing Regulations and requires the use of a licensed
asbestos removal contractor working in accordance with the
Control of Asbestos Regulations 2006.

It should be noted that this material must be treated as asbestos
containing waste.

Note 1: Area dcscriptinns are surveyor derived

Note 2: Type 2 survey method (MDHS100)

P3335

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 11 of 30 Ethos Environmental Lid.

Page 349




Table 5. Risk Management

Description of item & Comment
location!

Fair to medium condition | This material poses a medium risk with regards to the release ot
material fibres to any occupants working within the area. (risk rating 48)
(layering 1s present within
the panels, visible asbestos | The material can be classed as asbestos cement. It should be
tibres are present) presumed that the material in fair to medium condition is classed
as asbestos cement material. It is strongly recommended that
these asbestos containing materials are removed from the area in
the short to medium term (6-12 months).

Work on this type of material will not invoke the Asbestos Licensing
Regulations and does not require the use ot a licensed asbestos
removal contractor. However the individuals working with this
type of material should be suitably trained to work with asbestos
and work in accordance with the Control of Asbestos Regulations

2006.

It should be noted that this material must be treated as asbestos
containing waste.

Note 1: Area d(:f-;criptin:mf-; Are surveyor derived

Note 2: Type 2 survey method (MDHS100)

4.1 General Advice

The extent of detective (AIB) root panels can only be established it each individual panel is
sampled and analysed. Therefore the information collected 1s based on the surveyors’ experience
and presumptions. The roof is generally in fair to poor condition. The protective layer has been
washed oft and visible asbestos fibres are present. The cement sheets in place will continue to
absorb water and disintegrate.

The roof material on section 5 and section 9 are classed as Asbestos Insulating Board (AlB),
which in wet weather conditions will further disintegrate and 1s likely to cause further water
damage to the internal structure of the building. It is strongly recommended that these panels
are replaced at the soonest possible opportunity.

All panels that were tfound in fair and poor condition show visible asbestos fibres. In wet
weather conditions it is likely that asbestos tibres will be released from the materials matrix.

The root sheets that are classed as tair condition material are Starting to disintegrﬂte (1.e. lﬂ}TEI‘iﬂg)
and will need to be replaced in the near future.

P3335 Page 12 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.
Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 350



APPENDIX Al. METHODOLOGY

All  Surveying

An in-house UKAS-accredited method in accordance with FISL: Guidance Note MIDHS 100 was
used. In each instance the conclusion as to asbestos presence/absence may be based on:

O Specific sampling
Sampling of the actual item/element in the area indicated, confirming that asbestos is/is not
present

O General sampling
Sampling of a visually identical item in another area of the same building confirming that
asbestos is/is not present

O Strong presumption of ashestos presence
In the absence of sampling, visual inspection indicating that the survevor is confident that
the item does contain asbestos

O Presumption of asbestos presence
In the absence of sampling, visual inspection indicating that the survevor cannot assume that
the material does not contain ashestos, i.e. that the item should be assumed to contain
ashestos

O Presumption of asbhestos absence
In the absence of sampling, visual inspection of certain obvious materials - which have never
been known to contain asbestos [e.g. brick, glass, wood] - indicating that the survevor can
assume that the material does not contain asbhestos.

Al.2  Sampling

Where sampling has been used, this has been by means of an in-house UKAS-accredited method
in accordance with FISL: Guidance Notes MDFIS 100 and FISG248.

Al3  Analysis

All analysis was undertaken by in-house UKAS-accredited method in accordance with FISL:

Guidance Note FISGG248

P332 Pan: 13 630 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn

Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decembser 20007

Page 351



Al.4 Risk Assessment

A risk assessment is undertaken on all ACMs identified. This risk assessment is a material risk
assessment only, undertaken in accordance with MIDFIS100. The assessment relates only to the
risk presented by the material in-situ: no allowance is made for other factors which the client is
assumed to have a clearer knowledge of, and which mayv significantly change the risk, such as
occupancy of room/area where ACM is present (numbers of persons and duration), likelihood
that the ACM will be disturbed, and nature of any such disturbance.

The client is therefore advised to review the material risk assessment conclusions in light of their
understanding of the nature of the building and its use by occupants.

P332 Pamn: 14 630 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

ecember 20007
| H Page 352



Al.4.1 Material Risk Assessment Scoring System

e e e ———————————————————

Sample Variable | Score | Examples of Scores

|
Product Type (or 1 Asbestos reinforced composites (plastics, resins, mastics, roofing
debris from telts, vinyl tloor tiles, semi-rigid paints or decorative finishes,
product) asbestos cement, etc.)

2 Asbestos insulating board, mill boards, other low density insulation
boards, asbestos textiles, gaskets, ropes and woven textiles, asbestos
paper and felt

3 Thermal insulating products (e.g. pipe and boiler lagging), sprayed
coatings, looses asbestos mattresses and packing

Extent of Damage 0 Good condition: no visible damage
or Deterioration 1 Low damage: a tew scratches or surface marks; broken edges on
boards, tiles, etc.

2 Medium damage: significant breakage of materials or several small
areas where material has been damaged revealing loose asbestos
fibres

3 High damage or delamination: materials, sprays and thermal
insulation. Visible asbestos debris

Surtface Treatment 0 Composite materials containing asbestos: Reintorced plastics or
resins, vinyl tloor tiles or painted asbestos cement (with exposed
face painted or encapsulated)

1 Enclosed sprays and lagging, AIB (with exposed tface painted or
encapsulated), unsealed asbestos cement sheets, etc.

2 Unsealed AIB or encapsulated lagging and sprays.

3 Unsealed lagging or sprays

Asbestos Type 1 Chrysotile
2 Amphibole asbestos excluding crocidolite
3 Crocidolite

The risk assessment score for each of the tour tactors is added up. The lowest score possible 1s

2, the highest 1s 12.

P3335

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 15 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.

Page 353




Al.4.2 Prinrity Assessment Parameters

Assessment Score | Examples of Score Variables
Parameter
Normal Occupant Activi
Main Type of 0 Rare disturbance (e.g. infrequently used storeroom)
Activity 1 Low disturbance activities (e.g. office type activity)
2 Periodic disturbance (e.g. industrial or vehicular activity which may
contact ACMs
3 High levels of disturbance (e.g. tire door with an AIB sheet in
constant use)
Secondary 0 Rare disturbance (e.g. intrequently used storeroom)
Activity 1 Low disturbance activities (e.g. ottice type activity)
2 Periodic disturbance (e.g. industrial or vehicular activity which may
contact ACMs
3 High levels of disturbance (e.g. fire door with an AIB sheet in
constant use)
Likelihood of Disturbance
Location 0 Outdoors
1 Large rooms or well ventilated areas
2 Rooms up to 100m”
3 Confined spaces
Accessibility 0 Usually inaccessible or unlikely to be disturbed
1 Occastonally likely to be disturbed
2 Hasily disturbed
3 Routinely disturbed
Extent Amount 0 Small amounts or items (e.g. strings or gaskets)
1 > 10 m” of material or 10 m pipe run
2 l‘?li]iiﬂmznr}'lﬂiiﬂmpipemn
3 > 50 m” or > 50m pipe run

Human E:{Pnsure Potential

Number ot 0 None
Occupants 1 1-3
2 4 -10
3 > 10
Frequency  of 0 Infrequent
Use 1 Monthly
2 Weekly
3 Daily
Average  Time 0 < 1 hour
Fach Use 1 > 1 - <3 hours
2 > 3 - < 6 hours
3 > 0 hours
P3335 Page 16 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn

December 2007

Page 354




Continued. /

Assessment
Parameter

Score

Examples of Score Variables

Maintenance Activities

Type
Maintenance
Activity

-

of

0 Minor disturbance (possible contact when gaining access)

1 Low disturbance (e.g. changing light bulbs in AIB ceiling)

2 Medium disturbance (e.g. lifting one or two AlB ceiling tiles to
access a valve)

3 High levels of disturbance (e.g. removing a number of AIB ceiling

tiles to replace a valve or for re-cabling)

Frequency of 0 ACM unlikely to be disturbed for maintenance
h"f[ﬂiﬂtﬁﬂﬂﬂcﬁ ]_ % 1 per };’Eﬂr
2 > 1 per year
3 > 1 per month
P3335 Page 17 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.

Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn

December 2007

Page 355




Al1.4.3 Condition Classifications

The conditions of any asbestos-containing materials identified in the survev are classified as

follows:

Good

The asbestos-based material is in sound condition and shows no signs of deterioration.

Fair

The ashbestos based material, although sound is (a) sealed but showing slight signs of
surface deterioration such as hairline cracks, water stains and minor blemishes; or (b), is
unsealed but in otherwise good condition.

Poor
The asbestos based material is badly water stained; broken, badly cracked or {ibrous
materials are exposed.

Al.4.4 Priority Factors

In addition to assessment of material condition, the locations of suspect asbestos materials
relative to personnel, and parameters likely to influence deterioration were taken into account
when assessing the risk of exposure and providing recommendation options.  An additional
factor is the likelihood of further damage (accidental or otherwise).

On the basis of material condition and priority classifications, the exposure risks
presented by the ashestos-containing materials are categorised as detailed below:

High Risk (75 to 100)

Materials in this category mayv be in poor condition and present a strong potential to
expose personnel to airborne asbestos fibres. This material tvpe should be dealt with in
the short term, t.e. typicallv less than 3 months. In the shorter term, access to areas
containing these materials should be restricted and tasks which might disturb such
materials should only be carried out under controlled conditions. Remedial action will
normally entail removal of material classed in this manner.

No areas were found which required access to be restricted in the short-term. If this is
not reasonably practicable, such materials remaining should be inspected {for
deterioration on a 3-monthly basis.

Medium-High Risk (60-74)
These materials mav be in poor condition although the human exposure potential is

lower, i.e. less people occupy the area for less time. The material should be dealt with in
the short term, i.e. tvpically 3 months. Access to the area mayv need to be restricted.

P332

Pagne 13 o1 Al Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.

Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum
Decembser 20007

Page 356



Medium Risk (35 - 59)

Suspect asbestos-based materials classed in this category are in fair condition and will not
normally present a significant risk of exposing personnel to airborne asbestos fibres.
However, the material may deteriorate over a period of time or mayv be located in a
position where impact damage mayv occur. These materials should be dealt with in the
medium term (3 - 6 months). Remedial action could involve removal, or encapsulation
works with subsequent regular inspection of condition. Medium risk materials remaining
should be inspected for deterioration on a biannual basis.

Low-medium risk (20-34)

These materials mav be in good to fair condition although the human exposure potential
may be a little higher than the low risk material, ie. more people occupy the area for
more time although the condition of the material is good. The material should be dealt
with within 6-12 months.

Low Risk (0 - 19)

These materials are in good condition and do not present any significant risks, with
regard to airborne asbestos fibre exposure. It will not be necessary to remove or seal
these materials. Fowever, the condition of the material should be inspected for
deterioration and damage.

Low risk materials remaining should be inspected for deterioration every vear.

P332 Pan: 19 of 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn

Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decembser 20007

Page 357



8G¢ abed

Risk Assessment Algorithm Raw Data

Material Assessment Occupant Activity Likelihood of Disturbance Human Exposure Potential Maintenance Activity
g le Product Extent of Surface Asbestos Normal Secondary Location Accessibility Extent No. of Freq. Average Type Frequency Total
amp Type damage Treatment Type Occupant Occupant Occupants of Use Time Risk 0,
s Activi Activi Each Use - -
aterial v v Rating | Rating
(out of
40)
FAIR 1 3 1 l l p 0 2 3 1 3 1 1 0 20 48
POOR 2 3 2 1 1 2 0 2 3 1 3 1 1 0 22 52
DEBRIS 2 2 l 2 3 0 2 3 1 1 p 2 27 64
P3335

Burnside ]]ULLHT'_'I.' [t

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn

December 2007

Pag:: 200 aof 30

F.thos Environmental Lid.




APPENDIX A2. SURVEY SCOPE, QUALIFICATIONS AND SERVICE CONSTRAINTS

A2.1 Type 2 Survey Scope

A2.1.1 It should not be assumed that Ethos Environmental Ltd is party to full information
relating to the client’s intentions for the building at the time ot the survey commission or
completion.

A2.1.2 The client should satisty themselves that they have provided - in advance of the survey -
the surveying organisation with all information available in terms ot previous surveys, history of
the building, previous asbestos removal details, site and layout plans and details of hidden voids,
solums, hidden access hatches/points etc.

A2.1.3 The client’s attention 1s drawn specifically to the distinctions between type 1, 2 and 3
building surveys:

Survey | Survey scope Method? Requirement | Risk
Type orithm
Type 1 Survey of all areas of the building Survey based on Regulation 4 of Yes

excluding building elements, voids etc. surveyor inspection Control of

hidden within/behind other building & presumptions: no Asbestos

fabric. Only appropriate where a Type 2 | sampling permitted Regulations 20006

(sampling) survey is not possible for
specific reasons.

Type 2 Survey of all areas of the building Survey based on Regulation 4 of Yes
excluding building elements, voids etc. surveyor inspection Control of
hidden within/behind other building & presumptions, and Asbestos
fabric. sampling Regulations 2006
T}:PE 3 | Survey of all areas ot the building Survey based on Control of No
including building elements, voids etc. surveyor inspection Asbestos
hidden within/behind other building & presumptions, Regulations 2006
fabric. Appropriate tor buildings due intrusions, penetratio
for demolition or refurbishment or ns and sampling
other works liable to disturb the building
fabric

A2.1.4 A Type 2 survey involves assessing all visible surtaces ot the building tabric and all
readily accessible elements. Specifically it is stressed that a type 2 survey should not be relied
upon to confirm the presence/absence of asbestos in buildings prior to refurbishment,
demolition or any works liable to disturb non-surtace elements of the building fabric as these
items may not have been included within the scope of a type 2 survey. Where such work 1s

proposed, a type 3 survey 1s required.

A2.1.5 A Type 2 asbestos survey scope does not permit intrusions within elements (eg behind
walls, under tloorboards) of the building tabric.

P3335 Page 21 of 30 Ethos Environmental Ltd.
Burnside Poultry Unit

Little Clinterty Farm, Blackburn
December 2007

Page 359



A2.1.6 Survevs are necessarily representative. Given the wavs in which ashestos materials were
utilised in buildings, a full and comprehensive Type 2 survey cannot warrant that all the locations
of asbhestos in a building have been identified. As such, it is prudent where major building
disturbance works are proposed that a Tvype 3 survev is commissioned, and that site health and
safetv management arrangements includes for emergency procedures in the event of suspect
asbestos materials being uncovered during demolition.

A2.1.7 The client should satisiv themselves that the scope and extent of the survey reported
here meets their requirements. It is also stressed that the responsibility of the surveving
organisation extends to the undertaking (and demonstrating of same) that reasonable steps have
been taken to carry out a full and comprehensive survey.

A2.1.8 Whilst great care has been taken to ensure that all ACMs have been located and
identified, no surveyv can guarantee that all asbestos present in an area has been uncovered. The
tollowing specitic caveats and qualifications are required under the company’s professional
indemnity cover and should be taken into consideration when interpreting the findings of this
report:

O Lif shafts, plant room equipment or similar which would require the attendance of a specialist engineer have
not been accessed.

Electrical switchgear has not heen opened.

Access cannot be gained to areas (eg ceiling voids) with access hatches (or similar) at height above ground more
than 3.0 m unless the client can provide a safe means of access.

O Oogd

Surface materials which are presumed to contain asbestos (eg asbestos insulation boarding) will not be
disturbed in order to access areas behind (eg behind asbestos insulation wall boarding, above asbestos celling
tiles). Such areas may therefore have to be assumed to contain asbestos or be separately surveyed.

a

Areas such as ceiling volds will receive a limited inspection from the access point  from ladders to 1.5m
working height but will not be accessed unless the client can provide assurance as to the safery of the floodng
in the area, either prior to the survey or on-site.

O internal elements at height greater than 5.0m above ground will not normally be accessible for sampling unless
the client was requested in advance by the company to provide details of such areas on-site and either was not
able to, or indicated erroneonsly (in either instance this facility will not have been priced for at the proposal
stage for provision by Hthos), and is otherwise not able to provide a safe working facility for this on-site for
our survevor with minimal tme delay on-site.

O Exrernal elements a height greater than 4.0m above ground will not normally be accessible for sampling unless
the client was requested in advance by the company to provide details of such areas on-site and either was not
able to, or indicated erroneonsly (in either instance this facility will not have been priced for at the proposal
stage for provision by Hthos), and is otherwise not able to provide a safe working facility for this on-site for

our survevor with minimal tme delay on-site.

O Concealed spaces that may exist within the fabric of the premises, where the extent of these is not evident due
to inaccessibility or insufficient knowledge of the structure at the time of the survey, have not been reported
on.

O o responsibility is accepted for the presence of asbestos containing materials in voids (under- floor, wall,
celling, or roof) other than those opened during the survey. Fthos Environmental Ld is not responsible for
accessing such areas if the location of the access hatch/door etc s not reasonably visible, or has not been

indicated to the survevor by the dient in advance of the survey.

L]

O Sampling and/or intrusive penetrations have not been taken where the act of sampling would endanger the
Survevor.

O Sampling and/or intrusive penetrations have not been taken where the act of sampling would affect the
functional integrity of the item concerned, eg fuses within electrical distribution switch gear, certain gaskets,
fire doors, anti-vibration gaiters ete.

P332 Pan: 22 o 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn

Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decembser 20007

Page 360



O

O O 0O oOo oo O

a

A limited inspection only has been carried out on pipe work concealed by overlving non-asbestos insulatdon.
Ingpection of pipe work has been restricted primarily to the insulatdon visible. The presence of underlying
debris on pipe work, which is not readily visible or would require the removal and replacement of overlying
non-asbestos insulation, has been considered ourwith the scope of this survey.

Samples were taken only where deemed necessary. Where a suspected material appeared to be repeatedly used
within an area (e.g. insulation boards, spraved insulation, asbestos cement products), a representative number
of samples only will have been collected in most sitvations.

Samples have not been taken where specifically prohibited or prevented by the Client, occupant or their
representatve.

Any quantities stated within this survey report are based upon our Survevors” estimates and should not be used
for contractual purposes.

Contamination of other nearby surfaces which may have occurred during application or removal of asbestos -
such that the original ACM is effectvely removed - may not be detected during the survey.

The use of asbestos in rawl plugs (used prior to plastic) the location of which is hidden by a wall coating is
extremely difficult to identify and may not be confirmed by any survey tpe (1, 2 or 3).

Flectrical fuse boxes may contain asbestos. These are not normally accessed as part of the survey, unless the
client can certify it is isolated in person during the on-site survey.

Fire doors may contain a laver of asbestos materials. “The presence of this is difficult to confirm without
~ausing significant damage. Sampling is not normally undertaken in these cirenmstances, unless the client
specifically requests this in advance.

Items of plant and equipment will not be accessed unless the client can certify that they are isolated during the
on-site survey. Hven then, intrusive investigations are limited unless the client has specifically indicated that the
item is redundant and damage is acceptable.

Textured coatings are highly inhomogeneous and may vary significantly with regard to their ashestos
composition/absence. As such it is prudent to assume for buildings constructed before about 1985 that these
materials contain asbestos, or to tailor the sampling strategy specifically to the immediate location of any
proposed disturbance activities (where the client feels they have a good understanding of the location of these
actvites).

P332 Pan: 23 o 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

ecember 20007
| H Page 361



A2.2 General Setvice Constraints

A2.21 This report and the survey carried out in connection with the report (together
the “Services”) were undertaken by Lithos Linvironmental Ltd for the client in accordance with
the terms of a contract between Lithos Linvironmental Ltd and the client.

A2.22 The services were performed by Lithos Linvironmental Ltd with the skill and care
ordinarily exercised by a reasonable environmental consultant authorised under the company’s
UK AS-accredited asbestos building surveving service for asbestos surveving, at the time the
services were performed. [urther, and in particular, the services were performed taking into
account the limits of the scope of works required by the client, the timescale involved and the
resources - including financial and manpower resources - agreed between lithos Linvironmental
Ltd and the client.

A2.23 Other than that expressly detailed above, Lithos Linvironmental Ltd provides no
other representation or warranty whether express or implied in relation to the services.

A2.24 Unless otherwise agreed in advance, the services were performed bv Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd exclusively for the purposes of the client. Lithos Linvironmental Ltd is not
aware of any interest of or anv reliance by any party other than the client in or on the Services.
Unless expressly provided in writing, Lithos Linvironmental Ltd does not authorise, consent or
condone any party other than the client relving upon the services. Should this report or any part
of the report, or otherwise details of the services, or any part of the services, be made known to
any such party, and such party relies thereon, that party does so wholly at its own and sole risk
and Lithos Linvironmental Ltd disclaims any liability to such parties. Any such party would be
well advised to seek independent advice from a competent UK AS-accredited asbestos consulting
laboratory and/or lawver.

A2.2.5 It is Lithos Linvironmental Ltd’s understanding that this report is to be used for
the purpose described in the introduction to the report. That purpose was a significant factor in
determining the scope and level of the services. Should the purpose for which the report is
used, or the proposed use of the site change, this report may no longer be valid, and any further
use of or reliance upon the report in those circumstances by the client without Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd’s review and advice shall be at the client’s sole and own risk. Should lL:thos
Linvironmental Ltd be requested to review the report after the date hereof, Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd shall be entitled to additional pavment at the then existing rates or such
other such terms as agreed between L:thos Linvironmental Ltd and the client.

P332 Pan: 24 o 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

ecember 20007
| H Page 362



A2.2.0 Under the Cowtrol of Asbestos Regulations 2006, the duty-holder requires to
implement an ashestos management system, one part of which is the undertaking of an ashestos
building survey. All MIDHS 100 asbestos building survey tvpes (1, 2 and 3) necessarily involve a
significant degree of subjective assumption by the survevor, as to:

the likelihood of asbestos being present within an element,
an appropriate sampling strategy/frequency;
the representativeness of a sample obtained {for a particular element

ooogd

The extent to which another element in the building can be considered to be the same as
one already addressed.

The client should satisfy themselves as to the suitabilitv of the survey report in terms of its
scope, areas accessed and findings. Where the client has cause to question anv aspect of the
report, Lithos Linvironmental Ltd will not be held liable for any costs (financial or in kind, direct
or indirect) incurred by the client or third parties, where:

Al Lithos Linvironmental Ltd has not been given the opportunity to review the
report, and offer a remedial response within a reasonable timescale subsequent to the
client raising concerns; and,

B. These costs were incurred before this response/review by Lithos Linvironmental
Ltd.

A2.27 The passage of time mav result in changes in site conditions, regulatory or other
legal provisions, technology or economic conditions which could, render the report inaccurate
or unreliable. The information and conclusions contained in this report should not be relied
upon in the future without the written advice of Lithos Linvironmental Ltd. In the absence of
such advice, reliance on the report in the future shall be at the client’s own and sole risk. Should
Lithos Linvironmental Ltd be requested to review the report in the future, Llithos Linvironmental
Ltd shall be entitled to additional pavment at the then existing rate or such other terms as may
be agreed in advance between Lithos Linvironmental Ltd and the client

A2.28 The observations and conclusions described in this report are based solely upon
the services which were provided pursuant to the agreement between the client and Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd.  Lithos Linvironmental lLtd has not performed any observations,
investigations, studies or testing not specitically set out or required by the contract between the
client and l:thos Linvironmental Ltd. l:thos Linvironmental Ltd is not liable for the existence of
any condition, the discovery of which would require performance of services not otherwise
contained in the services.

A2.29 For the avoidance of doubt, the scope of this survey type (MIDHIS100 - Type 1, 2
or 3) and the specific buildings/areas accessed should be reviewed by the client in conjunction
with the specific caveats relating to normal access expectations for each survey type.

A2.2.10 Whilst our site lead survevor will usually indicate to the client (while on-site)
what areas (which could normally be expected to be accessed) could in fact not be accessed (e.g.
locked rooms), unless the client can provide a site escort at all times during the survey, Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd cannot be held responsible for communicating this information to the client

P332 Pan: 35 o 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn

Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decembser 20007

Page 363



when on-site, or otherwise, prior to completion of the report. In these circumstances, Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd will also not be responsible for returning to site to surveyv areas which could
not be accessed originally, where it would be reasonable to expect that the client would have
arranged access and/or a site contact to liaise with whilst on-site.

A2.2.11 Whilst our site lead survevor will usually indicate to the client (while on-site)
what areas (which could normally be expected to be accessed) could in fact not be accessed due
to safety concerns, unless the client can provide a site escort during the survev, Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd cannot be held responsible for communicating this information to the client
when on-site, or otherwise prior to completion of the report (when it will be reported). In these
circumstances, Lithos Linvironmental Ltd will also not be responsible for returning to site to
survey areas which could not be safelv accessed originally, where it would be reasonable to
expect that the client would have ensured safe access and a safe working environment and/or a

site contact to liaise with whilst on-site.

A2.212 Lithos Linvironmental Ltd reserves the right to not undertake sampling in specific
areas which are occupied. While the site survevor will endeavour to inform the client (while on-
site] of this, unless the client can provide a site escort at all times during the surveyv, Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd cannot be held responsible for communicating this information to the client
when on-site, or otherwise prior to completion of the report. In these circumstances, Lithos
Linvironmental Ltd will also not be responsible for returning to site to obtain samples from areas
where this could not - in the opinion of the survevor - be safely done originally, where it would
be reasonable to expect that the client could have arranged to remove occupants prior to the
survey or would provide a site contact to liaise with whilst on-site.

A2.213 The services are based upon lithos Linvironmental Ltd’s observations of the
building(s), and as detailed in anv site plan/building diagram or other documentation provided
by the client. The services are clearly limited by the accuracy of the documentation provided by
the client. Lithos Linvironmental Ltd was not authorised and did not attempt to independently
verify the accuracy or completeness of information, documentation or materials recetved from
the client or third parties during the performance of the services.

A2.2.14 Unless agreed in writing with the client prior to commencement of the survey,
site plans, building drawings or schematics of anv description will not necessarily be included in
the report. Lithos Linvironmental Ltd retains the right to use such materials in the report in
specific situations where (in the opinion of the survevor) their inclusion will assist the client in
identifving the location of an ACM. Any site drawings provided in this report are not meant to
be accurate plans, but are used to assist the client in establishing the general locations of ACMs

A2.2.15 Unless agreed in writing with the client prior to commencement of the survey,
photographs will not necessarily be included in the report. Lithos Linvironmental L.td retains the
right to use photographs in the report for specific situations where (in the opinion of the
survevor) their inclusion will assist with reporting to the client either the nature of the element
itself (eg extent, condition), or its actual location

P332 Pagn: 36 o 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn

Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decembser 20007

Page 364



A2.2.16 This report provides information on all materials which have been found to - or
are assumed to - contain asbestos. The report does not necessarily discuss elements of the
building fabric which have been found to - or are assumed to - not contain asbestos

P332 Pan: 2% o 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.

Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

ecember 20007
| H Page 365



APPENDIX A3. CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS (3 PAGES)

P332 Pan: 28 of 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.

Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

ecember 20007
| H Page 366



APPENDIX A4. SITE PLANS (1 PAGE)

P332 Pagn: 29 o 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.

Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

Decombser 2007 Page 367



APPENDIX A5, TERMS & CONDITIONS

Ethos Environmental Ltd

Standard Terms of Business

1. The quotation of our fees and expenses for this commission is provided in the proposal.
It is for a fixed sum and remains valid for three months from the date of submission unless
otherwise stated. In the case of commissions covering a period greater than three months we
reserve the right to apply an increased level of fees after each three month period to take account
of inflation. Work in addition to our proposal will be notified in advance to the client and will be
charged at these agreed rates.

2. Please note that our pavment terms require settlement of outstanding accounts within 30

dayvs of the date of dispatch of the invoice. If vou fail to pay on the due date any amount which

is pavable, without prejudice to any other rights vou mayv have, that amount shall bear interest at
% per month from the due date until the pavment is made in full.

In the event that vou fail to pav an invoice within 60 davs of the due date, then we reserve
the right to suspend our services until the outstanding amount, together with any interest
accrued, has been received. We accept no liability for anv loss, damage or consequential loss,
however suffered, by virtue of the suspension of our services.

3. All our consultants and associate staff are emploved under contract, which ensures that
confidential information given to us is respected and is not made available to third parties.

4. It is a condition of the engagement in any commission that neither the client, nor any
company associated with the client, will offer emplovment to any of our consultants concerned
in this commission, without prior agreement of Lithos linvironmental Limited.

3. All recommendations and forecasts whether in the proposal or in subsequent reports are
made in good faith on the basis of information given and their achievement depends among
other things on the effective co-operation of the client's staff. The client shall satisfv himself that
the information received from the client's delegates, upon which our survev, assessment or
investigation report is based, are representative and appropriate. In consequence, no statement in
any letter, proposal or report is to be deemed a representation, undertaking, warranty or
contractual obligation. lithos Linvironmental Limited will not be liable to the client for any
direct, indirect or consequential losses including (but not limited to) loss of revenue, profits or
claims by third parties.

0. Our services mav be terminated on either side by one month’s notice in writing except
that we reserve the right to terminate our services without notice where the client fails to meet
pavments as thev fall due, or where the client commits any act of bankruptev, goes into
liquidation or sutffers the appointment of a receiver.

P332 Pagn: Ao 30 Eoabwss b trenmenal Lad.
Bumade Pouhry Unn
Linbe Chtery Farm, Blackbum

ecember 20007
| H Page 368



Agenda ltem 2.4

From: Bob Baxter

Sent: 01 November 2017 16:55

To: LocalReviewBody

Subject: LRB/170395 Obijection - Review for application 170395, Burnside Poultry
Units,

| would still like to object to this application on the grounds that if approved after 2
Planning rejections it would make a mockery of the Green Belt Procedure,
there are literally thousands of new houses being built in and around Aberdeen at
this moment in time, why do we require more houses on Green Belt Land.

The question also has to be asked, why are the two planned houses at either end of
the Plot, could this be leaving space in the middle for a further house application in
the future.

regards
Bob Baxter

Elysium

Clinterty Kinellar
Aberdeen AB21 OTL

Page 369



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 370



From: Graham Buchan

Sent: 07 November 2017 10:47

To: Allison Swanson

Subject: Re: Notice of Review 170395 - Burnside Poultry Units - Notification of Additional Comment

Dear Miss Swanson,

In regard to the additional email comments made by Mr Bob Baxter,
Elysium,Clinterty and dated 1st November 2017 my replies are as follows:

Mr Baxter raises the question as the proposal to use "green belt land” for the
erection of the two houses, however the Application / Review concerns the
remediation and the re-use of two degraded and derelict brownfied sites situated
within the green belt. The proposed houses would be located largely over the
footprints of the partly demolished poultry building at Plot 1 and of the remaining
derelict and redundant poultry building at Plot 2.

The Approval for four large houses at the Clinterty Mill site was justified in part for
the very reason that the development was based on the re-use of a degraded and
derelict site.

The Delegated Report for the Clinterty Mill quotes the
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan:

“The city of Aberdeen has ambitious growth plans and the delivery of housing is a
core tenet of the strateqy. The main route of delivering housing numbers is via
significant land releases, much of which is on formerly undeveloped green belt land.
However, the value of ‘windfall” brownfield sites cannot be discounted and subject to
such sites being considered appropriate places, and not degrading or reducing the
protection of high value locations, should be supported.”

Mr Baxter refers to other housing developments being built in the area, however, the
Aberdeen and Shire Structure Plan clearly supports the windfall value of these
additional brownfield house sites, which augment the local housing supply. The
same conditions prevailed at the time of the approval of the Clinterty Mill
development in that new housing sites had been approved or were in the process of
construction in the City and neverthless the Council welcomed these four additions
to the housing stock.

There is no dispute that the two houses proposed for Burnside are well designed and
are of a high quality/specification containing elements of local, venacular materials
and indeed, the Delegated Officer has confirmed this in the Report of Handling.

Mr Baxter also raises the question as to why the two planned houses are to be
located at either end of the Burnside site and appears to assume this is " leaving
space in the middle for a further house application in the future".

Page 371



The reason why the proposed houses are located at either end of site is because
that is where the partly demolished and the existing degraded poultry buildings and
rubble/slurry tanks are located.

As can be seen from the theme running throughout the Application documentation,
the aim is to remediate and re-use derelict/redundant brownfield land at Burnside
and conserve the remaining grazing areas.

Regards
Graham Buchan

Page 372



	Agenda
	1 Procedure Notice
	2.1 Delegated Report, Plans, Decision Notice and Letters of Representation
	1534549-170395 Clinterty decision doc
	1498889-Public Comment-Objects-Dr Bill Harrison(FULL)
	1498977-Public Comment-Objects-Mr Robert Baxter(FULL)
	1499166-Public Comment-Lett of Rep   Derek Pinches
	1499175-Consultee Comment-Flooding
	1499356-Public Comment-Objects-Mr a e s wilson(FULL)
	1501719-Consultee Comment - Roads Development Management
	1504087-Consultee Comment-Environmental Health
	1498420-Consultee Comment-Contaminated Land
	1499010-Consultee Comment-Waste Services
	1506738-170395DPPEPTeamResponse
	1532235-BatSurveyEPResponse13June2017

	2.3 Notice of Review with Initial Application and Supporting Information Submitted by Applicant / Agent
	1566420-Appeal   LRB Document-Notice of Review Statement
	1494324-Application Form-Application PDF
	1494315-Application Form-Application Summary PDF
	1494316-Supporting Statement-Asbestos Management Report
	1494317-Supporting Statement-Bat Survey
	WSD_Feasibility_Report 10-4-17
	Feasibility
	House Construction Cost

	1566415-Appeal   LRB Document-Price quote for demolition of poultry buil...
	1566418-Appeal   LRB Document-Price quote for the removal and disposal o...
	1494318-Supporting Statement-Design Statement
	1494319-Supporting Statement-DIA Report
	1494321-Drawing-Proposed Site Plan
	1494322-Drawing-As Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations
	1494323-Supporting Statement-Planning Supporting Statement
	1494325-Supporting Statement-Site Investigation Report Part 1 of 2
	1494326-Supporting Statement-Site Investigation Report Part 2 of 2
	1494327-Supporting Statement-Structural Survey
	1494328-Supporting Statement-Sustainability Report
	1496816-PL-01_REV A_As Existing Location & Site Plan
	1505434-Feasibilty Study-Poultry  Production-Burnside-Poultry-Unit- 2005
	1498705-2007_Asbestos_Report_Exernal_Roof_Sheets_Ethos_Environmental

	2.4 Additional Comments from Representations and Response from Applicant/Agent
	170395 - Burnside Poultry Units - Response to Add Comments (071117)




